
 

WASHINGTON STATE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 

 

 
Our Mission: 

Protect the Public by Ensuring That Gambling is Legal and Honest 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Red Lion Hotel - Seatac 
18220 International Blvd. 
Seatac, Washington  98188 
(206) 246-5535 

 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMISSION MEETING 
AGENDA PACKET 

 
 
 

WEDNESDAY, July 13, 2016 
THURSDAY, July 14, 2016 



COMMISSION MEMBERS 
 

 
Bud Sizemore – Chair 

 
Julia Patterson – Vice Chair 

 
Kelsey Gray, PhD. 

 
Ed Troyer 

 
Chris Stearns  

 
 

EX OFFICIO MEMBERS 
 
 

Senator Steve Conway 
 

Senator Mike Hewitt 
 

Representative Christopher Hurst 
 

Representative Brandon Vick 
 
 

DIRECTOR 
 

David Trujillo 
 

DEPUTY DIRECTOR 
 

Amy Hunter 



 
 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

P.O. Box 42400 Olympia, Washington 98504-2400  (360)486-3440  (800)345-2529  FAX (360) 486-3625 

Educational Training – Poker & Wagering Limits Agenda 
Commission Meetings are Open to the Public 

Visit our web site at www.wsgc.wa.gov 
 
 

Location of Meeting: Date and Time of Meeting
Silver Dollar Casino SeaTac 
19222 International Blvd. 
SeaTac, WA  98188 
(206) 824-2340 
 

Wednesday, July 13, 2016 
Beginning at 1:00 p.m.  

- PUBLIC MEETING - 

Please note, there will be no action taken at this meeting and no public testimony given. 

1. Welcome  Bud Sizemore, Chair 

2. Educational Training – Poker & Wagering Limits Bill McGregor, Special Agent  

3. Adjourn 

http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/


 



  06-14-16 
 

Washington State Gambling Commission 
July 2016 Study Session 

 
Date: July 14, 2016 
Time: 10:00 a.m.  
Location: Red Lion Hotel - SeaTac 
18220 International Blvd. 
Seattle, WA 98188 
(206) 246-5535 

Study Session Agenda 

I. Up for Further Discussion at the July 2016 Commission Meeting 
Group 12 Amusement Games – Electronic Puzzle and Pattern Solving Game Standards 

o Amended Section:  WAC 230-13-067 Group 12 - Electronic puzzle and pattern solving 
game standards.   

Group 12 Amusement Games – Reporting, Recordkeeping and Non-transferability of Tokens 
o Amended Section:  WAC 230-13-075 Assigning and reporting group numbers of 

authorized amusement games. 
o Amended Section:  WAC 230-13-170 Recordkeeping for commercial amusement 

games. 
o Amended Section:  WAC 230-07-125 Recordkeeping requirements for lower volume 

charitable or nonprofit organizations. 
o Amended Section:  WAC 230-13-005 Amusement games authorized. 

Group 12 Amusement Games - Licensing 
o Amended Section:  WAC 230-03-185 Applying for a manufacturer license. 
o Amended Section:  WAC 230-03-190 Applying for a distributor license. 
o Amended Section:  WAC 230-06-110 Buying, selling, or transferring gambling 

equipment. 
o New Section:  WAC 230-06-112 Buying, selling, renting and leasing amusement 

games. 

Petition for Rule Change from the Recreational Gaming Association - Promotions & Hours of 
Play 

o WAC 230-15-025 Hours of play. 
o WAC 230-06-030 Restrictions and conditions for gambling promotions. 
o WAC 230-06-031 Using wheels in promotional contests of chance, fund-raising events, 

or gambling activities – Promotional Contests of Chance (PCOC) 

Petition for Rule Change from Teresa Malphrus – Poker Wagering 
o WAC 230-15-080 Authorized fees and authorized methods of collection. 
o WAC 230-15-135 Wagering Limits for nonhouse-banked card games. 

Petition for Rule Change from George Teeny – Poker Wagering 
o WAC 230-15-135 Wagering Limits for nonhouse-banked card games. 

II. Up for Discussion and possible filing at the July 2016 Commission Meeting 
Petition from Pat Tompkins 
Repeal Certain Group 12 Amusement Game Requirements 

o Amended Section: WAC 230-13-135 (2) Maximum wagers and prize limitations. 



o Amended Section: WAC 230-13-010 Approval of new amusement games (Repeal 
certain portions). 

o Amended Section: WAC 230-06-110 (6) Buying selling, or transferring gambling 
equipment. 

o Amended Section: WAC 230-05-030 (10) Fees for other businesses. 
o Amended Section: WAC 230-05-030 (11) Fees for other businesses. 
o Amended Section: WAC 230-03-190 (1) Applying for a distributor license. 
o Amended Section: WAC 230-03-185 (1) (c) Applying for a manufacturer license.  
o Amended Section: WAC 230-13-080 (4) Operating coin or token activated amusement 

games. 
Petition from Jesse Stiltner 
Change Definition Related to Amusement Games 

o Amended Section: WAC 230-13-170 Recordkeeping for commercial amusement 
games.  

o Amended Section: WAC 230-13-175 Recordkeeping for unlicensed charitable and 
nonprofit amusement games.  

o Amended Section: WAC 230-06-200 Defining “gambling equipment.”   

III. Open Discussion 



 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”  

P.O. Box 42400 Olympia, Washington 98504-2400  (360)486-3440  (800)345-2529  FAX (360) 486-3625 

 
Red Lion SeaTac 18220 International Blvd. Seattle, WA 98188 

July 14, 2016 Commission Meeting 
 

Informal Study Group Session 10:00 A.M.  
Public Meeting 

Please note, agenda items may be taken out of sequence at the discretion of the Chair 
 

Public Meeting Begins at 11:00 A.M. 
 Welcome and Introductions 

Executive Session -Working Lunch- 
• Discuss Pending Investigations, Tribal Negotiations and Litigation 

 Public Meeting Adjourns at 11:05 A.M. 
Reconvene at 1:30 P.M. 

 PUBLIC MEETING 
Tab 1 a 
Tab 1 b 
 
 
 
Tab 1 c 

Director’s Report                                                                       Amy Hunter, Deputy Director 
Agency Request Legislation                                                      Brian Considine, Managing Attorney 
1) RCW 9.46.210 - Providing immunity to agents in limited circumstances (similar to HB 2765)   
2) RCW 9.46.0209 – Remove 15 voting member requirement for charitable/non-profit  

organizations 
Special Olympics of Washington                                                       Tina Griffin, Assistant Director 

• December 2015 Western WA Enhanced Raffle Results 
 ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE ACT PROCEEDINGS 
 Rules Up for Discussion 
Tab 2 
 

Group 12 Amusement Games 
Electronic Puzzle and Pattern Solving Game Standards              Tina Griffin, Assistant Director 

• Amended Section:  WAC 230-13-067 Group 12 Electronic Puzzle and Pattern Solving Game 
Standards. 
 

Filed 3/02/2016 as a Pre-Proposal Statement of Inquiry (CR-101) under WSR #16-06-130. Proposed Rule 
Making (CR-102) under WSR #16-09-044 with a published date of 5/04/2016. Proposed Rule Making (CR-102) 
under WSR #16-12-107 with a published date of 6/15/2016. 

Tab 3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Group 12 Amusement Games 
Reporting, Recordkeeping and Non-transferability of Tokens Tina Griffin, Assistant Director 

• Amended Section:  WAC 230-13-075 Assigning and reporting group numbers of authorized 
amusement games. 

• Amended Section:  WAC 230-13-170 Recordkeeping for commercial amusement games. 
• Amended Section:  WAC 230-07-125 Recordkeeping requirements for lower volume charitable or 

nonprofit organizations. 
• Amended Section:  WAC 230-13-005 Amusement games authorized. 

 
Filed 3/02/2016 as a Pre-Proposal Statement of Inquiry (CR-101) under WSR #16-06-130. Proposed Rule 
Making (CR-102) under WSR #16-09-043 with a published date of 5/04/2016. Proposed Rule Making (CR-102) 
under WSR #16-12-108 with a published date of 6/15/2016. 



2 
 

Tab 4 Group 12 Amusement Games 
Licensing Tina Griffin, Assistant Director 

• Amended Section:  WAC 230-03-185 Applying for a manufacturer license. 
• Amended Section:  WAC 230-03-190 Applying for a distributor license. 
• Amended Section:  WAC 230-06-110 Buying, selling, or transferring gambling equipment. 
• New Section:  WAC 230-06-112 Buying, selling, renting and leasing amusement games. 

 
Filed 04/04/2016 as a Pre-Proposal Statement of Inquiry (CR-101) under WSR #16-08-057. Proposed Rule 
Making (CR-102) under WSR #16-08-057 with a published date of 4/4/2016. Proposed Rule Making (CR-102) 
under WSR #16-12-110 with a published date of 6/15/2016. 

Tab 5 Petition from Theresa Malphrus 
Poker Wagering                                                                                 Tina Griffin, Assistant Director 

• Amended Section: WAC 230-15-080 Authorized fees and authorized methods of collection. 
• Amended Section: WAC 230-15-135 Wagering Limits for nonhouse-banked card games. 

 
Filed 04/13/2016 as a Pre-Proposal Statement of Inquiry (CR-101) under WSR #16-09-031. 

Tab 6 Petition from George Teeny 
Poker Wagering                                                                                 Tina Griffin, Assistant Director 

• Amended Section: WAC 230-15-135 Wagering Limits for nonhouse-banked card games. 
 

Filed 04/13/2016 as a Pre-Proposal Statement of Inquiry (CR-101) under WSR #16-09-032. Proposed Rule 
Making (CR-102) under WSR #16-13-152 with a published date of 7/06/2016. 

 Up for Discussion and Possible Filing 
Tab 7 Petition from Pat Tompkins  

Repeal Certain Group 12 Amusement Game Requirements     Tina Griffin, Assistant Director                                                                                 
• Amended Section: WAC 230-13-135 (2) Maximum wagers and prize limitations. 
• Amended Section: WAC 230-13-010 Approval of new amusement games (Repeal certain 

portions). 
• Amended Section: WAC 230-06-110 (6) Buying selling, or transferring gambling 

equipment. 
• Amended Section: WAC 230-05-030 (10) Fees for other businesses. 
• Amended Section: WAC 230-05-030 (11) Fees for other businesses. 
• Amended Section: WAC 230-03-190 (1) Applying for a distributor license. 
• Amended Section: WAC 230-03-185 (1) (c) Applying for a manufacturer license.  
• Amended Section: WAC 230-13-080 (4) Operating coin or token activated amusement 

games. 
 
Filed 6/01/2016 as a Pre-Proposal Statement of Inquiry (CR-101) under WSR #16-12-111.  

Tab 8 Petition from Jesse Stiltner 
Change Definitions Related to Amusement Games                      Tina Griffin, Assistant Director                                                                                 

• Amended Section: WAC 230-13-170 Recordkeeping for commercial amusement games.  
• Amended Section: WAC 230-13-175 Recordkeeping for unlicensed charitable and 

nonprofit amusement games.  
• Amended Section: WAC 230-06-200 Defining “gambling equipment.” 

 
Filed 6/22/2016 as a Pre-Proposal Statement of Inquiry (CR-101) under WSR #16-13-148.  

 



3 
 

Tab 9 New Licenses and Class III Employees                                            Tina Griffin, Assistant Director 

Tab 10 Defaults                                                                                       Brian Considine, Managing Attorney 
a) Dragon Pearl, Applicant License Denial, Revocation 
b) Chamroeun Chea, Card Room, Class III Certification, Revocation 

 PUBLIC MEETING 
Tab 11 Approval of the Commission Meeting Minutes 

• March 11, 2016  – Great Wolf Lodge, Grand Mound 
• April 14, 2016  – Double Tree, Olympia 
• May 12, 2016  – Red Lion, Pasco 

 Other Business/General Discussion/Comments from the Public 
 Adjourn 

Upon advance request, the Commission will pursue reasonable accommodations to enable persons with disabilities to attend 
Commission meetings.  Questions or comments pertaining to the agenda and requests for special accommodations should be 
directed to Julie Anderson, Executive Assistant at (360) 486-3453 or TDD (360) 486-3637.  Questions or comments pertaining to 
rule changes should be directed to the Rules Coordinator and Public Information Officer at (360) 486-3447. 
 



 









 



 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 
July 1, 2016 
 
 
TO:          COMMISSIONERS    EX OFFICIO MEMBERS  
         Bud Sizemore, Chair     Senator Steve Conway  
  Julia Patterson, Vice-Chair    Senator Mike Hewitt 

Kelsey Gray, Ph. D.    Representative Christopher Hurst 
   Christopher Stearns    Representative Brandon Vick 
   Ed Troyer 
      
FROM:        Brian J. Considine, Managing Attorney/Legislative Liaison  
 
SUBJECT:  POSSIBLE AGENCY REQUEST LEGISLATION FOR 2017  
 
All agency request legislation must be submitted to the Governor’s Office for approval.  The 
deadline for the 2017 legislative session is Monday, September 19, 2016.   
 
In the past, staff have presented proposals for agency request legislation to the Commission at 
the July meeting.  Staff would work on the proposals favored by the Commissioners and prepare 
the submission packet required by the Governor’s office for agency request legislation.  Then, 
staff would present the agency request legislation package(s) for final approval at the 
Commission’s August or September meeting.  
 
For the 2017 legislative session, staff have proposals for agency request legislation: 
 

(1) Eliminate the 15 voting member requirement for charitable or nonprofit organizations to 
engage in gambling activities; and 

(2) Amend the agency’s law enforcement authority to add an immunity clause for civil 
liability for actions a special agent may take to prevent physical injury to a person or 
substantial damage to property so long as the special agent’s actions are reasonable and 
the officer did not act with gross negligence or in bad faith.   

1.  Eliminate Charitable and Nonprofit Organizations’ 15 voting member requirement 

RCW 9.46.0209 has several requirements that charitable and nonprofit organizations must meet 
in order to be allowed to receive a gambling license and/or engage in gambling activities.  These 
organizations must: 



Possible Agency Request Legislation – 2017 Session 
July 1, 2016 
Page 2 
 
 

• Be organized under Washington State law as a: religious organization (corporation sole); 
grange; fraternal society; agricultural fair; or a nonprofit corporation organized for eleven 
purposes, including charitable, benevolent, or civic purposes; and 

• Have been in continuous operation for at least 12 calendar months prior to applying for a 
license or engaging in a gambling activity; and 

• Demonstrate to the Commission that the organization has made significant progress 
toward the accomplishment of its charter during the previous 12 calendar months prior to 
application or license renewal; and  

• Have not less than 15 bona fide voting members each with the right to an equal vote in 
the election of the officers, or board members, if any. 

The Commission also has additional rules for these organizations in WAC 230-03-140 and WAC 
230-03-145. 

Staff propose that agency request legislation be approved for submission to the Governor’s office 
that would eliminate the 15 voting member requirement.  Staff is aware that the Legislature 
attempted to reduce the voting member requirement from 15 to 7 in 1997.  However, SB 5034 
containing this change was vetoed by Governor Locke because of his concern that the change 
would “encourage small groups of people to form nonprofit organizations for the primary 
purpose of engaging in charitable gaming activities, in violation of the gambling code.” 

Staff believe that eliminating this requirement will not affect the agency’s ability to prevent 
fraudulent organizations from engaging in authorized gambling activities.  The agency can still 
effectively regulate charitable and nonprofit gambling activities without this requirement because 
all other organizational requirements set forth in statute and rule will still be in place to control 
charitable and nonprofit gambling activities. 

Raffles are a growing activity in the state at the moment and the process for staff to verify a 
charitable or nonprofit organization’s membership list is time-consuming and unnecessarily 
burdensome considering the reduction in staff resources over the past couple years.  
Additionally, charitable and nonprofit organizations have strict regulatory requirements separate 
from its membership requirement and these regulations provide the agency sufficient tools to 
ensure charitable and nonprofit gambling activities are legal and honest. 

This proposed change would allow for a more efficient use of limited staff resources and it will 
not impede the agency’s ability to prevent fraudulent organizations from engaging in gambling 
activities.  

Staff is aware that smaller charitable, nonprofit/civic organizations are prevented from holding 
fundraising raffles to benefit its local communities.  One recent example is the Kiwanis Club of 
Selah wanted to conduct a raffle to benefit local high school seniors.  The organization wished to 
conduct a raffle for a donated children’s playhouse and direct proceeds towards college 
scholarships.  Unfortunately, the organization only has 13 members and we had to inform them 
that they are not authorized to conduct a raffle. 



Possible Agency Request Legislation – 2017 Session 
July 1, 2016 
Page 3 
 
 
Additionally, the statutory language related to the 15 voting member requirement raises an issue 
for religious organizations.  Most, if not all, religious organizations do not have members that are 
considered to be “voting members” as identified in the statute.  The Catholic Archdiocese of 
Seattle recently contacted staff about clarifying this language since the Legislature expressly 
defines religious organizations to be the type of organizations that can qualify to conduct 
gambling activities.  Staff’s proposed change would address the Archdiocese’s concerns and 
provide clarity in the statute going forward.  

Staff does not anticipate opposition from stakeholders or our licensees on this issue.  However, 
staff will increase its outreach to stakeholders to if you approve of staff moving forward with this 
agency request legislation.  Additionally, staff will prepare agency request legislation pursuant to 
the Governor’s Office guidelines and submit it for final approval at the August or September 
Commission meeting. 

2.  Civil Immunity for Special Agents.   
 
Last session, SHB 2765 was passed into law affording park rangers, in relevant part, immunity 
from civil liability if they take reasonable action to prevent or stop further physical injury or 
substantial damage to property.  Park rangers are limited authority law enforcement officers and 
the immunity clause in SHB 2765 will likely protect them whenever they reasonably act within 
their law enforcement capacity regardless of the park ranger’s jurisdiction.  The bill passed 89-8 
in the House and 46-1 in the Senate. 

Staff propose that agency request legislation be approved for submission to the Governor’s office 
that would provide this same immunity for special agents when acting in their law enforcement 
capacities. Staff believe that special agents should not need to analyze their possible 
jurisdictional limitations when confronted with a situation where physical harm or substantial 
property damage is occurring before them.  The need to stop and analyze the scope of a special 
agent’s authority in dangerous situations is counterproductive and creates an unnecessary risk for 
the special agent and the public.  Instead, our special agents should be able to use their law 
enforcement training to stop or prevent physical harm or substantial property damage and receive 
immunity from civil liability so long as their actions were reasonable and done in good faith. 

The immunity language provided for your initial consideration is identical to the immunity 
language found in SHB 2765.  This language was uncontested throughout the legislative process 
last session and it was language drafted by Washington Association of Sheriffs and Police Chiefs 
(WASPC). 

If you approve of staff moving forward with this agency request legislation, then staff will 
continue outreach to stakeholders, including all necessary law enforcement organizations who 
may be interested in this proposal.  Additionally, staff will prepare agency request legislation 
pursuant to the Governor’s Office guidelines and submit it for final approval at the August or 
September Commission meeting. 

I look forward to your input on these packages.    

Attachments 



 



AN ACT Relating to bona fide charitable or nonprofit organization raffles; and amending RCW 
9.46.0209. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON: 

Sec. 1.  RCW 9.46.0209 and 2009 c 137 s 1 are each amended to read as follows: 
(1)(a) "Bona fide charitable or nonprofit organization," as used in this chapter, means: 
(i) Any organization duly existing under the provisions of chapter 24.12, 24.20, or 24.28 

RCW, any agricultural fair authorized under the provisions of chapters 15.76 or 36.37 RCW, 
or any nonprofit corporation duly existing under the provisions of chapter 24.03 RCW for 
charitable, benevolent, eleemosynary, educational, civic, patriotic, political, social, fraternal, 
athletic or agricultural purposes only, or any nonprofit organization, whether incorporated or 
otherwise, when found by the commission to be organized and operating for one or more of 
the aforesaid purposes only, all of which in the opinion of the commission have been organized 
and are operated primarily for purposes other than the operation of gambling activities 
authorized under this chapter; or 

(ii) Any corporation which has been incorporated under Title 36 U.S.C. and whose 
principal purposes are to furnish volunteer aid to members of the armed forces of the United 
States and also to carry on a system of national and international relief and to apply the same 
in mitigating the sufferings caused by pestilence, famine, fire, floods, and other national 
calamities and to devise and carry on measures for preventing the same. 

(b) An organization defined under (a) of this subsection must: 
(i) Have been organized and continuously operating for at least twelve calendar months 

immediately preceding making application for any license to operate a gambling activity, or 
the operation of any gambling activity authorized by this chapter for which no license is 
required; 

(((ii) Have not less than fifteen bona fide active members each with the right to an equal 
vote in the election of the officers, or board members, if any, who determine the policies of the 
organization in order to receive a gambling license;)) and 

(((iii))) (ii) Demonstrate to the commission that it has made significant progress toward the 
accomplishment of the purposes of the organization during the twelve consecutive month 
period preceding the date of application for a license or license renewal. The fact that 
contributions to an organization do not qualify for charitable contribution deduction purposes 
or that the organization is not otherwise exempt from payment of federal income taxes pursuant 
to the internal revenue code of 1954, as amended, shall constitute prima facie evidence that the 
organization is not a bona fide charitable or nonprofit organization for the purposes of this 
section. 

(c) Any person, association or organization which pays its employees, including members, 
compensation other than is reasonable therefor under the local prevailing wage scale shall be 
deemed paying compensation based in part or whole upon receipts relating to gambling 
activities authorized under this chapter and shall not be a bona fide charitable or nonprofit 
organization for the purposes of this chapter. 

(2) For the purposes of RCW 9.46.0315 and 9.46.110, a bona fide nonprofit organization 
also includes: 

(a) A credit union organized and operating under state or federal law. All revenue less 
prizes and expenses received from raffles conducted by credit unions must be devoted to 
purposes authorized under this section for charitable and nonprofit organizations; and 

(b) A group of executive branch state employees that: 

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=24.12
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=24.28
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=15.76
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.37
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=24.03
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.0315
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.110


(i) Has requested and received revocable approval from the agency's chief executive 
official, or such official's designee, to conduct one or more raffles in compliance with this 
section; 

(ii) Conducts a raffle solely to raise funds for either the state combined fund drive, created 
under RCW 41.04.033; an entity approved to receive funds from the state combined fund drive; 
or a charitable or benevolent entity, including but not limited to a person or family in need, as 
determined by a majority vote of the approved group of employees. No person or other entity 
may receive compensation in any form from the group for services rendered in support of this 
purpose; 

(iii) Promptly provides such information about the group's receipts, expenditures, and other 
activities as the agency's chief executive official or designee may periodically require, and 
otherwise complies with this section and RCW 9.46.0315; and 

(iv) Limits the participation in the raffle such that raffle tickets are sold only to, and winners 
are determined only from, the employees of the agency. 

(3) For the purposes of RCW 9.46.0277, a bona fide nonprofit organization also includes a 
county, city, or town, provided that all revenue less prizes and expenses from raffles conducted 
by the county, city, or town must be used for community activities or tourism promotion 
activities. 

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=41.04.033
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.0315
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.0277


AN ACT Relating to clarifying the limited authority of gambling commission special agents; 
adding a new section to chapter 9.46 RCW. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON: 

NEW SECTION.  Sec. 1.  A new section is added to chapter 9.46.210 RCW to read as follows: 
When physical injury to a person or substantial damage to property occurs, or is about to occur, 
within the presence of an officer of the commission designated with police powers pursuant to 
RCW 9.46.210, the designated officer is authorized to take such action as is reasonably 
necessary to prevent physical injury to a person or substantial damage to property or prevent 
further injury to a person or further substantial damage to property. A designated officer shall 
be immune from civil liability for damages arising out of the action of the designated officer 
to prevent physical injury to a person or substantial damage to property or prevent further injury 
to a person or further substantial damage to property, unless it is shown that the designated 
officer acted with gross negligence or bad faith. 



 



CERTIFICATION OF ENROLLMENT
SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL 2765

Chapter 185, Laws of 2016

64th Legislature
2016 Regular Session

PARK RANGERS--POLICE POWER--SCOPE

EFFECTIVE DATE: 6/9/2016

Passed by the House February 15, 2016
  Yeas 89  Nays 8

FRANK CHOPP
Speaker of the House of Representatives

Passed by the Senate March 2, 2016
  Yeas 46  Nays 1

BRAD OWEN
President of the Senate

CERTIFICATE

I, Barbara Baker, Chief Clerk of
the House of Representatives of the
State of Washington, do hereby
certify that the attached is
SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL 2765 as
passed by House of Representatives
and the Senate on the dates hereon
set forth.

BARBARA BAKER
Chief Clerk

Approved April 1, 2016 3:44 PM FILED

April 4, 2016

JAY INSLEE
Governor of the State of Washington

Secretary of State
 State of Washington



AN ACT Relating to clarifying the limited authority of park1
rangers; amending RCW 79A.05.160; and adding a new section to chapter2
79A.05 RCW.3

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON:4

Sec. 1.  RCW 79A.05.160 and 2011 c 320 s 15 are each amended to5
read as follows:6

(1) ((The members of)) Designated officers, employed by the7
commission ((and its designated employees)), shall be vested with8
police powers to enforce the laws of this state:9

(a) Within the boundaries of any state park, including lands10
owned, managed, or comanaged by the commission under lease or other11
agreement;12

(b) In winter recreation facilities established and administered13
by the commission pursuant to RCW 79A.05.225(1)(a);14

(c) On public roadways and public waterways bisecting the15
contiguous borders of any state park, including lands owned, managed,16
or comanaged by the commission under lease or other agreement;17

(d) Upon the prior written consent of the sheriff or chief of18
police in whose primary territorial jurisdiction the exercise of the19
powers occur;20

SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL 2765

Passed Legislature - 2016 Regular Session
State of Washington 64th Legislature 2016 Regular Session
By House Public Safety (originally sponsored by Representatives
Kretz, Moscoso, Griffey, Hayes, and Holy)
READ FIRST TIME 02/05/16.

p. 1 SHB 2765.SL



(e) In response to the request of a peace officer with1
enforcement authority; and2

(f) When the officer is in fresh pursuit for an offense committed3
in the presence of the officer while the officer had police powers as4
specified in (a) through (e) of this subsection.5

(2) The director may, under the provisions of RCW 7.84.140, enter6
into an agreement allowing ((employees)) officers of the department7
of natural resources ((and)), the department of fish and wildlife,8
and tribal law enforcement agencies on contiguous or comanaged9
property, to enforce certain civil infractions created under this10
title.11

NEW SECTION.  Sec. 2.  A new section is added to chapter 79A.0512
RCW to read as follows:13

When physical injury to a person or substantial damage to14
property occurs, or is about to occur, within the presence of an15
officer of the commission designated with police powers pursuant to16
RCW 79A.05.160, the designated officer is authorized to take such17
action as is reasonably necessary to prevent physical injury to a18
person or substantial damage to property or prevent further injury to19
a person or further substantial damage to property. A designated20
officer shall be immune from civil liability for damages arising out21
of the action of the designated officer to prevent physical injury to22
a person or substantial damage to property or prevent further injury23
to a person or further substantial damage to property, unless it is24
shown that the designated officer acted with gross negligence or bad25
faith.26

Passed by the House February 15, 2016.
Passed by the Senate March 2, 2016.
Approved by the Governor April 1, 2016.
Filed in Office of Secretary of State April 4, 2016.

--- END ---

p. 2 SHB 2765.SL



 































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TAB 2: July 2016 Commission Meeting Agenda.               Statutory Authority 9.46.070, 9.46.0201                                                                                                             
 

Who proposed the rule changes? 
Staff at the request of the Commissioners at the February 2016 commission meeting. 

Proposed Changes 
Bold/Underline = Changes made after the May 2016 Commission Meeting 
 
In July 2015, the Commissioners authorized Group 12 amusement games to be played by persons 21 and 
over. Since this time, numerous questions and concerns have been raised. 
 
At their February 2016 meeting, the Commissioners asked staff to explore regulating the appearance so 
that the game does not look like a slot machine.  Staff prepared a rule change with two options for 
consideration at the March meeting.   
 
Option 1 - The Commissioners did not file this option at the March 2016 Commission meeting.  This 
option required the appearance of Group 12 amusement games to not look like a slot machine.  
 
Option 2 requires Group 12 amusement games to prominently display on a sticker or on the screen, “This  
is not a slot machine.  No cash prizes are allowed.  You can preview the prize available before each play of 
the game without the insertion of money or anything of value.” 
 
At the April Commission meeting, Chair Stearns asked that we revise the language to better explain the 
preview function, see Option 2A. 
 
A Small Business Economic Impact Statement was prepared and is attached.  
 
Attachments: 
 

• Budget Proviso (the following language was included in the budget passed by the legislature): 
“The commission is directed to review and reconsider, including repeal, rules adopted to authorize 
the amusement games classified as group 12 under WAC 230-13-067, recognizing the impact such 
games may have on state lottery revenues used to support public education programs.” 

• Small Business Economic Impact Statement. 

 
Licensee Impacts 

• As of April 2016, there were approximately 385 Group 12 amusement games in Washington.   
• As of February 8, 2016, there were approximately 430 Group 12 amusement games in Washington. 

 

 
Amended: 

WAC 230-13-067 Group 12—Electronic puzzle and pattern solving game 
standards. 

 
July 2016 – Further Discussion 
June 2016 – No Meeting 
May 2016 – Further Discussion 
April 2016 – Further Discussion 
March 2016 – Up for Discussion and Filing 

 



• Under Option 2, licensees would need to print stickers to attach to the amusement game or program 
the amusement game to display the message. 

Agency Impacts 
Staff would confirm that each Group 12 amusement game has the sticker or displays the message on the 
screen.   

Statements Supporting or Opposing the Proposed Rule Change 
At the March meeting, one person testified that requiring the appearance of the games to be changed would be 
expensive if Option 1 were chosen. 

Staff Recommendation 
Further Discussion.  When the rule is up for final action, staff will recommend Option 2A. 

Proposed Effective Date for Rule Change 
31 days from filing. 



Option 2 
 

Amended Section 
WAC 230-13-067 Group 12—Electronic puzzle and pattern solving game standards. 

(1) In Group 12 games, players must correctly solve a puzzle to win a game prize, which is 
viewable by the player before each puzzle is presented. 

(12) The game must allow the player to preview the prize that is available before each play of 
the game without the insertion of money or any other thing of value; and 

(23) Prizes are awarded based upon the player's skill in correctly discerning a pattern and 
completing that pattern; and 

(34) When a game presents a potential winning pattern, the puzzle must be capable of 
completion within the predetermined time period; and 

(45) Group 12 amusement games are for adults over the age of twenty-one only and may 
only be operated by licensees where persons under the age of twenty-one are prohibited from 
entering.; and 

(6) The amusement game must prominently display on a sticker or on the screen, “This is not 
a slot machine.  No cash prizes are allowed.  You can preview the prize available before each 
play of the game without the insertion of money or anything of value.” 

 
[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070 and 9.46.0331. WSR 15-15-063 (Order 713), § 230-13-067, filed 
7/10/15, effective 8/10/15.] 
  

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.070
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.0331


Option 2A  
At Chair Stearns’ Request 

 
Yellow highlight = Language changed after the April 2016 Commission Meeting 

 
Amended Section 
WAC 230-13-067 Group 12—Electronic puzzle and pattern solving game standards. 

(1) In Group 12 games, players must correctly solve a puzzle to win a game prize, which is 
viewable by the player before each puzzle is presented. 

(12) The game must allow the player to preview the points to be awarded if the puzzle is 
correctly solvedprize that is available before each play of the game without the insertion of 
money or any other thing of value; and 

(23) Prizes are awarded based upon the player's skill in correctly discerning a pattern and 
completing that pattern; and 

(34) When a game presents a potential winning pattern, the puzzle must be capable of 
completion within the predetermined time period; and 

(45) Group 12 amusement games are for adults over the age of twenty-one only and may 
only be operated by licensees where persons under the age of twenty-one are prohibited from 
entering.; and 

(6) The amusement game must prominently display on a sticker or on the screen, “This is not 
a slot machine.  No cash prizes are allowed.  You can preview the points to be awarded if the 
puzzle is correctly solved available before each play of the game without the insertion of money 
or anything of value.” 

 
[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070 and 9.46.0331. WSR 15-15-063 (Order 713), § 230-13-067, filed 
7/10/15, effective 8/10/15.] 
 
 

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.070
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.0331


Budget Proviso 
SECOND ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL 2376 
 
FOR THE GAMBLING COMMISSION 
State Lottery Account: For transfer to gambling revolving account . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,000,000 
 
The transfer in this section is subject to the following conditions and limitations: 
(1) ((The commission shall maintain working capital reserves in the gambling revolving account 
of no more than five percent of projected expenses in the account)) This funding is provided 
solely for the costs of enforcement of gambling activities, including but not limited to evaluation, 
analysis, and dissemination of information on individuals and groups who are suspected of being 
involved in illegal gambling and other associated crimes. 
(2) The commission shall not approve any electronic raffle systems to conduct fifty-fifty raffles 
until the legislature has reviewed all impacts to the state lottery. 
(3) The commission is directed to review and reconsider, including repeal, rules adopted to 
authorize the amusement games classified as group 12 under WAC 230-13-067, recognizing the 
impact such games may have on state lottery revenues used to support public education 
programs. 



 
 
 
 
 

Small business economic impact statement        Page 1 of 8 
 

Small Business Economic Impact Statement – RCW 19.85.040 
Washington State Gambling Commission 

 
May 20, 2016  
 
Proposed Changes to Rules: 
 WAC 230-13-067 Group 12—Electronic puzzle and pattern solving game standards.   
 

This rule change would require group 12 amusement games to prominently display on a 
sticker or on the screen, “This is not a slot machine.  No cash prizes are allowed.  You 
can preview the points to be awarded if the puzzle is correctly solved before each play of 
the game without the insertion of money or anything of value.” 

 
Involvement of Small Businesses:   
 
We filed the Code Revisor’s 101 on March 2, 2016, under WSR# 16-06-130.    
 
On July 2015, the Commissioners approved a new type of amusement game, group 12 
amusement games with the passage of a new rule, WAC 230-13-067.   
 
In October 2015, operators began putting group 12 amusement games into play and a number of 
questions arose regarding the operation, licensure, recordkeeping, and regulatory controls for this 
new type of amusement games.  In an effort to address the questions and get information out to 
stakeholders timely, we started posting information on our website under Breaking News on 
group 12 amusement games.  
 
On November 9, 2015, we sent an email to the Class B and above amusement game licensees 
that we had email addresses for informing them that we had drafted rules for discussion on a 
number of different issues concerning Group 12 amusement games.  (These rules did not include 
this rule change.)   
 
On November 12, 2015, we asked stakeholders that attended the Study Session, which is open to 
the general public, to submit any comments or rule change language, not limited to the rules staff 
drafted, to address the issues surrounding group 12 amusement games to commission staff by 
November 30, 2015.     
 
On December 24, 2015, we sent notice to all commercial and amusement game licensees of the 
updated rule proposals based the feedback we received during the comment period.  We also 
posted the draft rules on our website.    
 
At their February 11, 2016 meeting, the Commissioners asked staff to explore regulating the 
appearance so that the game does not look like a slot machine.  On February 12, 2016, staff 
posted a summary of the Commissioners request for a rule change in the special “Breaking 
News” section of our website for group 12 amusement game information.  We also posted that 
we would hold a stakeholder meeting to discuss all group 12 amusement game rules currently 



 
 
 
 
 

Small business economic impact statement        Page 2 of 8 
 

being discussed, which included the Commissioner’s request for rule change to WAC 230-13-
067.   
 
On February 26, 2016, staff posted in the “Breaking News” section of the website for group 12 
amusement games a summary of the February 22, 2016, stakeholder meeting in which this 
proposed rule was discussed.  
 
At least one week prior to the March 11, 2016 Commission meeting, we posted this rules 
package, which included this specific rule, on our website.   
 
On March 25, 2016, we posted information on this rule as filed by the Commissioners at their 
March 11, 2016, Commission meeting in the special section of our website for group 12 
amusement games.   We also posted that we would be holding a stakeholder meeting to discuss 
all group 12 amusement game rules pending on April 9, 2016.   
 
On April 9, 2016, we held a stakeholder meeting to discuss all group 12 amusement game rules, 
which included all rules in this package, including this specific rule.  
 
At least one week prior to the April 14, 2016, Commission meeting, we posted this rules 
package, including this specific rule, on our website.  
 
At the April 14, 2016, Commission meeting, a Commissioner asked staff to make additional 
changes to the rule to make it clearer.  On April 15, 2016, we posted in the “Breaking News” 
section of our website for group 12 amusement games a summary of the rules discussed and 
action taken by the Commissioners at the April Commission meeting.   
 
At least one week prior to the May 12, 2016, Commission meeting, we posted this rules package, 
along with the Commissioner’s requested language change from the April 2016 Commission 
meeting, on our website.  
 
At the May 12, 2016, Study Session, stakeholders were asked what costs they would incur if the 
rule proposal went into effect.  Stakeholders provided feedback as indicated below. 
 
In summary, the rule proposal to change WAC 230-13-067 was discussed at Study Sessions on 
the following dates:  March 11, 2016, April 14, 2016, and May 12, 2016.  It will also be 
discussed at the Study Session on July 14/15, 2016.  The rule proposal was discussed and public 
comment taken at the Commission meetings on March 11, 2016, April 14, 2016, and May 12, 
2016.  It will also be discussed and public comment will be taken at the July 14/15, 2016, 
Commission meeting.  Lastly, it was discussed at two stakeholder meeting held on February 22, 
2016 and April 9, 2016.  
 
This process provided small businesses opportunities in the development of the new rule.  
 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

 



 
 
 
 
 

Small business economic impact statement        Page 3 of 8 
 

1. Description of the reporting, record keeping and other compliance requirements 
of the proposed rule. 
 
In July 2015, the Commissioners authorized Group 12 amusement games to be played 
by persons 21 and over. Since this time, numerous questions and concerns have been 
raised. 

 
At their February 2016 meeting, the Commissioners asked staff to explore regulating 
the appearance of group 12 amusement games, so that the game does not look like a 
slot machine.  Staff prepared a rule change with two options for consideration at the 
March meeting.  The Commissioners filed the rule option that requires group 12 
amusement game operators to prominently display a sticker or an on-screen warning 
stating: “This is not a slot machine.  No cash prizes are allowed.  You can preview the 
points to be awarded if the puzzle is correctly solved available before each play of the 
game without the insertion of money or anything of value.” 
 

  
2. Kinds of professional services that a small business is likely to need in order to 

comply. 
 

Small business licensees do not need to use any professional services to comply with 
this rule change. Licensees can chose how they will comply with this rule if it goes 
into effect.  They can either put a sticker on each group 12 amusement game or work 
with the manufacturer of the group 12 amusement game to have the game display the 
warning message on the game screen before a game is played.   
 
If operators choose to put a sticker on each group 12 amusement game they own, they 
will need to create and print the sticker.  Licensees should be able to use store bought 
labels and print the warning with a home/work computer and printer.    
 
Alternatively, a licensee would only be able to work with its group 12 amusement 
game manufacturer to place the warning on the manufacturer’s group 12 amusement 
game software. No additional professional services would be needed for this option.   
 

 
3. The actual costs to small businesses of compliance, including costs of equipment, 

supplies, labor and increased administrative costs. 
 

There would be some costs to small business licensees to comply with this rule 
change.  As of May 3, 2016, when we asked amusement game owners to tell us how 
many group 12 amusement games they had in the state, there were about 280 group 
12 amusement games placed at about 135 licensed locations in Washington.  The 
most a single owner had was 128 group 12 amusement games in about 55 locations.  
The second highest number of group 12 amusement games by a single owner is about 
50 in 10 locations.    



 
 
 
 
 

Small business economic impact statement        Page 4 of 8 
 

 
Small business licensees informed us at the  May 2016 Study Session that their costs 
would include printing, labor and gas to print and put the stickers on each their group 
12 amusement games.  Licensees have not provided an actual monetary cost 
associated with this rule change.  
 
We contacted one group 12 amusement game manufacturer who estimated it would 
be a one-time cost of about $1,000 for a software change to display the warning 
message.    
 
Alternatively, creating warning label stickers on a work computer and printer should 
cost less than $5.00 per sticker.  This cost should mostly be a one-time cost unless a 
sticker needed to be replaced.  A box of 1,000 2” x 4” labels, including tax, costs 
about $48.  Additional costs would include: printer ink and gas and labor to place the 
labels onto devices they own.    
 
There would also be a labor cost to track which group 12 amusement games had 
stickers and which did not.  However, we don’t know the labor costs per hour of each 
game owner and the gas it would take to travel to all approximately 135 locations in 
Washington for the approximately 20 game owners. Some of the games are co-
located on the business premises while other games are in locations that are renting 
the games from the group 12 amusement game owner.   
 
Currently, group 12 amusement game owners go to each location in which a game is 
in operation at least once a month to check on the game and withdraw the cash from 
the game.  Therefore, game owners should be able to minimize the cost of compliance 
by placing the warning label onto the machine during one of their regularly scheduled 
visits to service the games. 
 
Game owners would likely incur the same labor, gas and administrative tracking costs 
to install the upgraded software on each group 12 amusement game they owned in 
Washington, which as of May 3, 2016, there were approximately 280 games in about 
135 licensed locations. As stated above, we don’t know the labor costs per hour, 
number of hours and the travel expenses each of the approximate 20 game owners 
would incur to bring each group 12 amusement game into compliance with this rule.   
 

 
4. Whether compliance with the rule, based on feedback received from licensees, 

will cause businesses to lose sales or revenue. 
 
This rule should not cause a small business to lose sales or revenue. Stakeholders 
have not indicated at the two stakeholder meetings and three Study Sessions that 
compliance with this rule will result in loss of sales or revenue.   

 



 
 
 
 
 

Small business economic impact statement        Page 5 of 8 
 

5. A determination of whether the proposed rule will have a disproportionate 
impact on small businesses.  

 
This rule should not have a disproportionate impact on small business licensees. We 
have not received any feedback from small business licensees indicating this 
proposed rule change will cause them a hardship or disproportionately impact them 
compared to larger businesses. 
 
All licensees that put a group 12 amusement game into play will have to comply with 
this rule regardless of the size of their business.  The costs for compliance with each 
licensee to put stickers on their group 12 amusement games will depend on the 
number of games they own, the proximately of the games to their business, and their 
labor costs.   
 
We currently have three out-of-state manufacturers of group 12 amusement games.  
These manufacturers are not currently licensed and they are privately owned 
businesses.  Therefore, we do not know if they qualify as a small business.  If any are 
qualified to be considered a small business, we do not expect this rule to have 
disproportionate impact on them   
 
Additionally, it is difficult to determine if our small business licensees will be 
disproportionately impacted without their input.  This is a new activity with the first 
group 12 amusement game approved at the end of September 2015.  We do not yet 
have any financial information on the operation of the group 12 amusement games by 
their owners. We are, therefore, unable to know the total impact at this time unless 
licensees provide us information showing how this rule change would 
disproportionately impact them.   
 

 
6. Steps taken by the agency to reduce the costs of the rule on small businesses or 

reasonable justification for not doing so. Agencies “must consider, without 
limitation, each of the following methods of reducing the impact of the proposed 
rule on small businesses:”  
 
a. Reducing, modifying, or eliminating substantive regulatory requirements; 

 
This is a proposed rule for consumer protection to ensure players know group 12 
amusement games do not operate as a gambling activity even though it can look 
similar to a slot machine.  The Commissioners initially looked into prohibiting 
group 12 amusement games from looking like slot machines.  This would have 
placed a much higher burden on licensees and the proposed rule reduced the 
burden on licensees to only require them to place a warning sticker or have a 
warning label on the game screen before play of the game.   
 



 
 
 
 
 

Small business economic impact statement        Page 6 of 8 
 

Additionally, this rule offers flexibility by allowing licensees to choose how they 
wish to comply with this rule. This also reduces the possible impacts on the 
licensee and allows the licensee to choose the cheapest, easiest way to provide 
consumer protection while complying with the rule. 
 

b. Simplifying, reducing, or eliminating recordkeeping and reporting 
requirements; 
 
This rule change does not require any additional recordkeeping or reporting 
requirements.   
 

c. Reducing the frequency of inspections; 
 
This rule will not require additional inspections.  Verification of the sticker on the 
games can be done during routine inspections to verify licensure, identification 
stamp, and other operational requirements.  
 

d. Delaying compliance timetables; 
 
Delaying compliance is impractical because it is in the public interest to provide 
this consumer protection.  Additionally, the rule provides low-cost and flexible 
options for compliance negating any need to delay compliance with this rule 
should it become final.  

 
e. Reducing or modifying fine schedules for noncompliance; or 

 
There is no fine schedule related to this rule.  Any finding of noncompliance with 
this rule would likely be handled like all other amusement game violations, which 
is a progressive enforcement model that includes verbal warnings, written 
warnings, fines, suspension, and revocation.  Our goal is to seek voluntary 
compliance with our licensees through education and training.   
 

f. Any other mitigation techniques including those suggested by small 
businesses or small business advocates.  

 
Only one small business licensee has requested or suggested any mitigation 
techniques for the implementation of this rule change. One licensee suggested we 
create and supply the stickers to the operators.  We have determined that it is 
more efficient and cost effective for licensees to have the flexibility to print their 
own warning stickers and replace them or create a message on the electronic 
game itself.  This provides them the greatest flexibility with the least amount of 
reliance on the agency for compliance with this rule.  Additionally, licensees 
would still incur the labor and travel costs for installation of the sticker onto each 
group 12 amusement game regardless of who prints the stickers.    

 



 
 
 
 
 

Small business economic impact statement        Page 7 of 8 
 

7. A description of how the Gambling Commission will involve small businesses in 
the development of the rule. 

 
In December 2015, we sent notices of rulemaking to all amusement game licensees 
regarding rules for group 12 amusement games.   
 
At their February 11, 2016, Commission meeting during a discussion of other group 
12 amusement game rules, the Commissioners asked staff to explore regulating the 
appearance so that the group 12 game does not look like a slot machine.  On February 
12, 2016, staff posted a summary of the Commissioners’ request for a rule change in 
the special “Breaking News” section of our website for group 12 amusement game 
information.  We also posted that we would hold a stakeholder meeting to discuss all 
group 12 amusement game rules currently being discussed, which included the 
Commissioner’s request for rule change to WAC 230-13-067.   

 
On February 26, 2016, staff posted in the Breaking News section of the website for 
group 12 amusement games a summary of the February 22, 2016, stakeholder 
meeting in which this proposed rule was discussed.  

 
At least one week prior to the March 11, 2016 Commission meeting, we posted this 
rules package, which included this specific rule, on our website.   

 
On March 25, 2016, we posted information on this rule as filed by the Commissioners 
at their March 11, 2016, Commission meeting in the Breaking News section of our 
website for group 12 amusement games.   We also posted that we would be holding a 
stakeholder meeting to discuss all group 12 amusement game rules pending on April 
9, 2016.   

 
On April 15, 2016, we posted in the Breaking News section of our website for group 
12 amusement games a summary of the rules discussed and action taken by the 
Commissioners at the April Commission meeting.   

 
The rules proposal to change WAC 230-13-067 was discussed at Study Sessions on 
the following dates:  March 11, 2016, April 14, 2016, and May 12, 2016.  It will also 
be discussed at the Study Session on July 14/15, 2016.  In addition, the rule proposal 
was discussed and public comment taken at the Commission meetings on March 11, 
2016, April 14, 2016, and May 12, 2016.  It will also be discussed and public 
comment will be taken at the July 14/15, 2016, Commission meeting. 

 
At the April 11, 2016, Commission meeting, a Commissioner asked staff to make 
additional changes to the rule to make it clearer.  The language changes were posted 
on the agency website with the May 2016 Commission meeting agenda at least one 
week before the meeting.   At the May 12, 2016, Study Session, stakeholders were 
asked what costs they would incur if the rule proposal went into effect.  Stakeholders 
provided feedback, as indicated above. 



 
 
 
 
 

Small business economic impact statement        Page 8 of 8 
 

8. A list of industries that will be required to comply with the rule. 
7132.  (Leave this number here) 
 

 9.  An estimate of the number of jobs that will be created or lost as the result of  
  compliance with the proposed rule.  

 
There is no evidence that any jobs will be created or lost as a result of this rule 
change. Small business licensees have not indicated any jobs would be created or lost 
as a result of compliance with this proposed rule change from the three Study 
Sessions and two stakeholder meetings we have discussed this rule change.  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TAB 3: July 2016 Commission Meeting Agenda.               Statutory Authority 9.46.070, 9.46.0201                                                                                                             
 

Who proposed the rule changes? 
Staff. 

Proposed Changes 
Bold/Underline = Changes made after the May 2016 Commission Meeting 
 
In July 2015, the Commissioners authorized Group 12 amusement games to be played by persons 21 and 
over. Since this time, numerous questions and concerns have been raised. 
 
These rules address: 

• Recordkeeping; and  
• The non-transferability of tokens.   

Currently, amusement game operators are only required to notify us once a year of the amusement games 
they have.  They are also only required to report their overall amusement game gross receipts.  With this 
rule change, we will know where Group 12 amusement games are being operated so we can conduct 
compliance inspections and the gross receipts these games are bringing in.  
 
For group 12 amusement games, coupons, tickets, tokens or tokens on an electronic token cards are 
nontransferable, such as player tracking systems, customer rewards systems, etc.  Prohibiting the tokens 
from being transferred will help ensure that cash is not, in the end, awarded.   
 
Version 2 was added to two rules for filing for further discussion at the July Commission meeting.  
The changes are as follows: 

• WAC 230-13-170(1)(a) and -170(2)(a) – (c) no longer strike the word gambling from the 
rules.  Gross gambling receipts is defined in WAC 230-06-150.  Removing the word would 
require a new rule to define “gross receipts”; and  

• WAC 230-13-170(1)(a)(i-ii) clarifies that licensees would need to track group 12 amusement 
game gross gambling receipts separately from the combined gross gambling receipts from 
groups 1 through 11; and  

• WAC 230-13-005 (4)(b)(iii) Allows licensees to electronically store coupons, tickets, tokens or 
tokens on an electronic token card onto an amusement game accounting system that cannot 
be commingled with any tracking, reward, or other gambling related redemption system. 

A Small Business Economic Impact Statement was prepared and is attached. 
 
 
 

 

 

Amend: 
WAC 230-13-075 Assigning and reporting group numbers of authorized          
                              amusement games. 
WAC 230-13-170 Recordkeeping for commercial amusement games. 
WAC 230-07-125 Recordkeeping requirements for lower volume charitable or  
                              nonprofit organizations. 
WAC 230-13-005 Amusement games authorized. 
 
July 2016 – Further Discussion  
June 2016 – No Meeting 
May 2016 – Further Discussion 
April 2016 – Further Discussion 
March 2016 – Up for Discussion and Possible Filing 



Attachments: 
• Budget Proviso (the following language was included in the budget passed by the legislature): 

            “The commission is directed to review and reconsider, including repeal, rules adopted to authorize       
            the amusement games classified as group 12 under WAC 230-13-067, recognizing the impact such  
            games may have on state lottery revenues used to support public education programs.” 

• Email from Monty Harmon. 
• Small Business Economic Impact Statement. 

Licensee Impacts 
• As of April 2016, we have approximately 385 Group 12 amusement games in Washington.   
• As of February 8, 2016, there were approximately 430 Group 12 amusement games in Washington.   
• Licensees would be required to notify us within 30 days of putting into play or removing from play 

Group 12 amusement games.  Notification would be in the format we require, which could be done 
by submitting a paper form or through My Account.   

• Licensees would be required to record and report gross receipts from Group 12 amusement games 
separately from the gross receipts of other amusement games. 

• Licensees would be able to allow players to store prize points won on an electronic token card for 
redemption at a future date.  Group 12 amusement games currently in operation do not accept 
electronic token cards, but other amusement games, Groups 1 through 11, do. 

• Licensees would be able to electronically store coupons, tickets, tokens or tokens on an 
electronic token card onto an amusement game accounting system that cannot be 
commingled with any tracking, reward, or other gambling related redemption system.     

Agency Impacts 
• Staff will need to develop a form and possible My Account reporting for licensees to report when 

they put Group 12 amusement games into play and when they remove games from play. 
• Staff will need to make a change to the annual amusement game activity report to collect gambling 

receipts information from Group 12 amusement games. 
Statements Supporting or Opposing the Proposed Rule Change 

We have received one written statement.  See attached. 
Staff Recommendation 

Further discussion.  
 Staff is recommending Commissioner file Version 2 of WAC 230-13-005 for further discussion.   

Proposed Effective Date for Rule Change 
31 days from filing. 

 
  



Amended Section 

WAC 230-13-075 Assigning and reporting group numbers of authorized amusement 
games. 

(1) Amusement game licensees must determine the authorized group number of each game 
and prepare a list of all games they plan to operate during each license year. They must submit 
this list to us with their activity report. The list must contain, at least, the name and group 
number of each game. 

(2) Amusement game licensees must notify us within 30 days of putting into play and 
removing from play a group 12 amusement game.  Reporting must be in the format we require.   
 
[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-15-064 (Order 612), § 230-13-075, filed 7/16/07, effective 
1/1/08.] 
 

  

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.070


Original Version filed at the March 2016 Meeting 

Amended Section 

WAC 230-13-170 Recordkeeping for commercial amusement games. 

(1) Amusement game licensees must prepare a detailed record for each location where they 
operate games. They must retain the records for at least three years. The records must include 
details necessary to determine: 

(a) Gross gambling receipts received from players from each group of amusement game; and 
(b) Value of prizes awarded to winners. 
(2) Records must include, at least: 
(a) The gross gambling receipts collected from amusement games at each location, with 

receipting records; and 
(b) An entry for each withdrawal of receipts from the games. Coin or token activated 

amusement games only require an entry of the ending meter reading, the number of plays, and 
gross gambling receipts at the end of each month; and 

(c) A summary of the operation of the activity. This includes, at least, coin-in meter readings 
and gross gambling receipts. Operators must provide these coin-in meter readings and gross 
gambling receipts to charitable or nonprofit organizations each time they service a game or 
disburse money. 

(3) Licensees must report at least monthly the number and actual cost of merchandise prizes 
awarded for each location. 

(4) For amusement games that issue tickets for the redemption of prizes, licensees must at 
least log the beginning and ending nonresettable ticket out meters or ticket numbers during each 
collection of funds from each game. 

(5) Licensees must provide the full details for all amusement game operating expenses. 
[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-15-064 (Order 612), § 230-13-170, filed 7/16/07, effective 
1/1/08.] 

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.070


Version 2 Up for Filing for Further Discussion at the July 2016 Commission meeting. 

Changes are in Yellow 

Amended Section 

WAC 230-13-170 Recordkeeping for commercial amusement games. 

(1) Amusement game licensees must prepare a detailed record for each location where they 
operate games. They must retain the records for at least three years. The records must include 
details necessary to determine: 

(a) Gross gambling receipts received from players from:  
(i)  each gGroup 1 through 11of amusement games; and 
(ii) Group 12 amusement games; and  

(b) Value of prizes awarded to winners. 
(2) Records must include, at least: 
(a) The gross gambling receipts collected from amusement games at each location, with 

receipting records; and 
(b) An entry for each withdrawal of receipts from the games. Coin or token activated 

amusement games only require an entry of the ending meter reading, the number of plays, and 
gross gambling receipts at the end of each month; and 

(c) A summary of the operation of the activity. This includes, at least, coin-in meter readings 
and gross gambling receipts. Operators must provide these coin-in meter readings and gross 
gambling receipts to charitable or nonprofit organizations each time they service a game or 
disburse money. 

(3) Licensees must report at least monthly the number and actual cost of merchandise prizes 
awarded for each location. 

(4) For amusement games that issue tickets for the redemption of prizes, licensees must at 
least log the beginning and ending nonresettable ticket out meters or ticket numbers during each 
collection of funds from each game. 

(5) Licensees must provide the full details for all amusement game operating expenses. 
[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-15-064 (Order 612), § 230-13-170, filed 7/16/07, effective 
1/1/08.] 
 
  

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.070


Amended Section 

WAC 230-07-125 Recordkeeping requirements for lower volume charitable or nonprofit 
organizations. 

(1) Organizations operating without a license under RCW 9.46.0315 or 9.46.0321 and lower 
volume charitable or nonprofit licensees must keep a set of permanent monthly records of the 
gambling activities. Lower volume licensees include: 

(a) Fund-raising events; 
(b) Bingo (Classes A, B, and C); 
(c) Raffles (Classes A, B, C, and D); 
(d) Amusement games (Classes A, B, C, and D); and 
(e) Card games (Classes A, B, and C). 
(2) The monthly records must include, at least: 
(a) The gross receipts from each activity; 
(b) The gross receipts from group 12 amusement games; 
(bc) The total amount of cash prizes actually paid out; 
(cd) The total of the cost to the licensee of all merchandise prizes actually paid out for each 

activity; 
(de) A summary of all expenses related to each of the activities; and 
(ef) The net income received from the activity, the purpose(s) for which the net income was 

raised, and the amount paid to each recipient. 
(3) Licensees must keep these records for three years from the end of the license year for 

which the record was created. 
(4) Organizations operating under RCW 9.46.0315 or 9.46.0321 must maintain their records 

for one year. 
[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-10-032 (Order 609), § 230-07-125, filed 4/24/07, effective 
1/1/08.] 
 
 
  

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.0315
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.0321
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.0315
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.0321
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.070


Original Version filed at the March Meeting 
 
Amended Section 
WAC 230-13-005 Amusement games authorized. 

(1) We authorize the approved groups of amusement games set forth in this chapter. 
Operators must only operate amusement games that meet the standards of at least one of the 
authorized groups. 

(2) Commercial businesses or nonprofit or charitable organizations may apply for licenses for 
amusement games. 

(3) Charitable or nonprofit organizations also may conduct amusement games without a 
license when authorized to do so under RCW 9.46.0321 and 9.46.0331. 

(4) Operators must operate amusement games as either: 
(a) An attended amusement game. 
(i) An "attended amusement game" means an amusement game that requires the presence or 

assistance of a person (attendant) in the regular operation of the game; and 
(ii) These games must award a merchandise prize to players if players achieve the objective 

with one cost of play; or 
(b) A coin or token activated amusement game. 
(i) A "coin or token activated amusement game" means an amusement game that uses a 

mechanical, electronic, or electro-mechanical machine to allow the player to activate the game 
by inserting coins, or tokens, or tokens on an electronic token card; and 

(ii) These games may dispense merchandise prizes, or coupons, tickets, or tokens, or tokens 
onto an electronic token card redeemable for merchandise prizes.; and 

(iii) For group 12 amusement games, coupons, tickets, tokens or tokens on an electronic 
token cards are nontransferable, such as player tracking systems, customer rewards systems, etc.  

 (5) Amusement games must not award additional plays as prizes. 
(6) Electronic token card means a card issued by the operator that stores purchased credits 

available to play the amusement game separate from the coupons, tickets, or tokens awarded or 
dispensed as prizes from the play of the amusement game. Coupons, tickets, or tokens awarded 
as prizes cannot be used to play amusement games and must only be redeemed for merchandise 
prizes.   
[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070 and 9.46.0331. WSR 15-15-063 (Order 713), § 230-13-005, filed 
7/10/15, effective 8/10/15. Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-15-064 (Order 612), § 230-13-
005, filed 7/16/07, effective 1/1/08.] 
  

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.0321
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.0331
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.070
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.0331
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.070


Version 2 Up for Filing for Further Discussion at the July 2016 Commission meeting. 
 

Changes are in Yellow 
 
(Effective July 15, 2016.) 
WAC 230-13-005 Amusement games authorized. 

(1) We authorize the approved groups of amusement games set forth in this chapter. 
Operators must only operate amusement games that meet the standards of at least one of the 
authorized groups. 

(2) Commercial businesses or nonprofit or charitable organizations may apply for licenses for 
amusement games. 

(3) Charitable or nonprofit organizations also may conduct group 1 through 11 amusement 
games without a license when authorized to do so under RCW 9.46.0321 and 9.46.0331. 

(4) Operators must operate amusement games as either: 
(a) An attended amusement game. 
(i) An "attended amusement game" means an amusement game that requires the presence or 

assistance of a person (attendant) in the regular operation of the game; and 
(ii) These games must award a merchandise prize to players if players achieve the objective 

with one cost of play; and 
(iii) An attendant accepts cash, check, tickets or scrip to play the amusement game. The 

tickets and scrip are not redeemable for cash and must show the name of the operator or sponsor; 
or 

(b) A coin or token activated amusement game. 
(i) A "coin or token activated amusement game" means an amusement game that uses a 

mechanical, electronic, or electro-mechanical machine to allow the player to activate the game 
by inserting coins, cash, tokens, or tokens on an electronic token card; and 

(ii) These games may dispense merchandise prizes, or coupons, tickets, tokens, or tokens 
onto an electronic token card redeemable for merchandise prizes. 

(iii) Coupons, tickets, tokens or tokens on an electronic token card can be electronically 
stored for redemption under this section as long as the coupons, tickets, tokens or tokens on an 
electronic token card are: 

(A) Deposited into, and tracked on, a separate amusement game accounting system; and  
(B) Not commingled with any tracking, reward, or other gambling related redemption 
systems; and  
(C) Redeemed only for merchandise prizes.   
(5) Amusement games must not: 
(a) Award additional plays as prizes; or 
(b) Allow coupons, tickets, tokens or tokens on electronic token cards that are awarded to be 

replayed; or 
(c) Result in any cash payment being awarded. 
(6) Amusement games must only award merchandise prizes. 
(a) Merchandise prizes mean noncash prizes including toys, novelties, retail items such as 

electronic goods, clothing, accessories, as well as food, beverages and other items sold by the 
operator as a normal part of their business in compliance with all other state laws and 
regulations, except as provided in (b) of this subsection. 

(b) Pull-tabs and other gambling activities, gift certificates or gift cards do not constitute 
merchandise prizes. 

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.0321
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.0331


(7) Electronic token card means a card issued by the operator that stores purchased credits 
available to play the amusement game separate from the coupons, tickets, or tokens awarded or 
dispensed as prizes from the play of the amusement game. Coupons, tickets, or tokens awarded 
as prizes cannot be used to play amusement games and must only be redeemed for merchandise 
prizes. 

 
[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070, 9.46.0201. WSR 16-09-045 (Order 719), § 230-13-005, 
filed 4/15/16, effective 7/15/16. Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070 and 9.46.0331. WSR 15-15-
063 (Order 713), § 230-13-005, filed 7/10/15, effective 8/10/15. Statutory Authority: RCW 
9.46.070. WSR 07-15-064 (Order 612), § 230-13-005, filed 7/16/07, effective 1/1/08.] 
 

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.070
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.0201
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.070
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.0331
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.070


Budget Proviso 
SECOND ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL 2376 
 
FOR THE GAMBLING COMMISSION 
State Lottery Account: For transfer to gambling revolving account . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,000,000 
 
The transfer in this section is subject to the following conditions and limitations: 
(1) ((The commission shall maintain working capital reserves in the gambling revolving account 
of no more than five percent of projected expenses in the account)) This funding is provided 
solely for the costs of enforcement of gambling activities, including but not limited to evaluation, 
analysis, and dissemination of information on individuals and groups who are suspected of being 
involved in illegal gambling and other associated crimes. 
(2) The commission shall not approve any electronic raffle systems to conduct fifty-fifty raffles 
until the legislature has reviewed all impacts to the state lottery. 
(3) The commission is directed to review and reconsider, including repeal, rules adopted to 
authorize the amusement games classified as group 12 under WAC 230-13-067, recognizing the 
impact such games may have on state lottery revenues used to support public education 
programs. 



From: Monty Harmon
To: Griffin, Tina (GMB)
Subject: Amusement game rules
Date: Tuesday, March 29, 2016 5:02:21 PM

Tina,

Thank you for requesting input on the Amusement Rules.

I would like the following changes to the proposed rules:

WAC 230-13-005  -  Please eliminate section 4.b.iii

   Staff does not need to restrict the token record systems.  We developed a system separate from other player reward
 accounts that should be allowed under the rules and not prohibited.

WAC 230-13-005 (6)   please amend the last sentence to read  "Coupons, Tickets or Tokens awarded as prizes
 cannot be used to play amusement games once dispensed.  Once dispensed from a machine they must only be
 redeemed for merchandise prizes.

Thank you

Monty Harmon

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: 
This electronic transmission (and/or the documents accompanying it) may contain confidential information
 belonging to the sender.  The information is proprietary and is intended solely for the use of the individual or entity
 named above.   If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying,
 distribution or the taking of any action in reliance on the contents of this information is strictly prohibited.  If you
 have received this transmission in error, please notify this office immediately to arrange for the return of the
 documents.  Thank you.
Please do not print this e-mail unless you really need to. Thanks!

mailto:montyharmon@juno.com
mailto:tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov


 
 
 
 
 

Small business economic impact statement        Page 1 of 9 
 

Small Business Economic Impact Statement – RCW 19.85.040 
Washington State Gambling Commission 

 
May 20, 2016  
 
Proposed Changes to Rules: 
 WAC 230-13-075 Assigning and reporting group numbers of authorized amusement  

games.    
WAC 230-13-170 Recordkeeping for commercial amusement games. 
WAC 230-07-125 Recordkeeping requirements for lower volume charitable or nonprofit  

organizations. 
WAC 230-13-005 Amusement games authorized. 
 
This rules package would: 

• Require licensees to notify us within 30 days of putting into play and removing 
from play a group 12 amusement game in the format we require. 

• Require licensees record gross gambling receipts received from players for group 
12 amusement games separately from the gross gambling receipts from groups 1 
through 11. 

• Allow coupons, tickets, tokens or tokens on an electronic token card dispensed 
from a group 12 amusement game to be stored for redemption under this rule on a 
system that does not commingle the coupons, tickets, tokens or tokens on an 
electronic token card with anything else. 
 

Involvement of Small Businesses:   
 
We filed the Code Revisor’s 101 on March 2, 2016, under WSR# 16-06-130.   
 
On July 2015, the Commissioners approved a new type of amusement game, group 12 
amusement games with the passage of a new rule.     
 
In October 2015, operators began putting group 12 amusement games into play and a number of 
questions arose regarding the operation, licensure, recordkeeping, and regulatory controls for this 
new type of amusement games.  In an effort to address the questions and get information out to 
stakeholders timely, we started posting information on our website under Breaking News on 
group 12 amusement games.  
 
On November 9, 2015, we sent an email to the Class B and above amusement game licensees 
that we had email addresses for informing them that we had drafted rules for discussion on a 
number of different issues concerning Group 12 amusement games.  (These rules did not include 
this rule change.)   
 
On November 12, 2015, we asked stakeholders that attended the Study Session, which is open to 
the general public, to submit any comments or rule change language, not limited to the rules staff 



 
 
 
 
 

Small business economic impact statement        Page 2 of 9 
 

drafted, to address the issues surrounding group 12 amusement games to commission staff by 
November 30, 2015.     
 
On December 24, 2015, we sent notice to all commercial and amusement game licensees of the 
updated rule proposals based the feedback we received during the comment period.  We also 
posted the draft rules on our website.    
 
In February 2016, while other group 12 amusement game rules were being considered, staff put 
this rules package together, which included this specific rule, to address some other regulatory 
concerns with group 12 amusement games.   
 
At least one week prior to the March 11, 2016 Commission meeting, we posted this rules 
package on our website.   
 
On March 25, 2016, we posted information on this rules package as filed by the Commissioners 
at their March 11, 2016, Commission meeting in the special “Breaking News” section of our 
website for group 12 amusement games.   We also posted that we would be holding a stakeholder 
meeting to discuss all group 12 amusement game rules pending on April 9, 2016, to include this 
rules package, which included this specific rule.   
 
On April 9, 2016, we held a stakeholder meeting to discuss all group 12 amusement game rules, 
which included all rules in this package, which included this specific rule.    
  
At least one week prior to the April 14, 2016, Commission meeting, we posted this rules package 
on our website, which included this specific rule.    
 
On April 15, 2016, we posted in the special section of our website for group 12 amusement 
games a summary of the rules discussed and action taken by the Commissioners at the April 
Commission meeting.   
 
At least one week prior to the May 12, 2016, Commission meeting, we posted this rules package 
on our website, which included this specific rule.  
 
At the May 12, 2016, Study Session, stakeholders were asked what costs they would incur if the 
rule proposal went into effect.  Stakeholders provided feedback as indicated below. 
 
A meeting was held on May 19, 2016, with the stakeholder that wanted to explore possible 
options to the rule language being proposed.     
 
In summary, the proposed rule changes were discussed at Study Sessions on the following dates:  
March 11, 2016, April 14, 2016, and May 12, 2016.  It will also be discussed at the Study 
Session on July 14/15, 2016.  The rule proposal was discussed and public comment taken at the 
Commission meetings on March 11, 2016, April 14, 2016, and May 12, 2016.  It will also be 
discussed and public comment will be taken at the July 14/15, 2016, Commission meeting.  The 



 
 
 
 
 

Small business economic impact statement        Page 3 of 9 
 

proposed changes were discussed at a stakeholder meeting on April 9, 2016 and with one 
stakeholder on May 19, 2016 to discuss possible changes to the proposed language.  
 
This process provided small businesses opportunities in the development of the new rule.  
 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

 
1. Description of the reporting, record keeping and other compliance requirements 

of the proposed rule. 
 
In July 2015, the Commissioners authorized Group 12 amusement games to be played 
by persons 21 and over with the passage of one rule. Since this time, numerous 
questions and concerns have been raised surrounding the operation and regulation of 
group 12 amusement games.  We have discovered that more rules were needed with 
the new activity.   

 
Reporting Requirement – This rules package requires amusement game licensees to 
notify us within 30 days of placing a group 12 amusement game into play or 
removing it from play.   
 
Currently, amusement game licensees are only required to report to us the amusement 
games they have in play once a year.  Without this rule change, we have no way of 
knowing where these games, which have been of great interest and have been 
controversial, are placed.  This will allow us to know, within a 30 day window, where 
and how many group 12 amusement games are in the state.  
 
Recordkeeping Requirement – This rules package requires licensees that operate 
group 12 amusement games to record gross gambling receipts of group 12 games 
separate from the gross gambling receipts of group 1 through 11 amusement games.  
 
Currently, amusement game licensees must record the combined gross gambling 
receipts of amusement games regardless of the group or type of amusement game 
they operate.   
 
Nontransferability of tokens awarded on group 12 amusement games – This rule 
package allows coupons, tickets, tokens or tokens on an electronic token card 
dispensed from a group 12 amusement game to be stored for redemption on a system 
that does not commingle the coupons, tickets, tokens or tokens on an electronic token 
card with anything else. 
 
This will prevent group 12 amusement game licensees from circumventing the 
prohibition against gift cards/cash by allowing cash/gift cards to be awarded through 
a player tracking or customer reward system.  By not allowing operators to transfer 
tokens awarded from a group 12 amusement game, licensees will be required to 



 
 
 
 
 

Small business economic impact statement        Page 4 of 9 
 

follow the redemption and operation requirements set out in RCW 9.46.0201 and 
WAC 230-13-005. 
 

2. Kinds of professional services that a small business is likely to need in order to 
comply. 

 
Small businesses should not need any additional professional services other than 
those accounting services that may be currently used to assist with current reporting 
and record keeping requirements. 
 
Reporting requirement – Professional services will not be needed for small businesses 
to comply with this portion of the rule change.  Licensees can provide the required 
information through the Commission’s My Account, which licensees are required to 
use to renew their license.  My Account is an on-line account, customized for each 
licensee.  For those licensees that do not have a computer, they will have to submit a 
form.  The information required to be submitted to the Commission to comply with 
this rule will likely be the name of licensee, name and address of the licensed location 
where the game is physically located, the approved group 12 amusement game(s) 
placed or removed, the date the game(s) was placed or removed, and the number of 
approved group 12 amusement games placed or removed.   
 
Recordkeeping requirement – Rules already require commercial and nonprofit 
amusement game licensees to record and report amusement game gross receipts.  
Licensees record and report the combined gross receipts from all group 1 through 11 
amusement games they operate.  Licensees may be using professional services to 
comply with the current rule.  The proposed rule would require licensees to add to 
their records a separate line item for group 12 gross receipts and report that to us 
separate from their total group 1 through 11 amusement game gross receipts.   
 
Nontransferability of tokens awarded from group 12 amusement games – Professional 
services will not be required for group 12 amusement game operators to comply with 
this rule proposal.  This portion of the rules package allow coupons, tickets, tokens or 
tokens on an electronic token card dispensed from a group 12 amusement game to be 
stored for redemption under this rule on a system that does not commingle the 
coupons, tickets, tokens or tokens on an electronic token card with anything else. 
Conversely, it will not allow group 12 amusement game operators to transfer 
coupons, tickets, tokens or tokens on an electronic storage card awarded from a group 
12 amusement game to another system, such as a player tracking or customer rewards 
system.  Group 12 amusement game operators will have to redeem the actual 
coupons, tickets, tokens or tokens on an electronic storage card dispensed from the 
game.  
 
The rule already requires group 12 amusement games to dispense coupons, tickets, 
tokens or tokens on an electronic token card to be redeemed for merchandise prizes.  



 
 
 
 
 

Small business economic impact statement        Page 5 of 9 
 

No modifications to the amusement games would be required to comply with this 
rule.  
 

3. The actual costs to small businesses of compliance, including costs of equipment, 
supplies, labor and increased administrative costs. 

 
Cost should be minimal, if any, to small businesses. 
 
Reporting – The cost for complying with this portion of the rule change will be labor 
costs to do the reporting and any mailing costs if the licensee does not have a 
computer.  The information most likely required to be reported will be the name of 
licensee, name and address of the licensed location where the game is physically 
located, the approved group 12 amusement game(s) placed or removed, the date the 
game(s) was placed or removed, and the number of approved group 12 amusement 
games placed or removed. 
 
Small business licensees should be familiar with their obligations to report certain 
business information to us within 30 days from the event.  All reporting will be done 
through My Account, a free online program that all licensees must use for other 
reporting and to renew their licenses.  Those licensees that do not have a computer or 
that find it easier to fill out a form can do so and mail it in to us. .     
 
 
Recordkeeping – There should be minimal increased administrative costs to develop a 
new line item and record the gross receipts for group 12 amusement games separately 
from the group 1 through 11 amusement games they operate.  Small business 
licensees already must track and record the gross receipts from group 12 activity with 
the other amusement game gross receipts for other state agencies.  There should also 
be minimal increased administrative costs to report the total group 12 amusement 
game gross receipts.  Small business licensees already must track and report all 
amusement game gross receipts to us.   This rule change solely requires them to 
separate group 12 gross receipts from receipts from groups 1-11.  
 
Nontransferability of coupons, tickets, tokens or tokens on an electronic token card 
dispensed by a group 12 amusement game – There should be no additional costs for 
compliance with the rule proposal.  Currently our rules require all group 12 
amusement games to dispense coupons, tickets, tokens or tokens on an electronic 
token card.  This rule proposal would allow coupons, tickets, tokens or tokens on an 
electronic token card dispensed from a group 12 amusement game to be stored for 
redemption under this rule on a system that does not commingle the coupons, tickets, 
tokens or tokens on an electronic token card with anything else. 
   
 
  
 



 
 
 
 
 

Small business economic impact statement        Page 6 of 9 
 

 
4. Whether compliance with the rule, based on feedback received from licensees, 

will cause businesses to lose sales or revenue. 
 
This rule should not cause a small business to lose sales or revenue.  One small 
business licensee with 49 group 12 amusement games in operation at 10 licensed 
locations in Washington indicated that he spent at least $7,500 on a software program 
allowing him to store group 12 amusement game tokens on his player tracking 
system.  This licensee indicated he will close down all of his group 12 amusement 
games in the state if this rule is passed.  However, he did not share how sales or 
revenue would be affected by this rule change.   
 
No other small business stakeholders indicated any possible loss of sales or revenue 
at the April 9, 2016, stakeholder meeting; the April 14, 2016 Study Session or 
Commission meeting; or at the May 12, 2016 Study Session or Commission meeting. 

 
5. A determination of whether the proposed rule will have a disproportionate 

impact on small businesses.  
 

This rule should not have a disproportionate impact on small businesses.  All 
licensees with group 12 amusement games in play will have to comply with this rule 
regardless of the size of their business.   
 

 
6. Steps taken by the agency to reduce the costs of the rule on small businesses or 

reasonable justification for not doing so. Agencies “must consider, without 
limitation, each of the following methods of reducing the impact of the proposed 
rule on small businesses:”  
 
a. Reducing, modifying, or eliminating substantive regulatory requirements; 

 
Group 12 amusement games were approved by the Commissioners in July 2015 
with the passage of one rule to allow the games.  Since that time, we have 
determined that more rules are necessary to regulate the activity.   
 
The Commission kept the reporting timeline, 30 days from placing into or 
removing from play, the same as it has for all other reportable information.  We 
also will make the form available on our My Account to make reporting as easy 
as possible for licensees.  
 
Licensees could allow coupons, tickets, tokens or tokens on an electronic token 
card dispensed from a group 12 amusement game to be stored for redemption 
under this rule on a system that does not commingle the coupons, tickets, tokens 
or tokens on an electronic token card with anything else. 
 



 
 
 
 
 

Small business economic impact statement        Page 7 of 9 
 

b. Simplifying, reducing, or eliminating recordkeeping and reporting 
requirements; 
 
The Commission is only requiring licensees to separately report group 12 
amusement game gross receipts.  The reporting requirement is simplified by 
allowing group 12 gross receipts to be reported online through My Account, 
which is available to licensees when they report their amusement game gross 
receipts now.  Licensees are still allowed to report their combined group 1 
through 11 gross receipts. .   
 
Additionally, reporting the placement or removal of group 12 amusement games 
can simply be done online through My Account.  The Commission is only 
requiring limited information, such as the name of licensee, name and address of 
the licensed location where the game is physically located, the approved group 12 
amusement game(s) placed or removed, the date the game(s) was placed or 
removed, and the number of approved group 12 amusement games placed or 
removed.  
 

c. Reducing the frequency of inspections; 
 
This rule will not require additional inspections.  Verification of compliance with 
these rules can be done during routine inspections to verify licensure, 
identification stamp, and other operational requirements.  
 

d. Delaying compliance timetables; 
 
Delaying compliance is unnecessary because the cost for compliance is minimal 
and these rules are necessary for monitoring and regulating these new electronic 
amusement games.     

 
e. Reducing or modifying fine schedules for noncompliance; or 

 
There is no fine schedule related to this rule.  Any finding of noncompliance with 
this rule would likely be handled like all other amusement game violations, which 
is a progressive enforcement model that includes verbal warnings, written 
warnings, fines, suspension, and revocation.  Our goal is to seek voluntary 
compliance with our licensees through education and training.   
 

f. Any other mitigation techniques including those suggested by small 
businesses or small business advocates.  

 
Only one small business licensee has requested or suggested any mitigation 
techniques for the implementation of this rule change.  This licensee’s suggestion 
was to withdraw the rule change regarding nontransferability of tokens dispensed 



 
 
 
 
 

Small business economic impact statement        Page 8 of 9 
 

from a group 12 amusement game.  The licensee did not suggest an alternative 
rule that would mitigate any cost the rule would have to his small business.  
 
The Commission considered changes to the original proposed rule language and 
has changed the language to allow coupons, tickets, tokens or tokens on an 
electronic token card dispensed from a group 12 amusement game to be stored for 
redemption under this rule on a system that does not commingle the coupons, 
tickets, tokens or tokens on an electronic token card with anything else. 
 
The Commission has a responsibility to prevent amusement game licensees from 
circumventing the prohibition against gift cards/cash by allowing cash/gift cards 
to be awarded through a player tracking or customer reward system.  By not 
allowing operators to transfer tokens awarded from a group 12 amusement game, 
licensees will be required to follow the redemption and operation requirements set 
out in RCW 9.46.0201 and WAC 230-13-005. 
 

 
7. A description of how the Gambling Commission will involve small businesses in 

the development of the rule. 
 

On November 9, 2015, we sent an email to the Class B and above amusement 
game licensees that we had email addresses for informing them that we had 
drafted rules for discussion on a number of different issues concerning Group 12 
amusement games.  (These rules did not include this rule change.)   

 
On November 12, 2015, we asked stakeholders that attended the Study Session, 
which is open to the general public, to submit any comments or rule change 
language, not limited to the rules staff drafted, to address the issues surrounding 
group 12 amusement games to commission staff by November 30, 2015.     

 
On December 24, 2015, we sent notice to all commercial and amusement game 
licensees of the updated rule proposals based the feedback we received during the 
comment period.  We also posted the draft rules on our website.    

 
In February 2016, while other group 12 amusement game rules were being 
considered, staff put this rules package together to address some other regulatory 
concerns with group 12 amusement games.   

 
At least one week prior to the March 11, 2016 Commission meeting, we posted 
this rules package on our website.   

 
On March 25, 2016, we posted information on this rules package as filed by the 
Commissioners at their March 11, 2016, Commission meeting in the special 
section of our website for group 12 amusement games.   We also posted that we 



 
 
 
 
 

Small business economic impact statement        Page 9 of 9 
 

would be holding a stakeholder meeting to discuss all group 12 amusement game 
rules pending on April 9, 2016, to include this rules package.   

 
On April 9, 2016, we held a stakeholder meeting to discuss all group 12 
amusement game rules, which included all rules in this package and this specific 
rule.   
 
At least one week prior to the April 14, 2016, Commission meeting, we posted 
this rules package on our website, which included this specific rule.  

 
On April 15, 2016, we posted in the special section of our website for group 12 
amusement games a summary of the rules discussed and action taken by the 
Commissioners at the April Commission meeting.   

 
At least one week prior to the May 12, 2016, Commission meeting, we posted this 
rules package on our website, which included this specific rule.  

 
At the May 12, 2016, Study Session, stakeholders were asked what costs they 
would incur if the rule proposal went into effect.   

 
A meeting was held on May 19, 2016, with the stakeholder that provided an email 
in opposition to one of the rule changes.   

 
8. A list of industries that will be required to comply with the rule. 

7132.  (Leave this number here) 
 

 9.  An estimate of the number of jobs that will be created or lost as the result of  
  compliance with the proposed rule.  

 
There is only evidence that one full-time and one part-time job will be lost as a result 
of the proposed rule changes.  One small business licensee that has 49 group 12 
amusement games in operation at 10 licensed locations in Washington and spent at 
least $7,500 on a software program to store tokens dispensed on the player tracking 
system indicated that they will stop operating all of their group 12 amusement games 
in the state.  This action will result in the loss of one full-time bookkeeper, a part-time 
technician, and it will terminate the use of an on-call technician that flies in from 
California when his service is needed.   
 
No other small business licensees have indicated that any jobs would be created or 
lost as a result of compliance with this proposed rule change.  



99999 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TAB 4: July 2016 Commission Meeting Agenda.                 Statutory Authority 9.46.070, 9.46.0201                                                                                                             
 

Who proposed the rule changes? 
Staff 

Proposed Changes and Licensee Impacts 
Bold/Underline = Changes after the May 2016 Commission Meeting. 
 
In March 2016, the Commissioners approved rule changes that required distributors of group 12 
amusement games to be licensed.  Staff realized upon passage of the rule change that the rules would have 
required Class B and above amusement game licensees who would like to own and/or lease group 12 
amusement games to have a distributor’s license in addition to, or in place of, the license they currently 
have.  This was not the intent of the original rule change. 
 
This rules package clearly defines: 

• The activities of a manufacturer and distributor of group 12 amusement games, Class A 
amusement game licensees, Class B and above amusement game licensees; and  

• Who needs a distributor license.   
 
Businesses will need a: 

• Distributor’s license if they buy or lease a group 12 amusement game from another licensee and 
sell or lease the group 12 amusement game to a Class B or above amusement game licensee; or  

• Class B or above amusement game license if they: 
o Own and operate group 1 through 12 amusement games at their licensed premises; and 
o Lease or buy group 12 amusement games from a licensed manufacturer or distributor and 

lease or rent them to a Class A amusement game licensee; and 
o Lease or rent group 1 through 11 amusement games to Class A amusement game licensees. 

 
Manufacturers will only be able to sell or lease group 12 amusement games to licensed distributors or 
Class B or above amusement game licensees.   
 
Only Class B and above licensees will be able to rent or lease group 12 amusement games to Class A 
amusement game licensees.  
 
A Small Business Economic Impact Statement was prepared and is attached. 

 
Attachments: 
Budget Proviso (the following language was included in the budget passed by the legislature): 

 

Amend 
WAC 230-03-185 Applying for a manufacturer license. 

WAC 230-03-190 Applying for a distributor license. 
WAC 230-06-110 Buying, selling, or transferring gambling equipment. 

 
New Section 

WAC 230-06-112 Buying, selling, renting and leasing amusement games. 
 

July 2016 – Further Discussion 
June 2016 – No Meeting 
May 2016 – Further Discussion 
April 2016 – Up for Discussion and Possible Filing 

 



“The commission is directed to review and reconsider, including repeal, rules adopted to authorize the 
amusement games classified as group 12 under WAC 230-13-067, recognizing the impact such games may 
have on state lottery revenues used to support public education programs.” 
 
Small Business Economic Impact Statement 
 

Stakeholder Impacts 
Without this rule change, some class B and above licensees would need to get an additional distributor’s 
license, which would be more costly to licensees.   

Agency Impacts 
• Without clear definitions of the type of license needed for the activity being conducted, we will 

have inconsistency in licensing.   
• We would not have an accurate reporting of gross receipts from group 12 amusement games if we 

do not clearly define the activity at each level.  
Staff Recommendation 

Further discussion.    
Proposed Effective Date for Rule Change 

31 days from filing. 

 

  



Amended Section  
 
WAC 230-03-185 Applying for a manufacturer license. 
 
(1) You must apply for a manufacturer license if you: 
(a) Make or assemble a completed piece or pieces of gambling equipment for use in authorized 
gambling activities; or 
(b) Convert, modify, combine, add to, or remove parts or components of any gambling 
equipment for use in authorized gambling activities; or 
(c) Manufacture group 12 amusement games. Manufacturers of group 12 amusement games that 
were approved before the effective date of this rule must apply by May 1, 2016, and be licensed 
by December 31, 2016.  Manufacturers of group 12 amusement games can sell or lease group 12 
amusement games to a licensed distributor or a Class B or above amusement game licensee. 
(2) You must demonstrate your ability to comply with all manufacturing, quality control, and 
operations restrictions imposed on authorized gambling equipment that you want to manufacture 
or market for use in Washington State. 
(3) The licensing process may include an on-site review of your manufacturing equipment and 
process for each separate type of authorized gambling equipment to ensure compliance 
capability. 
 
[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 09-11-085 (Order 646), § 230-03-185, filed 5/18/09, effective 
7/1/09; WSR 06-07-157 (Order 457), § 230-03-185, filed 3/22/06, effective 1/1/08.] 

  

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.070


Amended Section 

WAC 230-03-190 Applying for a distributor license. 
You must apply for a distributor license if you: 
(1) Buy or otherwise obtain a finished piece of gambling equipment for use in authorized 

gambling activities or a group 12 amusement game from another person and sell or provide that 
gambling equipment to a third person for resale, display, or use; or 

(2) Are a manufacturer who sells or provides gambling equipment you do not make to any 
other person for resale, display, or use; or 

(3) Service and repair authorized gambling equipment. However, distributors must not add, 
modify, or alter the gambling equipment; or 

(4) Modify gambling equipment using materials provided by manufacturers to upgrade 
equipment to current technology. 

(5) Buy or lease a group 12 amusement game from another licensee and sell or lease the 
group 12 amusement game to a Class B and above amusement game licensee.   
 
[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 06-07-157 (Order 457), § 230-03-190, filed 3/22/06, effective 
1/1/08.] 
  

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.070


Amended Section 
WAC 230-06-110 Buying, selling, or transferring gambling equipment. 

(1) All licensees and persons authorized to possess gambling equipment must closely control 
the gambling equipment in their possession. 

(2) Before selling gambling equipment, licensees must ensure that the buyer possesses a valid 
gambling license or can legally possess the equipment without a license. 

(3) Before purchasing gambling equipment, licensees must ensure that the seller possesses a 
valid gambling license. 

(4) Applicants for Class F or house-banked card room licenses may purchase and possess 
gambling equipment during the prelicensing process, but only after receiving written approval 
from us. 

(5) Charitable and nonprofit organizations conducting unlicensed bingo games, as allowed by 
RCW 9.46.0321, may possess bingo equipment without a license. 

(6) Group 12 amusement games can only be sold or leased to Class B and above amusement 
game licensees by a licensed manufacturer or distributor to a licensee.  Class B and above 
amusement game licensees can lease or rent group 12 amusement games to Class A amusement 
game licensees.  Lease agreements entered into prior to the effective date of this rule may 
continue until the manufacturer is licensed or December 31, 2016, whichever occurs first.  

(7) Licensees may transfer gambling equipment as a part of a sale of a business as long as a 
condition of the sale is that the buyer receives a gambling license before the sale is complete. 
Licensees must make a complete record of all gambling equipment transferred in this manner, 
including I.D. stamps. Licensees must report these transfers, including a copy of the inventory 
record, to us. 
 
[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 08-11-044 (Order 628), § 230-06-110, filed 5/14/08, effective 
7/1/08; WSR 07-21-116 (Order 617), § 230-06-110, filed 10/22/07, effective 1/1/08; WSR 06-17-132 
(Order 601), § 230-06-110, filed 8/22/06, effective 1/1/08.]

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.0321
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.070


New Section 
WAC 230-06-112 Buying, selling, renting and leasing amusement games.   
 

(1) Class A amusement game licensees can rent or lease amusement games from Class B and 
above amusement game licensees. 

(2) Class B and above amusement game licensees can: 
a. Own and operate group 1 through 12 amusement games at their licensed 

premises; and 
b. Buy or lease group 12 amusement games from a licensed manufacturer or 

distributor and lease or rent them to Class A amusement game licensees; and 
c. Rent or lease group 1 through 11 amusement games to Class A amusement game 

licensees. 
  



Budget Proviso 
SECOND ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL 2376 
 
FOR THE GAMBLING COMMISSION 
State Lottery Account: For transfer to gambling revolving account . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,000,000 
 
The transfer in this section is subject to the following conditions and limitations: 
(1) ((The commission shall maintain working capital reserves in the gambling revolving account 
of no more than five percent of projected expenses in the account)) This funding is provided 
solely for the costs of enforcement of gambling activities, including but not limited to evaluation, 
analysis, and dissemination of information on individuals and groups who are suspected of being 
involved in illegal gambling and other associated crimes. 
(2) The commission shall not approve any electronic raffle systems to conduct fifty-fifty raffles 
until the legislature has reviewed all impacts to the state lottery. 
(3) The commission is directed to review and reconsider, including repeal, rules adopted to 
authorize the amusement games classified as group 12 under WAC 230-13-067, recognizing the 
impact such games may have on state lottery revenues used to support public education 
programs. 
 



 
 
 
 
 

Small business economic impact statement        Page 1 of 7 
 

Small Business Economic Impact Statement – RCW 19.85.040 
Washington State Gambling Commission 

 
May 20, 2016  
 
Proposed Changes to Rules: 
 Amend 

WAC 230-03-185 Applying for a manufacturer license. 
WAC 230-03-190 Applying for a distributor license. 
WAC 230-06-110 Buying, selling, or transferring gambling equipment. 

 
New Section 
WAC 230-06-112 Buying, selling, renting and leasing amusement games. 

 
  Businesses will need a: 

• Distributor’s license if they buy or lease a group 12 amusement game from 
another licensee and sell or lease the group 12 amusement game to a Class B or 
above amusement game licensee; or  

• Class B or above amusement game license if they: 
o Own and operate group 1 through 12 amusement games at their licensed 

premises; and 
o Lease or buy group 12 amusement games from a licensed manufacturer or 

distributor and lease or rent them to a Class A amusement game licensee; and 
o Lease or rent group 1 through 11 amusement games to Class A amusement 

game licensees. 
 
Involvement of Small Businesses:   
 
We filed the Code Revisor’s 101 on April 4, 2016, under WSR#16-08-057. 
 
On July 2015, the Commissioners approved a new type of amusement game, group 12 
amusement games with the passage of a new rule, WAC 230-13-067.   
 
In October 2015, operators began putting group 12 amusement games into play and a number of 
questions arose regarding the operation, licensure, recordkeeping, and regulatory controls for this 
new type of amusement games.  In an effort to address the questions and get information out to 
stakeholders timely, we started posting information on our website under Breaking News on 
group 12 amusement games.  
 
On November 9, 2015, we sent an email to the Class B and above amusement game licensees 
that we had email addresses for informing them that we had drafted rules for discussion on a 
number of different issues concerning Group 12 amusement games.  (These rules did not include 
this rule change.)   
 



 
 
 
 
 

Small business economic impact statement        Page 2 of 7 
 

On November 12, 2015, we asked stakeholders that attended the Study Session, which is open to 
the general public, to submit any comments or rule change language, not limited to the rules staff 
drafted, to address the issues surrounding group 12 amusement games to commission staff by 
November 30, 2015.     
 
On December 24, 2015, we sent notice to all commercial and amusement game licensees of the 
updated rule proposals based the feedback we received during the comment period.  We also 
posted the draft rules on our website, which included licensing of manufacturers and distributors 
of group 12 amusement games.  
 
Original rules changes to WAC 230-03-185, 230-03-190, and 230-06-110 to address group 12 
amusement games were discussed at the Study Session, open to the general public, and the 
Commission Meetings, through discussion and public testimony, on January 14, 2016, February 
11, 2016 meeting, and March 11, 2016.   
 
On March 11, 2016, the Commissioners approved the original rule changes to these three rules to 
incorporate group 12 amusement games; a Small Business Economic Impact Statement was 
prepared for this original rule change.  Staff realized upon passage of the rule change that the 
rules would have required Class B and above amusement game licensees who would like to own 
and/or lease group 12 amusement games to have a distributor’s license in addition to, or in place 
of, the license they currently have.  This was not the intent of the original rule change. 
 
This rules package was prepared to provide clarity of the type of license required, manufacturer, 
distributor or Class B or above amusement game license, based on who the licensee was selling 
or leasing the group 12 amusement game to.   
 
On March 25, 2016, we posted in the special section of our website for group 12 amusement 
game information that we would be holding a stakeholder meeting to discuss all group 12 
amusement game rules pending on April 9, 2016, which included this new rules package and this 
specific rule.   
 
On April 9, 2016, we held a stakeholder meeting to discuss all group 12 amusement game rules, 
which included all rules in this package and this specific rule.  
 
At least one week prior to the April 14, 2016, Commission meeting, we posted this rules package 
on our website, which included this specific rule.  
 
At the April 14, 2016, Commission meeting, this rules package was discussed at the Study 
Session and Commission meeting.   On April 15, 2016, we posted in the special section of our 
website for group 12 amusement games a summary of the rules discussed and action taken by the 
Commissioners at the April Commission meeting.   
 
At least one week prior to the May 12, 2016, Commission meeting, we posted this rules package 
on our website, which included this specific rule.  
 



 
 
 
 
 

Small business economic impact statement        Page 3 of 7 
 

At the May 12, 2016, Study Session, stakeholders were asked what costs they would incur if the 
rule proposal went into effect.  Stakeholders provided feedback as indicated below. 
 
In summary, these proposed rule changes were discussed at Study Sessions on the following 
dates:  April 14, 2016 and May 12, 2016.  It will also be discussed at the Study Session on July 
14/15, 2016.  The rule proposal was discussed and public comment taken at the Commission 
meetings on April 14, 2016 and May 12, 2016.  It will also be discussed and public comment 
will be taken at the July 14/15, 2016, Commission meeting.  Lastly, it was discussed at a 
stakeholder meeting on April 9, 2016.  
 
This process provided small businesses opportunities in the development of the new rule.  
 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

 
1. Description of the reporting, record keeping and other compliance requirements 

of the proposed rule. 
 
Businesses will need a: 
• Distributor’s license if they buy or lease a group 12 amusement game from 

another licensee and sell or lease the group 12 amusement game to a Class B or 
above amusement game licensee; or  

• Class B or above amusement game license if they: 
o Own and operate group 1 through 12 amusement games at their licensed 

premises; and 
o Lease or buy group 12 amusement games from a licensed manufacturer or 

distributor and lease or rent them to a Class A amusement game licensee; and 
o Lease or rent group 1 through 11 amusement games to Class A amusement 

game licensees. 
 

Manufacturers, distributors and operators of Group 12 amusement games are already 
required to be licensed.  This rules package just clarifies the type of license required 
depending upon who the group 12 amusement game is bought or leased from and sold 
or leased to.   
 

  
2. Kinds of professional services that a small business is likely to need in order to 

comply. 
 

No professional services are needed to comply with this rule because manufacturers, 
distributors and operators of Group 12 amusement games are already required to be 
licensed.  This rules package just clarifies the type of license required depending upon 
who the group 12 amusement game is bought or leased from and sold or leased to.   
 



 
 
 
 
 

Small business economic impact statement        Page 4 of 7 
 

Additionally, Commission staff are available to answer any licensure questions and 
help businesses determine what license they need under this rule.     

 
3. The actual costs to small businesses of compliance, including costs of equipment, 

supplies, labor and increased administrative costs. 
 

There should not be any additional costs to small businesses.  Manufacturers, 
distributors and operators of Group 12 amusement games are already required to be 
licensed.  This rules package just clarifies the type of license required depending upon 
who the group 12 amusement game is bought or leased from and sold or leased to.   
 
If a manufacturer, distributor, or amusement game licensee holds a current license but 
requires a different type of license because of these proposed rules, they will not be 
required to apply for the other license type.  If there is a cost difference between the 
types of licenses a business currently holds and the license they are required to have 
based on this rule change, the business would get a refund or have to pay the 
difference for the remainder of their license year.    
 
For example, if a class B distributor needed a class B amusement game license 
because of who they bought or leased the group 12 amusement games from and sold 
or leased them to, they would get a refund of $910 prorated based on the number of 
months remaining in their license year.  If a class B amusement game licensee needed 
a class B distributor license, they would need to pay $910 prorated based on the 
number of months remaining in their license year. 
 
Stakeholders did not indicate at the two Study Sessions, two Commission meetings 
and stakeholder meeting any additional costs.    

 
 
4. Whether compliance with the rule, based on feedback received from licensees, 

will cause businesses to lose sales or revenue. 
 
This rule should not cause a small business to lose sales or revenue. Stakeholders 
have not indicated at the two Study Sessions, two Commission meetings and 
stakeholder meeting that this rule would cause them to lose sales or revenue    

 
5. A determination of whether the proposed rule will have a disproportionate 

impact on small businesses.  
 

This rule should not have a disproportionate impact on small businesses. 
Manufacturers, distributors and operators of Group 12 amusement games are already 
required to be licensed.  This rules package just clarifies the type of license required 
depending upon who the group 12 amusement game is bought or leased from and sold 
or leased to.   
 



 
 
 
 
 

Small business economic impact statement        Page 5 of 7 
 

 
6. Steps taken by the agency to reduce the costs of the rule on small businesses or 

reasonable justification for not doing so. Agencies “must consider, without 
limitation, each of the following methods of reducing the impact of the proposed 
rule on small businesses:”  
 
a. Reducing, modifying, or eliminating substantive regulatory requirements; 

 
Manufacturers, distributors and operators of Group 12 amusement games are 
already required to be licensed.  This rules package just clarifies the type of 
license required depending upon who the group 12 amusement game is bought or 
leased from and sold or leased to.  Without this rule change, some businesses 
might be required to hold a more costly license or hold two licenses, which would 
also be more costly.  
 

b. Simplifying, reducing, or eliminating recordkeeping and reporting 
requirements; 
 
This rule change does not require any additional recordkeeping or reporting 
requirements.   
 

c. Reducing the frequency of inspections; 
 
This rule will not require additional inspections.   
 

d. Delaying compliance timetables; 
 
Delaying compliance is unnecessary because this rule clarifies the type of license 
required under the rule.  Immediate implementation of this rule provides clarity 
and possibly saves some small businesses money by ensuring they obtain the 
correct license.   

 
e. Reducing or modifying fine schedules for noncompliance; or 

 
There is no fine schedule related to this rule.  Any finding of noncompliance with 
this rule would be handled like all other amusement game violations, which is a 
progressive enforcement model that includes verbal warnings, written warnings, 
fines, suspension, and revocation.  Our goal is to seek voluntary compliance with 
our licensees through education and training.   
 

f. Any other mitigation techniques including those suggested by small 
businesses or small business advocates.  

 
Small business stakeholders have not requested or suggested any mitigation 
techniques for the implementation of this rule change.  Stakeholders have been 



 
 
 
 
 

Small business economic impact statement        Page 6 of 7 
 

told at Study Sessions and the stakeholder meetings to contact us with any 
comments on the proposed rule changes.  No comments have been received from 
stakeholders on this rule change. 

 
7. A description of how the Gambling Commission will involve small businesses in 

the development of the rule. 
 

In December 2015, we sent notices of rulemaking to all amusement game licensees 
regarding rules for group 12 amusement games.   
 
Original rules changes to WAC 230-03-185, 230-03-190, and 230-06-110 to address 
group 12 amusement games were discussed at the Study Session, open to the general 
public, and the Commission Meetings, through discussion and public testimony, on 
January 14, 2016, February 11, 2016 meeting, and March 11, 2016.   

 
On March 11, 2016, the Commissioners approved the original rule changes to these 
three rules to incorporate group 12 amusement games, an Small Business Economic 
Impact Statement was prepared for this original rule change.  Staff realized upon 
passage of the rule change that the rules would have required Class B and above 
amusement game licensees who would like to own and/or lease group 12 amusement 
games to have a distributor’s license in addition to, or in place of, the license they 
currently have.  This was not the intent of the original rule change. 

 
This rules package was prepare to provide clarity of the type of license required, 
manufacturer, distributor or Class B or above amusement game license, based on who 
the licensee was selling or leasing the group 12 amusement game to.   

 
On March 25, 2016, we posted in the special section of our website for group 12 
amusement game information that we would be holding a stakeholder meeting to 
discuss all group 12 amusement game rules pending on April 9, 2016, which included 
this new rules package.   

 
On April 9, 2016, we held a stakeholder meeting to discuss all group 12 amusement 
game rules, which included all rules in this package and this specific rule.  

 
At least one week prior to the April 14, 2016, Commission meeting, we posted this 
rules package on our website, which included this specific rule.  

 
At the April 14, 2016, Commission meeting, this rules package was discussed at the 
Study Session and Commission meeting.   On April 15, 2016, we posted in the special 
section of our website for group 12 amusement games a summary of the rules 
discussed and action taken by the Commissioners at the April Commission meeting.   

 
At least one week prior to the May 12, 2016, Commission meeting, we posted this 
rules package on our website, which included this specific rule.  



 
 
 
 
 

Small business economic impact statement        Page 7 of 7 
 

 
At the May 12, 2016, Study Session, stakeholders were asked what costs they would 
incur if the rule proposal went into effect.  Stakeholders provided feedback as 
indicated below. 

 
 
8. A list of industries that will be required to comply with the rule. 

7132.  (Leave this number here) 
 

 9.  An estimate of the number of jobs that will be created or lost as the result of  
  compliance with the proposed rule.  

 
There is no evidence that any jobs will be created or lost as a result of this rule 
change. Manufacturers, distributors, and operators of group 12 amusement games are 
already required to be licensed by rule.  Stakeholders have not indicated any jobs 
would be created or lost as a result of compliance with this proposed rule change 
from the two Study Sessions and a stakeholder meetings in which this rules package 
was discussed.    



 
 
 
TAB 5: July 2016 Commission Meeting Agenda.         Statutory Authority 9.46.070, RCW 9.46.0282 
 

Who Proposed the Rule Change? 
Teresa Malphrus, owner of The Hideaway Restaurant and Casino, a 7 table Class F cardroom 

Describe the Proposed Change / Background 
Bold/Underline = Changes made after the May 2016 Commission Meeting. 
 
Teresa Malphrus is requesting the following rule changes: 

• Increase the maximum amount of a single wager on any authorized poker game, not just Texas 
Hold ‘Em, from $40 to $100 at Class F and house-banked cardrooms; and  

• Allow Class F and house-banked cardrooms to assess players of nonhouse-banked card games a 
rake fee of up to 10% of the pot with no limit.  Currently, the rake cannot be more than $5 per hand 
or 10% of the total wagers for a hand, whichever is less. 
 

Ms. Malphrus explained the reasons she is seeking these rule changes:  
• “In November of this year, the voters in the state of Washington will be voting on one of 3 

initiatives that would raise the minimum wage in each of the next four years, with a starting date 
effective January, 2017. In addition, in January of 2018, we will be required to provide paid sick 
leave at the rate of 1 hour for every 40 hours worked. Should this initiative pass, this will create 
additional financial challenges to the cardrooms [and] possibly to the WSGC that regulates our 
activities. 

• As a Class F Cardroom Owner I am anticipating a passage of the initiative and am making some 
proposed changes that may help in generating additional revenue for the cardrooms.” 
 

A Small Business Economic Impact Statement was not prepared.  These rule changes would allow for 
higher betting limits and would benefit businesses.  The rule change would not impose additional 
costs to licensees.  
 
Attachments: 

• Petition for rule changes from Teresa Malphrus in a letter dated April 10, 2016. 
• May 4, 2016, email from Teresa Malphrus regarding changes to her original petition. 
• Notice of rule-making sent to all card game licensees   

Licensees Impacted  
The proposed rule changes would impact three Class F card rooms and those house-banked card room 
licensees that offer nonhouse-banked card games.  As of April 29, 2016, there were 50 licensed and 
operating house-banked card rooms.   

Policy Considerations 
None. 

Statements Supporting 
Stakeholder comments attached.   

 

 Amend 
WAC 230-15-080 Authorized fees and authorized methods of collection. 

WAC 230-15-135 Wagering limits for nonhouse-banked card games. 
 

July 2016 – Further Discussion 
June 2016 – No Meeting 
May 2016 – Up for Discussion and Possible Filing 
April 2016 – Study Session 



Staff Recommendation 
Further discussion. 

Proposed Effective Date for Rule Change 
31 days from filing. 

 
  



Amended Section 
WAC 230-15-080 Authorized fees and authorized methods of collection. 
Card game licensees must collect only one type of card game fee at a table at any given time. 
The following are authorized types of fees, the card game licensees who may use those fee types, 
and the methods of collection: 
     

Authorized types of fees 

Licensees 
authorized to 

use the fee 
types 

Authorized 
methods of 
collection 

Maximum amount 
to collect 

(1) Period of time -  Class A, B, C, 
E, F 

Direct 
collection; 
or 
Chip rack - Only 
allowed if 
licensed for 
three or fewer 
tables; 
or 
Drop box. 

Not more than ten 
dollars per hour, 
per player. 
  

(a) Licensees must collect the fee at least 
once per hour at times the licensee 
chooses, for example, at thirty 
minute increments; and 

  

(b) Licensees must record all fees 
immediately after collection; or 

  

(2) Per hand played -  Class F and 
house-banked 

Drop box; 
or 
Chip rack - Only 
allowed if 
licensed for 
three or fewer 
tables. 

Not more than one 
dollar per hand, per 
player. (a) Players must place fees charged on a 

per-hand basis in a designated area of 
the table and dealers must collect 
them before dealing the first round of 
cards; and 

  

(b) After collecting the fees, dealers 
must deposit all chips or coins in 
either the drop box or chip rack; or 

  

(3) Rake -  Class F and 
house-banked 

Drop box; 
or 
Chip rack - Only 
allowed if 
licensed for 
three or fewer 
tables. 

Not more than five 
dollars per hand or 
ten percent of the 
total wagers for a 
hand, whichever is 
less. 

(a) Dealers must collect fees charged on 
the amounts wagered during the play 
of the hand and place the fees in a 
designated area of the table; and 

  

(b) Once dealers accumulate the 
maximum fee for a hand, they must 
spread the chips or coins to allow 
players and the surveillance system 
to view the amount collected. After 
spreading the chips or coins, the 
dealer deposits them in either the 
drop box or chip rack. 

  

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-09-033 (Order 608), § 230-15-080, filed 4/10/07, 
effective 1/1/08.] 
  

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.070


Amended Section 

WAC 230-15-135 Wagering limits for nonhouse-banked card games. 

Card room licensees must not exceed these wagering limits: 
(1) Poker -  
(a) There must be no more than five betting rounds in any one game; and 
(b) There must be no more than four wagers in any betting round, for example, the initial 

wager plus three raises; and 
(c) The maximum amount of a single wager must not exceed:  

(i) One hundred dollars for class F and house-banked card game licensees and 
(ii) Fforty dollars for all other; however, class F and house-banked card game licensees 

may offer a single wager not to exceed one hundred dollars for the game of Texas Hold'em; 
(2) Games based on achieving a specific number of points - Each point must not exceed 

five cents in value; 
(3) Ante - No more than the maximum wager allowed for the first betting round for any 

game, except for Panguingue (Pan). The ante may, by house rule: 
(a) Be made by one or more players, but the total ante may not exceed the maximum wager 

allowed for the first betting round; and 
(b) Be used as part of a player's wager; 
(4) Panguingue (Pan) - The maximum value of a chip must not exceed ten dollars. An ante 

must not exceed one chip. We prohibit doubling of conditions. Players going out may collect no 
more than two additional chips for going out from each participating player. 
 



From: Teresa Malphrus
To: Newer, Susan (GMB)
Subject: WAC rule changes
Date: Monday, April 11, 2016 8:07:38 PM
Attachments: hideaway proposal.pdf

Susan,
I’ve enclosed my letter and the two WAC rules with changes.
Please look it over and let me know if I should make changes or what more is needed.
 
Thanks again for your help.
Teresa Malphrus
The Hideaway

mailto:teresa@hideawaycasino.com
mailto:susan.newer@wsgc.wa.gov



April 10, 2016 


Ms. Susan Newer 
C/O WSGC 
4565 7th Ave. S.E. 
P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504-2400 


Ms. Newer, 


Thank you for guiding me through the process leading up to this letter proposing two WAC 
rule changes. 


In November of this year, the voters in the state of Washington will be voting on one of 3 
initiatives that would raise the minimum wage in each of the next four years, with a starting 
date effective January, 2017. In addition, in January of 2018, we will be required to provide 
paid sick leave at the rate of 1 hour for every 40 hours worked. 


Should this initiative pass, this will create additional financial challenges to the cardrooms 
and possibly to the WSGC that regulates our activities. 


As of the end of 2014, by your own online reporting, fourteen of the 49 remaining larger 
cardrooms were operating in the red, with several very close behind. 


As a Class F Cardroom Owner I am anticipating a passage of the initiative and am making 
some proposed changes that may help in generating additional revenue for the cardrooms. 


Both these changes have precedent. 


WAC 230-15-135 (1c) 
Wagering limits for nonhouse-banked card games. 


The Game of Texas Holdem (a nonhouse-banked card game), currently has a maximum 
wager of one hundred dollars. 
I am asking that all nonhouse-banked card games have a maximum wager of one hundred 
dollars. 
My understanding is that the one hundred dollar limit in Texas Holdem has not resulted in 
any issues with the WSGC. 


WAC 230-15-80 (3) 
Authorized fees and authorized methods of collection. 
I am asking that the rake collection (house money) limit of ten percent of the pot up to five 
dollars be changed to ten percent of the pot with no regulation on limits. 


14525 AURORA AVE N. SHORELINE WA 98133 206.361.9393 MAIN 







Re 


WAALVIti(Aiv) -  
resa Malphrus 


wner, The 40/70 Inc. 
Dba/ The Hideaway Restaurant and Casino 


The Player Supported Jackpot (PSJ) has already had all limit regulations removed. My 
understanding is that there has been no issue with the removal of those regulations with the 
WSGA. The rake, like the PSJ, will be regulated by what the players will be willing to accept 
while playing poker, i.e. what the market will bear. 


I understand that the rake and the PSJ that each room chooses to take must be clearly 
communicated to the players. That would not change. 


I appreciate consideration by the WSGC regarding the passage of these changes to existing 
WAC Regulations. 


Cc./ WSGC file 


14525 AURORA AVE N. SHORELINE WA 98133 206.361.9393 MAIN 







WAC 230-15-135 
Wagering limits for nonhouse-banked card games. 
Card room licensees must not exceed these wagering limits: 
(1) Poker - 
(a) There must be no more than five betting rounds in any one game; and 
(b) There must be no more than four wagers in any betting round, for example, the initial 
wager plus three raises; and 
(c) 11 -  - 	: 	. 	:  :  . - 	: 	 : ; bewevef Class F 
and house-banked card game licensees may offer a single wager not to exceed one hundred 
dollars. for the game of Texas Hold'em; 
(2) Games based on achieving a specific number of points - Each point must not exceed 
five cents in value; 
(3) Ante - No more than the maximum wager allowed for the first betting round for any 
game, except for Panguingue (Pan). The ante may, by house rule: 
(a) Be made by one or more players, but the total ante may not exceed the maximum wager 
allowed for the first betting round; and 
(b) Be used as part of a player's wager; 
(4) Panguingue (Pan) - The maximum value of a chip must not exceed ten dollars. An ante 
must not exceed one chip. We prohibit doubling of conditions. Players going out may collect 
no more than two additional chips for going out from each participating player. 


14525 AURORA AVE N. SHORELINE WA 98133 206.361.9393 MAIN 







Authorized types of fees 


Licensees 


authorized to 


use the fee 


types 


Authorized 


methods of 


collection 


Maximum amount 


to collect 


(1) 	Period of time - 


(a) Licensees must collect the fee at least 


once per hour at times the licensee 


chooses, for example, at thirty minute 


increments; and 


(b) Licensees must record all fees 


immediately after collection; or 


Class A, B, C, 


E, F 


allowed if  


Direct collection; 


or 


Chip rack - Only 


licensed for three 


or fewer tables; 


Or 


Drop box. 


Not more than ten 


dollars per hour, per 


player. 


(2) 	Per hand played - 


(a) Players must place fees charged on a 


per-hand basis in a designated area of 


the table and dealers must collect them 


before dealing the first round of cards; 


and 


(b) After collecting the fees, dealers must 


deposit all chips or coins in either the 


drop box or chip rack; or 


Class F and 


house-banked 


allowed if  
licensed for three  
or fewer tables.  


Drop box; 


or 


Chip rack - Only 


Not more than one 


dollar per hand, per 


player. 


(3) 	Rake - 


(a) Dealers must collect fees charged on the 


amounts wagered during the play of the 


hand and place the fees in a designated  


area of the table; and 


(b) Once dealers accumulate the maximum 


fee for a hand, they must spread the 


chips or coins to allow players and the 


surveillance system to view the amount 


collected. After spreading the chips or 


coins, the dealer deposits them in either 


the drop box or chip rack. 


Class F and 


house-banked 


less. 
 


Drop box; 


or 


Chip rack - Only 


allowed if 


licensed icensed for three 


or fewer tables. o 


ten percent of the 
 


total wagers for a  


Not 	than five more 


dollars 	hand per 	or 


hand., 	 l whichever 


14525 AURORA AVE N. SHORELINE WA 98133 206.361.9393 MAIN 





		p1.pdf

		Page 1



		p2.pdf

		Page 1



		p3.pdf

		Page 1



		p4.pdf

		Page 1







April 10, 2016 

Ms. Susan Newer 
C/O WSGC 
4565 7th Ave. S.E. 
P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504-2400 

Ms. Newer, 

Thank you for guiding me through the process leading up to this letter proposing two WAC 
rule changes. 

In November of this year, the voters in the state of Washington will be voting on one of 3 
initiatives that would raise the minimum wage in each of the next four years, with a starting 
date effective January, 2017. In addition, in January of 2018, we will be required to provide 
paid sick leave at the rate of 1 hour for every 40 hours worked. 

Should this initiative pass, this will create additional financial challenges to the cardrooms 
and possibly to the WSGC that regulates our activities. 

As of the end of 2014, by your own online reporting, fourteen of the 49 remaining larger 
cardrooms were operating in the red, with several very close behind. 

As a Class F Cardroom Owner I am anticipating a passage of the initiative and am making 
some proposed changes that may help in generating additional revenue for the cardrooms. 

Both these changes have precedent. 

WAC 230-15-135 (1c) 
Wagering limits for nonhouse-banked card games. 

The Game of Texas Holdem (a nonhouse-banked card game), currently has a maximum 
wager of one hundred dollars. 
I am asking that all nonhouse-banked card games have a maximum wager of one hundred 
dollars. 
My understanding is that the one hundred dollar limit in Texas Holdem has not resulted in 
any issues with the WSGC. 

WAC 230-15-80 (3) 
Authorized fees and authorized methods of collection. 
I am asking that the rake collection (house money) limit of ten percent of the pot up to five 
dollars be changed to ten percent of the pot with no regulation on limits. 

14525 AURORA AVE N. SHORELINE WA 98133 206.361.9393 MAIN 



Re 

WAALVIti(Aiv) -  
resa Malphrus 

wner, The 40/70 Inc. 
Dba/ The Hideaway Restaurant and Casino 

The Player Supported Jackpot (PSJ) has already had all limit regulations removed. My 
understanding is that there has been no issue with the removal of those regulations with the 
WSGA. The rake, like the PSJ, will be regulated by what the players will be willing to accept 
while playing poker, i.e. what the market will bear. 

I understand that the rake and the PSJ that each room chooses to take must be clearly 
communicated to the players. That would not change. 

I appreciate consideration by the WSGC regarding the passage of these changes to existing 
WAC Regulations. 

Cc./ WSGC file 

14525 AURORA AVE N. SHORELINE WA 98133 206.361.9393 MAIN 



WAC 230-15-135 
Wagering limits for nonhouse-banked card games. 
Card room licensees must not exceed these wagering limits: 
(1) Poker - 
(a) There must be no more than five betting rounds in any one game; and 
(b) There must be no more than four wagers in any betting round, for example, the initial 
wager plus three raises; and 
(c) 11 -  - 	: 	. 	:  :  . - 	: 	 : ; bewevef Class F 
and house-banked card game licensees may offer a single wager not to exceed one hundred 
dollars. for the game of Texas Hold'em; 
(2) Games based on achieving a specific number of points - Each point must not exceed 
five cents in value; 
(3) Ante - No more than the maximum wager allowed for the first betting round for any 
game, except for Panguingue (Pan). The ante may, by house rule: 
(a) Be made by one or more players, but the total ante may not exceed the maximum wager 
allowed for the first betting round; and 
(b) Be used as part of a player's wager; 
(4) Panguingue (Pan) - The maximum value of a chip must not exceed ten dollars. An ante 
must not exceed one chip. We prohibit doubling of conditions. Players going out may collect 
no more than two additional chips for going out from each participating player. 

14525 AURORA AVE N. SHORELINE WA 98133 206.361.9393 MAIN 



Authorized types of fees 

Licensees 

authorized to 

use the fee 

types 

Authorized 

methods of 

collection 

Maximum amount 

to collect 

(1) 	Period of time - 

(a) Licensees must collect the fee at least 

once per hour at times the licensee 

chooses, for example, at thirty minute 

increments; and 

(b) Licensees must record all fees 

immediately after collection; or 

Class A, B, C, 

E, F 

allowed if  

Direct collection; 

or 

Chip rack - Only 

licensed for three 

or fewer tables; 

Or 

Drop box. 

Not more than ten 

dollars per hour, per 

player. 

(2) 	Per hand played - 

(a) Players must place fees charged on a 

per-hand basis in a designated area of 

the table and dealers must collect them 

before dealing the first round of cards; 

and 

(b) After collecting the fees, dealers must 

deposit all chips or coins in either the 

drop box or chip rack; or 

Class F and 

house-banked 

allowed if  
licensed for three  
or fewer tables.  

Drop box; 

or 

Chip rack - Only 

Not more than one 

dollar per hand, per 

player. 

(3) 	Rake - 

(a) Dealers must collect fees charged on the 

amounts wagered during the play of the 

hand and place the fees in a designated  

area of the table; and 

(b) Once dealers accumulate the maximum 

fee for a hand, they must spread the 

chips or coins to allow players and the 

surveillance system to view the amount 

collected. After spreading the chips or 

coins, the dealer deposits them in either 

the drop box or chip rack. 

Class F and 

house-banked 

less. 
 

Drop box; 

or 

Chip rack - Only 

allowed if 

licensed icensed for three 

or fewer tables. o 

ten percent of the 
 

total wagers for a  

Not 	than five more 

dollars 	hand per 	or 

hand., 	 l whichever 

14525 AURORA AVE N. SHORELINE WA 98133 206.361.9393 MAIN 



From: Teresa Malphrus
To: Griffin, Tina (GMB)
Subject: Re: FW: WAC rule changes
Date: Wednesday, May 04, 2016 1:21:15 PM

Tina, the changes below are acceptable to complete the two proposals I've put for for
 consideration by the Gambling commission.
Thank you for your help through this process.
Teresa Malphrus

On May 4, 2016 1:02 PM, "Griffin, Tina (GMB)" <tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov> wrote:

 

 

From: Griffin, Tina (GMB) 
Sent: Wednesday, May 04, 2016 10:00 AM
To: 'teresa@hideawaycasino.com' <teresa@hideawaycasino.com>
Cc: Wittmers, Keith (GMB) <keith.wittmers@wsgc.wa.gov>
Subject: RE: WAC rule changes

 

Teresa,

 

In my haste to resolve the language in WAC 230-15-135(1), I forgot there are other license
 classes of cardrooms that rely on the $40 single wagering limits.  Would you be agreeable
 to the following language:

 

WAC 230-15-135(1)(c) “The maximum amount of a single wager must not exceed: (i) One
 hundred dollars for class F and house-banked card game licensees and (ii) Forty dollars for
 all other card game licensees;”

 

Thank you for your consideration,

 

Tina Griffin

Assistant Director

Licensing, Regulation, and Enforcement Division

mailto:pokerpine56@gmail.com
mailto:tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:teresa@hideawaycasino.com
mailto:teresa@hideawaycasino.com
mailto:keith.wittmers@wsgc.wa.gov


Washington State Gambling Commission

360-486-3546

 

 

 

From: Griffin, Tina (GMB) 
Sent: Tuesday, May 03, 2016 10:12 PM
To: 'teresa@hideawaycasino.com' <teresa@hideawaycasino.com>
Cc: Wittmers, Keith (GMB) <keith.wittmers@wsgc.wa.gov>
Subject: FW: WAC rule changes
Importance: High

 

Hello Teresa,

 

Thank you for your letter.  I understand from your letter that you are agreeable to leaving the
 word “than” in WAC 230-15-080(3).  Unfortunately, your letter includes an “or”.  Are you
 agreeable to the following for WAC 230-15-080(3), “Not more than ten percent of the total
 wagers for a hand”?

 

Lastly, your requested changes to WAC 230-15-135(1)(c), to strike the phrase, “The
 maximum amount of a single wager must not exceed forty dollars”, eliminates the wagering
 limits for the eight licensed and operating card rooms in Washington.  In doing so, you
 would be inadvertently causing them to no longer offer nonhouse-banked card games.  I do
 not think this is your intent.  It is my understanding from your letter you are asking the
 Commissioners to allow single maximum wagers of $100 for nonhouse-banked card games
 offered by Class F and house-banked card rooms.  

 

In order to continue to allow the eight Class E card rooms to continue to be operational and
 still meet your request, would you be agreeable to the following language changes to WAC
 230-15-135(1)(c) “The maximum amount of a single wager must not exceed: (i) Forty
 dollars for class E card game licensees; and (ii) One hundred dollars for class F and house-
banked card game licensees”?    

 

If you are agreeable to these two changes to the rule language you submitted, please let me
 know as soon as possible.  An email reply is preferable.  If you have any questions, please
 feel free to contact me at 360-507-3456 (cell) or 360-486-3546 (office).

tel:360-486-3546
mailto:teresa@hideawaycasino.com
mailto:teresa@hideawaycasino.com
mailto:keith.wittmers@wsgc.wa.gov
tel:360-507-3456
tel:360-486-3546


 

Sincerely,

 

Tina Griffin

Assistant Director

Licensing, Regulation, and Enforcement Division

Washington State Gambling Commission

360-486-3546

 

 

 

From: Wittmers, Keith (GMB) 
Sent: Tuesday, May 03, 2016 2:42 PM
To: Griffin, Tina (GMB) <tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov>
Subject: F.  wd: WAC rule changes

 

FYI

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Teresa Malphrus <teresa@hideawaycasino.com>
Date: May 3, 2016 at 2:14:52 PM PDT
To: <TINA.GRIFFEN@WSGC.WA.GOV>
Cc: <SUSAN.NEWER@WSGC.WA.GOV>,
 <KEITH.WITTMERS@WSGC.WA.GOV>
Subject: WAC rule changes

Tina, Please see changes requested regarding my two proposals currently under
 review by staff.

 

Thank You

tel:360-486-3546
mailto:tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:teresa@hideawaycasino.com
mailto:TINA.GRIFFEN@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:SUSAN.NEWER@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:KEITH.WITTMERS@wsgc.wa.gov


Teresa Malphrus

The Hideaway





From: Accounting
To: Newer, Susan (GMB)
Subject: Rule Changes
Date: Wednesday, June 15, 2016 2:40:27 PM

Attention WSGC,
 
To whom it may concern
 
Please find below a list of potential rule changes that I support. I believe all of
 the following to be a positive change to assist Poker to not only remain strong
 but to grow and help support the now smaller number of casinos in
 Washington State.
 

1.         Hours of Operation – would allow for 24-7 operations
2.    Promotions – enhances opportunities for operating promotions
3.    Poker wager limits – raises the poker limit to $100 on all games
 and $300 for poker games that also operate house banked games
4.    Allows the rake at 10% removing the $5 limit and allows for
 $100 wager on all games, not just Texas Hold’em

 
 
Thank You,
 
Dan Baker
Controller
Black Pearl Spokane
 

mailto:accounting@blackpearlspokane.com
mailto:susan.newer@wsgc.wa.gov
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/agenda/2016/may-rule-petition-rga.pdf
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/agenda/2016/may-rule-petition-rga.pdf
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/agenda/2016/may-rule-petition-gt.pdf
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/agenda/2016/may-rule-petition-gt.pdf
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/agenda/2016/may-rule-petition-tm.pdf
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/agenda/2016/may-rule-petition-tm.pdf


From: Newer, Susan (GMB)
To: Griffin, Tina (GMB); Hunter, Amy (GMB)
Subject: FW: Rule Changes for Card rooms - Public Comment
Date: Wednesday, June 15, 2016 4:47:30 PM

FYI – This came in today from Susan’s email.
 

From: Mark and Patricia Greene [mailto:maloa@hotmail.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, June 15, 2016 3:29 PM
To: Newer, Susan (GMB) <susan.newer@wsgc.wa.gov>
Cc: Lance Rinard <lancerin@aol.com>; Dolores (RGA) <DChiechi@rga-wa.org>
Subject: Rule Changes for Card rooms
 
Dear Susan,
 
As owner of Lancer Lanes and Casino I would like to let you know that I'm in favor of all the
 rule changes to do with 24 hours open, Poker limits and rake,  and enhanced opportunities
 for promotions.  Please go ahead and adopt the new rules for these items.
 
Thank you,
 
Mark Greene

mailto:/O=WA.GOV/OU=GMB/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=SUSANA
mailto:tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:amy.hunter@wsgc.wa.gov


From: Newer, Susan (GMB)
To: Griffin, Tina (GMB); Hunter, Amy (GMB)
Subject: FW: Rule Changes - Public Comment
Date: Wednesday, June 15, 2016 4:50:43 PM

Another to add
 

From: Ian Riley [mailto:ianriley@blackpearlspokane.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, June 15, 2016 2:04 PM
To: Newer, Susan (GMB) <susan.newer@wsgc.wa.gov>
Cc: Dolores Chiechi <DChiechi@rga-wa.org>
Subject: Rule Changes
 

Attention WSGC
 
To whom it may concern
 
Please find below a list of potential rule changes that I support. I believe all of
 the following to be a positive change to assist Poker to not only remain strong
 but to grow and help support the now smaller number of casinos in
 Washington State.
 

1.         Hours of Operation – would allow for 24-7 operations
2.      Promotions – enhances opportunities for operating promotions
3.    Poker wager limits – raises the poker limit to $100 on all games
 and $300 for poker games that also operate house banked games
4.    Allows the rake at 10% removing the $5 limit and allows for
 $100 wager on all games, not just Texas Hold’em
 

Thank you,
Regards,
Ian Riley

 

mailto:/O=WA.GOV/OU=GMB/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=SUSANA
mailto:tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:amy.hunter@wsgc.wa.gov
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/agenda/2016/may-rule-petition-rga.pdf
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/agenda/2016/may-rule-petition-rga.pdf
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/agenda/2016/may-rule-petition-gt.pdf
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/agenda/2016/may-rule-petition-gt.pdf
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/agenda/2016/may-rule-petition-tm.pdf
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/agenda/2016/may-rule-petition-tm.pdf


From: Newer, Susan (GMB)
To: Griffin, Tina (GMB)
Subject: FW: Proposed Rule Changes - Public Comment
Date: Thursday, June 16, 2016 10:48:40 AM

 
 

From: Josh Herschlip [mailto:josh_herschlip@msn.com] 
Sent: Thursday, June 16, 2016 12:31 AM
To: Newer, Susan (GMB) <susan.newer@wsgc.wa.gov>
Cc: Dolores Chiechi <dchiechi@rga-wa.org>
Subject: Proposed Rule Changes
 
My name is Josh Herschlip, I am the Regional Manager for the Buzz Inn Steakhouse
 Corporation, This includes representation of the Buzz Inn Steakhouse and Casino located in
 East Wenatchee.  We also previously owned and operated Ace's Casino which was located in
 Arlington, WA.  I'm contacting you regarding potential rule changes.  The reason I mention
 the previous location is these rule changes could have been potential difference makers in our
 survival.  Aces was located within 10 miles of three tribal casinos (Tulalip, Quil Ceda and
 Angel of the Winds)
 
*We support the change in the hours of operation.  The forcing of closure to our
 establishments when a potential of business exists and is accessible throughout the state with
 no limitations creates an unfair advantage as well as limits customer base with staggered
 schedules.  Many occupations include swing shift/ grave yard shifts the forced closure drives
 that potential business elsewhere.
 
*We support the changes in promotion allowances.  These restrictions put a damper on our
 creativity and the possibilities of great promotions to entertain our guests.  These promotions
 are how we create excitement about our businesses and generate new business!  People like
 spinning wheels and the excitement of the possibility.
 
*We support the increased poker wagers.  Increasing this wager not only helps level the
 playing field that exists in our state but makes it less of a conversation to our guests as what
 the difference of playing poker at a tribal casino and our card rooms.  It also allows greater
 flexibility to games being spread.  I believe most people agree poker is a game of skill and
 proper wagering is an important part of the game and allows players to better protect their
 investment or wager by betting accordingly to pot size.  The greater the spread the better the
 game.  That being said all games approved to be spread or played should allow for he same
 wager to alleviate confusion to our staffs, agents and guests.
 
*We support the change in rake structure.  Allowing our operations to rake up to 10% of the
 pot allows for the rooms to absorb portions of the costs that have been added to our day to day
 operation.(Health Care, Minimum Wage Increase, Restrictive Scheduling, Sick Leave, Salary
 Structure as well as rising product cost)  These are obviously much greater costs than
 increased rake can fix but it's a step in the right direction for those who offer poker.  We are
 an industry in great need of finding a balance for gaming in our state we need new revenue to
 just survive, while the current rules allow the same industry to thrive with a few major
 adjustments to the rules.

mailto:/O=WA.GOV/OU=GMB/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=SUSANA
mailto:tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov


 
Please support these changes and help the R.G.A. balance out gaming in our state!
 
Thank You For Your Time.
Josh Herschlip



From: Newer, Susan (GMB)
To: Griffin, Tina (GMB)
Subject: FW: Call to action reply - Public Comment
Date: Thursday, June 16, 2016 10:54:32 AM

FYI
 

From: B.J. Garbe [mailto:bj@lakebowl.com] 
Sent: Thursday, June 16, 2016 10:17 AM
To: Newer, Susan (GMB) <susan.newer@wsgc.wa.gov>
Subject: Call to action reply
 
Hello Susan,
 
As part of the Call To Action email, I would like to let you know that Lake Bowl/Papa's Sports
 Lounge and Casino is in favor of all rule changes.
 
Thanks,
 
B.J. Garbe, CEO
Lake Bowl Inc. 

mailto:/O=WA.GOV/OU=GMB/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=SUSANA
mailto:tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov


From: Newer, Susan (GMB)
To: Griffin, Tina (GMB)
Subject: FW: petitions
Date: Monday, June 27, 2016 2:10:31 PM

From: George Teeny [mailto:gteeny@thephoenixcasino.com] 
Sent: Monday, June 27, 2016 1:47 PM
To: Newer, Susan (GMB) <susan.newer@wsgc.wa.gov>
Cc: dolores@rga-wa.org; Jo England <jengland@thephoenixcasino.com>
Subject: petitions
 
Afternoon Commissioners
This email is to notify you that my club, The Phoenix Casino, supports the petitions that have been
 submitted to you by private parties and the RGA.
WAC rules to be modified and petitions to follow:

1)      230-15-025 ---- Hours of Operation
2)      230-06-030 ---- Restrictions and Conditions – Gambling Promotions
3)      230-06-031 ---- Promotional Contests of Chance
4)      230-15-080 ---- Authorized Fees and Authorized Methods of Collection
5)      230-15-135 ---- Wagering Limits for Nonhouse-Banked Card Games

 
These petitions, all or in part, will help the gaming industry as a whole.
However, with that being said, none of these petitions are the “golden ticket” for the commercial
 clubs to grow and prosper in the years ahead. The only thing that might have that affect will be
 some form of electronic (gaming) pull tab machines.
 
thank you for your time and consideration,
sincerely,
george teeny
 
 

mailto:/O=WA.GOV/OU=GMB/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=SUSANA
mailto:tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov


 
 
Tab 6: July 2016 Commission Meeting Agenda.         Statutory Authority 9.46.070, RCW 9.46.0282 
 

Who Proposed the Rule Change? 
George Teeny, owner of the Last Frontier and New Phoenix, house-banked card rooms that may offer 

house-banked and nonhouse-banked card games 
Describe the Proposed Change / Background 

Bold/Underline = Changes made after the May 2016 Commission meeting. 
 
Mr. Teeny is requesting increased wagering limits for non-house-banked card games, such as poker.  
Specifically, the proposed change would: 

• Increase the maximum amount of a single wager on any authorized poker game, not just Texas 
Hold ‘Em, from $40 to $100 at a Class F card rooms; and  

• Increase the maximum amount of a single wager on any authorized poker game, not just Texas 
Hold ‘Em, played at house-banked card room licensees to $300, the same limits as those for 
house-banked card games.   
 

A Small Business Economic Impact Statement was not prepared.  These rule changes would allow for 
higher betting limits and would benefit businesses.  The rule change would not impose additional 
costs to licensees.  
 
Attachments: 

• April 12, 2016, email from Dolores Chiechi on behalf of George Teeny requesting a rule change to 
WAC 230-15-135. 

• May 3, 2016, email from Dolores Chiechi on behalf of George Teeny revising the original rule 
petition language to WAC 230-15-135. 

• Notice of rule-making sent to all card game licensees  
Licensees Impacted  

The proposed change would impact three Class F card rooms and those house-banked card room licensees 
that offer nonhouse-banked card games.  As of April 29, 2016, there were 50 licensed and operating 
house-banked card rooms.    

Regulatory Impacts 
The petitioner stated in their letter that house-banked card room licensees’ pay the same per table fee to 
the gaming commission no matter if they use the table for a house-banked or nonhouse-banked table game.  
The same level of staffing and regulations/guidelines are required of the Class HB licensees if they are 
offering non-house banked games.  

Policy Consideration 
• The amount of money on the table (pot) will increase significantly. 
• A wager in poker would now be the same as a house-banked card game wager.     

Statements supporting and opposing  
See attached emails from stakeholders.   

Staff Recommendation 
Further Discussion. 

 

Amend 
WAC 230-15-135 Wagering limits for nonhouse-banked card games. 

 
July 2016 – Further Discussion 
June 2016 – No Meeting 
May 2016 – Up for Discussion and Possible Filing 
April 2016 – Study Session 



Proposed Effective Date for Rule Change 
31 days from filing. 

 



Amended Section 
 
WAC 230-15-135 Wagering limits for nonhouse-banked card games.  
 
Card room licensees must not exceed these wagering limits. 

1) Poker- 
a) There must be no more than five betting rounds in any one game; and There must be 

no more than four wagers in any betting round, for example, the initial 
b) wager plus three raises; and 
c) The maximum amount of a single wager must not exceed forty dollars; however, 

class F may offer a maximum single wager not to exceed one hundred dollars and 
house-banked card game licensees may offer a single wager not to exceed one 
hundred dollars for the game of Texas Hold’em three-hundred dollars; 

2) Games based on achieving a specific number of points- Each point must not exceed five 
cents in value; 

3) Ante- No more than the maximum wager allowed for the first betting round for any 
game, except for Panguingue (Pan). The ante may, by house rule:  
a) Be made by one or more players, but the total ante may not exceed the maximum 

wager allowed for the first betting round; and 
b) Be used as part of a player’s wager; 

4) Panguingue (Pan)- The maximum value of a chip must not exceed ten dollars. An ante 
must not exceed one chip. We prohibit doubling of conditions. Players going out may 
collect no more than two additional chips for going out from each participating player. 



From: Newer, Susan (GMB)
To: Griffin, Tina (GMB); Trujillo, Dave (GMB); Hunter, Amy (GMB)
Cc: Rancour, Michelle (GMB); Wittmers, Keith (GMB); Stueckle, Joshua (GMB)
Subject: New Petition from George Teeny
Date: Tuesday, April 12, 2016 11:33:24 AM
Attachments: GT Wager Limits.docx

Attached is a new petition for rule change submitted by George Teeny, via RGA.  I will file a CR 101.
I will let Mr. Teeny know we have received his petition.
 

From: Dolores Chiechi [mailto:DChiechi@rga-wa.org] 
Sent: Tuesday, April 12, 2016 10:20 AM
To: Newer, Susan (GMB) <susan.newer@wsgc.wa.gov>
Cc: 'George Teeny' <gteeny@thephoenixcasino.com>
Subject: FW: Document1
 
Susan,
I am forwarding the attached rule change request on behalf of George Teeny,
 petitioner. 
 
We understand the timing is such that it will appear on the May study session
 agenda, with filing up at the July meeting, since there is no meeting scheduled in
 June.
 
Thank you for your attention.
 
Dolores A Chiechi
Executive Director
Recreational Gaming Association
PO Box 1787
Olympia, WA  98507-1787
360-352-0514 office
WWW.RGA-WA.ORG
 
UNITED WE STAND - DIVIDED WE FOLD
 
From: George Teeny [mailto:gteeny@thephoenixcasino.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, April 06, 2016 3:55 PM
To: dolores@rga-wa.org
Subject: FW: Document1
 
Good Afternoon Susan
I am submitting this rule change to be added to the agenda for the WSGC May meeting in Pasco,
 Washington.
 
Reason for the rule change; if you are licensed as an Enhance Cardroom:

1)      The licensees pay the same per table fee to the gaming commission no matter if they use
 the table for Blackjack (or any other house banked game) or poker;

2)      the licensees have to have the same level of surveillance, security and management for any

mailto:/O=WA.GOV/OU=GMB/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=SUSANA
mailto:tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:dave.trujillo@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:amy.hunter@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:michelle.rancour@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:keith.wittmers@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:joshua.stueckle@wsgc.wa.gov
file:////c/WWW.RGA-WA.ORG
mailto:gteeny@thephoenixcasino.com
mailto:dolores@rga-wa.org

WAC 230-15-135 Wagering limits for nonhouse-banked card games. Card room licensees must not exceed these wagering limits.

1) Poker-

a) There must be no more than five betting rounds in any one game; and There must be no more than four wagers in any betting round, for example, the initial

b) wager plus three raises; and

c) [bookmark: _GoBack]The maximum amount of a single wager must not exceed (forty) one hundred dollars; however, (class F and) house-banked card game licensees may offer a single wager not to exceed (one hundred dollars for the game of Texas Hold’em;) the maximum allowable single wager limit in WAC 230-15-140

2) Games based on achieving a specific number of points- Each point must not exceed five cents in value;

3) Ante- No more than the maximum wager allowed for the first betting round for any game, except for Panguingue (Pan). The ante may, by house rule: 

a) Be made by one or more players, but the total ante may not exceed the maximum wager allowed for the first betting round; and

b) Be used as part of a player’s wager;

4) Panguingue (Pan)- The maximum value of a chip must not exceed ten dollars. An ante must not exceed one chip. We prohibit doubling of conditions. Players going out may collect no more than two additional chips for going out from each participating player.



 game under the Enhanced Cardroom license;
3)      the same regulations/guidelines are used for (e.g. “fills and credits”, cash for chips, cash-out

 of chips, fiduciary accounts for players’ funds, etc.) on all enhanced gaming tables (poker
 included);

 
 
Please let me know if there is anything else needed of me.
sincerely,
George Teeny
 



WAC 230-15-135 Wagering limits for nonhouse-banked card games. 
Card room licensees must not exceed these wagering limits. 

1) Poker- 
a) There must be no more than five betting rounds in any one game; and 

There must be no more than four wagers in any betting round, for 
example, the initial 

b) wager plus three raises; and 
c) The maximum amount of a single wager must not exceed (forty) one 

hundred dollars; however, (class F and) house-banked card game 
licensees may offer a single wager not to exceed (one hundred dollars 
for the game of Texas Hold’em;) the maximum allowable single wager 
limit in WAC 230-15-140 

2) Games based on achieving a specific number of points- Each point must not 
exceed five cents in value; 

3) Ante- No more than the maximum wager allowed for the first betting round 
for any game, except for Panguingue (Pan). The ante may, by house rule:  
a) Be made by one or more players, but the total ante may not exceed the 

maximum wager allowed for the first betting round; and 
b) Be used as part of a player’s wager; 

4) Panguingue (Pan)- The maximum value of a chip must not exceed ten 
dollars. An ante must not exceed one chip. We prohibit doubling of 
conditions. Players going out may collect no more than two additional chips 
for going out from each participating player. 



From: Dolores Chiechi
To: Trujillo, Dave (GMB)
Cc: Griffin, Tina (GMB); "Jo England"; Newer, Susan (GMB); Stueckle, Joshua (GMB); Wittmers, Keith (GMB);

 gteeny@thephoenixcasino.com
Subject: Revised wagering limit rule
Date: Tuesday, May 03, 2016 12:53:16 PM
Attachments: GT Wager Limits rev.docx

Greetings:
On behalf of George Teeny attached please find a revised draft for his petition for
 rule change relating to poker limits.
 
Please let us know if you need further information.  
 
Thank you for your attention.
 
Dolores A Chiechi
Executive Director
Recreational Gaming Association
PO Box 1787
Olympia, WA  98507-1787
360-352-0514 office
WWW.RGA-WA.ORG
 
UNITED WE STAND - DIVIDED WE FOLD
 
From: George Teeny [mailto:gteeny@thephoenixcasino.com] 
Sent: Thursday, April 28, 2016 8:48 AM
To: DChiechi@rga-wa.org
Cc: Jo England
Subject: FW: wagering limit rule
 
FYI
 

From: Wittmers, Keith (GMB) [mailto:keith.wittmers@wsgc.wa.gov] 
Sent: Thursday, April 28, 2016 8:41 AM
To: 'George Teeny'
Cc: Newer, Susan (GMB)
Subject: RE: wagering limit rule
 
George
 
Thanks for the clarification.  This is how I wrote up the proposal for you.
 
Thanks KW
 

From: George Teeny [mailto:gteeny@thephoenixcasino.com] 
Sent: Thursday, April 28, 2016 8:33 AM
To: Wittmers, Keith (GMB) <keith.wittmers@wsgc.wa.gov>
Cc: Newer, Susan (GMB) <susan.newer@wsgc.wa.gov>
Subject: RE: wagering limit rule

mailto:DChiechi@rga-wa.org
mailto:dave.trujillo@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:jengland@thephoenixcasino.com
mailto:susan.newer@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:joshua.stueckle@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:keith.wittmers@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:gteeny@thephoenixcasino.com
file:////c/WWW.RGA-WA.ORG
mailto:keith.wittmers@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:gteeny@thephoenixcasino.com
mailto:keith.wittmers@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:susan.newer@wsgc.wa.gov

WAC 230-15-135 Wagering limits for nonhouse-banked card games. Card room licensees must not exceed these wagering limits.

1) Poker-

a) There must be no more than five betting rounds in any one game; and There must be no more than four wagers in any betting round, for example, the initial

b) wager plus three raises; and

c) [bookmark: _GoBack]The maximum amount of a single wager must not exceed forty dollars; however, class F may offer a maximum single wager not to exceed one hundred dollars; and house-banked card game licensees may offer a single wager not to exceed one hundred dollars for the game of Texas Hold’em; three-hundred dollars.

2) Games based on achieving a specific number of points- Each point must not exceed five cents in value;

3) Ante- No more than the maximum wager allowed for the first betting round for any game, except for Panguingue (Pan). The ante may, by house rule: 

a) Be made by one or more players, but the total ante may not exceed the maximum wager allowed for the first betting round; and

b) Be used as part of a player’s wager;

4) Panguingue (Pan)- The maximum value of a chip must not exceed ten dollars. An ante must not exceed one chip. We prohibit doubling of conditions. Players going out may collect no more than two additional chips for going out from each participating player.



 
Good Morning

During our discussion yesterday (April 27th), Keith shared with me, that the way I had written my
 petition would open up all non-house banked poker rooms and the games that they offered, to a
 maximum single wager of $100 and that was not my intent.
 
My intent was to allow “Class F” cardrooms, not only to have $100 limits in the game of Hold’em,
 but to all poker games that they offer.
House-banked rooms would be able to offer limits (in all types of poker games offered) that match
 the maximum single allowable wager limit in WAC 230-15-140
All other non-house poker rooms (e.g. “Class E”) would offer the maximum amount of a single wager
 not to exceed $40 to all of the games that they offer.
 
So, in referencing the rewrite in --- WAC-15-135
Wagering limits for nonhouse-banked card games.

1)      POKER  
c) The maximum amount of a single wager must not exceed forty dollars; however, class F
 may offer a maximum single wager not to exceed one hundred dollars; and, house-banked
 cardroom licensees may offer a single wager not to exceed the maximum allowable single
 wager limit in WAC 230-15-140
 

Keith or Susan if need anything else, please let me know.
work phone: 360-573-6442   ext 321
e-mail address: gteeny@thephoenixcasino.com
 
gdt
 
 

From: Wittmers, Keith (GMB) [mailto:keith.wittmers@wsgc.wa.gov] 
Sent: Wednesday, April 27, 2016 4:33 PM
To: 'gteeny@thephoenixcasino.com'
Cc: Newer, Susan (GMB)
Subject: wagering limit rule
 
George
 
Please send a clarification email regarding the rule change verbiage we discussed.  Please send to
 Susan Newer and myself.
 
Thanks KW

mailto:gteeny@thephoenixcasino.com
mailto:keith.wittmers@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:gteeny@thephoenixcasino.com


WAC 230-15-135 Wagering limits for nonhouse-banked card games. 
Card room licensees must not exceed these wagering limits. 

1) Poker- 
a) There must be no more than five betting rounds in any one game; and 

There must be no more than four wagers in any betting round, for 
example, the initial 

b) wager plus three raises; and 
c) The maximum amount of a single wager must not exceed forty dollars; 

however, class F may offer a maximum single wager not to exceed one 
hundred dollars; and house-banked card game licensees may offer a 
single wager not to exceed one hundred dollars for the game of Texas 
Hold’em; three-hundred dollars. 

2) Games based on achieving a specific number of points- Each point must not 
exceed five cents in value; 

3) Ante- No more than the maximum wager allowed for the first betting round 
for any game, except for Panguingue (Pan). The ante may, by house rule:  
a) Be made by one or more players, but the total ante may not exceed the 

maximum wager allowed for the first betting round; and 
b) Be used as part of a player’s wager; 

4) Panguingue (Pan)- The maximum value of a chip must not exceed ten 
dollars. An ante must not exceed one chip. We prohibit doubling of 
conditions. Players going out may collect no more than two additional chips 
for going out from each participating player. 





From: Newer, Susan (GMB)
To: Griffin, Tina (GMB)
Subject: FW: Call to action reply - Public Comment
Date: Thursday, June 16, 2016 10:54:32 AM

FYI
 

From: B.J. Garbe [mailto:bj@lakebowl.com] 
Sent: Thursday, June 16, 2016 10:17 AM
To: Newer, Susan (GMB) <susan.newer@wsgc.wa.gov>
Subject: Call to action reply
 
Hello Susan,
 
As part of the Call To Action email, I would like to let you know that Lake Bowl/Papa's Sports
 Lounge and Casino is in favor of all rule changes.
 
Thanks,
 
B.J. Garbe, CEO
Lake Bowl Inc. 

mailto:/O=WA.GOV/OU=GMB/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=SUSANA
mailto:tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov


From: Newer, Susan (GMB)
To: Griffin, Tina (GMB); Hunter, Amy (GMB)
Subject: FW: Rule Changes - Public Comment
Date: Wednesday, June 15, 2016 4:48:19 PM

FYI – From Susan’s email.
 

From: Accounting [mailto:accounting@blackpearlspokane.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, June 15, 2016 2:39 PM
To: Newer, Susan (GMB) <susan.newer@wsgc.wa.gov>
Subject: Rule Changes
 

Attention WSGC,
 
To whom it may concern
 
Please find below a list of potential rule changes that I support. I believe all of
 the following to be a positive change to assist Poker to not only remain strong
 but to grow and help support the now smaller number of casinos in
 Washington State.
 

1.         Hours of Operation – would allow for 24-7 operations
2.    Promotions – enhances opportunities for operating promotions
3.    Poker wager limits – raises the poker limit to $100 on all games
 and $300 for poker games that also operate house banked games
4.    Allows the rake at 10% removing the $5 limit and allows for
 $100 wager on all games, not just Texas Hold’em

 
 
Thank You,
 
Dan Baker
Controller
Black Pearl Spokane
 

mailto:/O=WA.GOV/OU=GMB/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=SUSANA
mailto:tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:amy.hunter@wsgc.wa.gov
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/agenda/2016/may-rule-petition-rga.pdf
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/agenda/2016/may-rule-petition-rga.pdf
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/agenda/2016/may-rule-petition-gt.pdf
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/agenda/2016/may-rule-petition-gt.pdf
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/agenda/2016/may-rule-petition-tm.pdf
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/agenda/2016/may-rule-petition-tm.pdf


From: Newer, Susan (GMB)
To: Griffin, Tina (GMB); Hunter, Amy (GMB)
Subject: FW: Rule Changes - Public Comment
Date: Wednesday, June 15, 2016 4:50:43 PM

Another to add
 

From: Ian Riley [mailto:ianriley@blackpearlspokane.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, June 15, 2016 2:04 PM
To: Newer, Susan (GMB) <susan.newer@wsgc.wa.gov>
Cc: Dolores Chiechi <DChiechi@rga-wa.org>
Subject: Rule Changes
 

Attention WSGC
 
To whom it may concern
 
Please find below a list of potential rule changes that I support. I believe all of
 the following to be a positive change to assist Poker to not only remain strong
 but to grow and help support the now smaller number of casinos in
 Washington State.
 

1.         Hours of Operation – would allow for 24-7 operations
2.      Promotions – enhances opportunities for operating promotions
3.    Poker wager limits – raises the poker limit to $100 on all games
 and $300 for poker games that also operate house banked games
4.    Allows the rake at 10% removing the $5 limit and allows for
 $100 wager on all games, not just Texas Hold’em
 

Thank you,
Regards,
Ian Riley

 

mailto:/O=WA.GOV/OU=GMB/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=SUSANA
mailto:tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:amy.hunter@wsgc.wa.gov
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/agenda/2016/may-rule-petition-rga.pdf
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/agenda/2016/may-rule-petition-rga.pdf
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/agenda/2016/may-rule-petition-gt.pdf
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/agenda/2016/may-rule-petition-gt.pdf
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/agenda/2016/may-rule-petition-tm.pdf
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/agenda/2016/may-rule-petition-tm.pdf


From: Newer, Susan (GMB)
To: Griffin, Tina (GMB)
Subject: FW: Proposed Rule Changes - Public Comment
Date: Thursday, June 16, 2016 10:48:40 AM

 
 

From: Josh Herschlip [mailto:josh_herschlip@msn.com] 
Sent: Thursday, June 16, 2016 12:31 AM
To: Newer, Susan (GMB) <susan.newer@wsgc.wa.gov>
Cc: Dolores Chiechi <dchiechi@rga-wa.org>
Subject: Proposed Rule Changes
 
My name is Josh Herschlip, I am the Regional Manager for the Buzz Inn Steakhouse
 Corporation, This includes representation of the Buzz Inn Steakhouse and Casino located in
 East Wenatchee.  We also previously owned and operated Ace's Casino which was located in
 Arlington, WA.  I'm contacting you regarding potential rule changes.  The reason I mention
 the previous location is these rule changes could have been potential difference makers in our
 survival.  Aces was located within 10 miles of three tribal casinos (Tulalip, Quil Ceda and
 Angel of the Winds)
 
*We support the change in the hours of operation.  The forcing of closure to our
 establishments when a potential of business exists and is accessible throughout the state with
 no limitations creates an unfair advantage as well as limits customer base with staggered
 schedules.  Many occupations include swing shift/ grave yard shifts the forced closure drives
 that potential business elsewhere.
 
*We support the changes in promotion allowances.  These restrictions put a damper on our
 creativity and the possibilities of great promotions to entertain our guests.  These promotions
 are how we create excitement about our businesses and generate new business!  People like
 spinning wheels and the excitement of the possibility.
 
*We support the increased poker wagers.  Increasing this wager not only helps level the
 playing field that exists in our state but makes it less of a conversation to our guests as what
 the difference of playing poker at a tribal casino and our card rooms.  It also allows greater
 flexibility to games being spread.  I believe most people agree poker is a game of skill and
 proper wagering is an important part of the game and allows players to better protect their
 investment or wager by betting accordingly to pot size.  The greater the spread the better the
 game.  That being said all games approved to be spread or played should allow for he same
 wager to alleviate confusion to our staffs, agents and guests.
 
*We support the change in rake structure.  Allowing our operations to rake up to 10% of the
 pot allows for the rooms to absorb portions of the costs that have been added to our day to day
 operation.(Health Care, Minimum Wage Increase, Restrictive Scheduling, Sick Leave, Salary
 Structure as well as rising product cost)  These are obviously much greater costs than
 increased rake can fix but it's a step in the right direction for those who offer poker.  We are
 an industry in great need of finding a balance for gaming in our state we need new revenue to
 just survive, while the current rules allow the same industry to thrive with a few major
 adjustments to the rules.

mailto:/O=WA.GOV/OU=GMB/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=SUSANA
mailto:tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov


 
Please support these changes and help the R.G.A. balance out gaming in our state!
 
Thank You For Your Time.
Josh Herschlip



From: Newer, Susan (GMB)
To: Griffin, Tina (GMB); Hunter, Amy (GMB)
Subject: FW: Rule Changes for Card rooms - Public Comment
Date: Wednesday, June 15, 2016 4:47:30 PM

FYI – This came in today from Susan’s email.
 

From: Mark and Patricia Greene [mailto:maloa@hotmail.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, June 15, 2016 3:29 PM
To: Newer, Susan (GMB) <susan.newer@wsgc.wa.gov>
Cc: Lance Rinard <lancerin@aol.com>; Dolores (RGA) <DChiechi@rga-wa.org>
Subject: Rule Changes for Card rooms
 
Dear Susan,
 
As owner of Lancer Lanes and Casino I would like to let you know that I'm in favor of all the
 rule changes to do with 24 hours open, Poker limits and rake,  and enhanced opportunities
 for promotions.  Please go ahead and adopt the new rules for these items.
 
Thank you,
 
Mark Greene

mailto:/O=WA.GOV/OU=GMB/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=SUSANA
mailto:tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:amy.hunter@wsgc.wa.gov
























From: Newer, Susan (GMB)
To: Griffin, Tina (GMB)
Subject: FW: petitions
Date: Monday, June 27, 2016 2:10:31 PM

From: George Teeny [mailto:gteeny@thephoenixcasino.com] 
Sent: Monday, June 27, 2016 1:47 PM
To: Newer, Susan (GMB) <susan.newer@wsgc.wa.gov>
Cc: dolores@rga-wa.org; Jo England <jengland@thephoenixcasino.com>
Subject: petitions
 
Afternoon Commissioners
This email is to notify you that my club, The Phoenix Casino, supports the petitions that have been
 submitted to you by private parties and the RGA.
WAC rules to be modified and petitions to follow:

1)      230-15-025 ---- Hours of Operation
2)      230-06-030 ---- Restrictions and Conditions – Gambling Promotions
3)      230-06-031 ---- Promotional Contests of Chance
4)      230-15-080 ---- Authorized Fees and Authorized Methods of Collection
5)      230-15-135 ---- Wagering Limits for Nonhouse-Banked Card Games

 
These petitions, all or in part, will help the gaming industry as a whole.
However, with that being said, none of these petitions are the “golden ticket” for the commercial
 clubs to grow and prosper in the years ahead. The only thing that might have that affect will be
 some form of electronic (gaming) pull tab machines.
 
thank you for your time and consideration,
sincerely,
george teeny
 
 

mailto:/O=WA.GOV/OU=GMB/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=SUSANA
mailto:tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov


From: Newer, Susan (GMB)
To: Griffin, Tina (GMB)
Subject: FW: petitions
Date: Monday, June 27, 2016 2:10:17 PM

From: George Teeny [mailto:gteeny@thephoenixcasino.com] 
Sent: Monday, June 27, 2016 1:49 PM
To: Newer, Susan (GMB) <susan.newer@wsgc.wa.gov>
Cc: dolores@rga-wa.org; Jo England <jengland@thephoenixcasino.com>
Subject: FW: petitions
 
 
Afternoon Commissioners
This email is to notify you that my club, THE LAST FRONTIER CASINO, supports the petitions that
 have been submitted to you by private parties and the RGA.
WAC rules to be modified and petitions to follow:

1)      230-15-025 ---- Hours of Operation
2)      230-06-030 ---- Restrictions and Conditions – Gambling Promotions
3)      230-06-031 ---- Promotional Contests of Chance
4)      230-15-080 ---- Authorized Fees and Authorized Methods of Collection
5)      230-15-135 ---- Wagering Limits for Nonhouse-Banked Card Games

 
These petitions, all or in part, will help the gaming industry as a whole.
However, with that being said, none of these petitions are the “golden ticket” for the commercial
 clubs to grow and prosper in the years ahead. The only thing that might have that affect will be
 some form of electronic (gaming) pull tab machines.
 
thank you for your time and consideration,
sincerely,
george teeny
 
 

mailto:/O=WA.GOV/OU=GMB/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=SUSANA
mailto:tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov


 
 
 
 
 
 
Tab 7: July 2016 Commission Meeting Agenda.         Statutory Authority 9.46.070, RCW 9.46.0201 
 

Who Proposed the Rule Change? 
Pat Tompkins, petitioner. 

Describe the Proposed Change / Background 
Mr. Tompkins is requesting eight requirements related to group 12 Amusement Games be repealed.  
According to Mr. Tompkins: 

“The amended sections in these WAC's are no longer needed as the WSGC just recently adopted multiple 
amendments in Section WAC 230-13-005 Amusement games authorized that makes group 12 games no 
different than group 1 – 11 games. There is no longer any reason to require group 12 commercial 
amusement operators and manufactures to these restrictions and requirements. This is discriminatory 
towards Group 12 game commercial amusement operators and manufactures.” 

In July 2015, the Commissioners authorized group 12 amusement games to be played by persons 21 and 
over.  With implementation of this new activity, staff identified the rule changes Mr. Tompkins is 
requesting be repealed as necessary to ensure effective regulation. 

The Commissioners passed seven of these rules at their March meeting, after several months of discussion.  
WAC 230-13-080(4), which limited the number of group 12 amusement games per location, was passed at 
the April meeting, after several months of discussion. 

The requirements Mr. Tompkins is requesting be repealed: 

 1. Set wagering limits of $5 and prize limits of $1,000 for group 12 amusement games.  If 
repealed, group 12 amusement games would have no wagering or prize limits. 
 

2. Require testing of group 12 amusement games by our gambling lab. If repealed, group 12 
amusement games would not be tested by the Commission’s gambling lab. 
 

3. Require group 12 amusement games to be sold or leased by a licensed manufacturer or 
distributor to a licensee.  
 

4. Require the review of group 12 amusement games with costs for the review being reimbursed 
by the manufacturers.  If the requirement for testing by the lab is repealed (2 above), this rule 
would not be needed.     
 

5. Require all group 12 amusement games to have an annual identification stamp, which would 
cost $250.  If this requirement is repealed, the identification stamp would be $29.68, which is 
the cost of an identification stamp for group 1 through 11 amusement games. 

 

Repeal: 
 

WAC 230-13-135(2) Maximum wagers and prize limitations. 
WAC 230-13-010 Approval of new amusement games (Repeal certain portions). 

WAC 230-06-110(6) Buying, selling, or transferring gambling equipment. 
WAC 230-05-030(10) Fees for other businesses. 
WAC 230-05-030(11) Fees for other businesses. 

WAC 230-03-190(1) Applying for a distributor license. 
WAC 230-03-185(1)(c) Applying for a manufacturer license. 

WAC 230-13-080(4) Operating coin or token activated amusement games. 
 

July 2016 – Up for Discussion and Possible Filing 



 
6. Require distributors of group 12 amusement games to be licensed.   

 
7. Require manufacturers of group 12 amusement games to be licensed.  Manufacturers of other 

amusement games are not licensed. 
 

8. Limit the number of group 12 amusement games a licensee may have in their licensed 
premises to twenty for charitable and nonprofit licensees and ten for commercial licensees.  If 
repealed, there would not be a limit on the number of group 12 amusement games an operator 
could have.  

 
A Small Business Economic Impact Statement was not prepared.  These rules change would decrease 
requirements and would not impose additional costs to licensees.  
 
Attachments: 

• Eight petitions submitted by Mr. Tompkins 
• Notice of rule-making sent to all amusement game licensees  
• Budget Proviso (the following language was included in the budget passed by the legislature):“The 

commission is directed to review and reconsider, including repeal, rules adopted to authorize the 
amusement games classified as group 12 under WAC 230-13-067, recognizing the impact such 
games may have on state lottery revenues used to support public education programs.” 

 
Licensees Impacted  

Group 12 operators, distributors and manufacturers. 
Statements supporting and opposing  

None to date. 
Staff Recommendation 

Under the requirements of the Administrative Procedure Act, the Commission must take action on a 
petition within 60 days of receiving it.  Your options are:   

 
1) Initiate rule-making proceedings (file the rule for further discussion);  
2) Deny the petition in writing, stating the reasons for the denial and specifically address the 

concerns stated in the petition.  If appropriate, the Commission must indicate alternative 
means by which the agency will address the concerns raised in the petition; or you could 
also, 

3) Propose an alternative version of the rule. 
 

Proposed Effective Date for Rule Change 
Petitioner did not propose an effective date, presumably it would be 31 days from filing. 

 
  



Amended Section 
WAC 230-13-135 Maximum wagers and prize limitations. 
 

((1)) The maximum wager is three dollars and fifty cents and the maximum cost for a prize is 
five hundred dollars if school-aged minors are allowed to play amusement games at the 
following locations: 

(1((a))) Regional shopping centers; and 
(2((b))) Movie theaters; and 
(3((c))) Bowling alleys; and 
(4((d)) Miniature golf course facilities; and 
(5((e))) Skating facilities; and 
(6((f))) Family sports complexes. 
(a((i))) A "family sports complex" is a facility, at a permanent location, to which people go to 

play sports. A family sports complex must offer multiple sports activities, such as indoor soccer, 
outdoor soccer, lacrosse, baseball, Frisbee, and lawn bowling and the gross receipts must be 
primarily from these sports activities. 

(b((ii))) A family sports complex does not include a facility owned or operated by a school or 
school district; and 

(7((g))) Amusement centers; and 
(8((h))) Grocery or department stores. A "department or grocery store" means a business that 

offers the retail sale of a full line of clothing, accessories, and household goods, or a full line of 
dry grocery, canned goods, or nonfood items plus some perishable items, or a combination of 
these. A department or grocery store must have more than ten thousand square feet of retail and 
support space, not including the parking areas; and 

(9((i))) Any business whose primary activity is to provide food service for on premises 
consumption. 

(((2) For group 12 amusement games, the maximum wager is five dollars and the maximum 
cost for a prize is one thousand dollars.)) 
 
 
  



Amended Section 
WAC 230-13-010 Approval of new amusement games. 

(1) Operators may introduce new games that meet the standards of an authorized group (( 1 
through 11 amusement game)) without approval of the director as long as they provide the 
director or his or her designee with a description ((of the game)), the rules of play, and the group 
number of the game with an explanation of why that group was chosen at least sixty days before 
introducing the game. 

((The game cannot be introduced during this sixty day period unless approved sooner by us. 
The sixty day period stops when we request additional information.)) 

(2) ((The following procedures apply to all group 12 amusement games. Games approved 
before the effective date of this rule must be submitted for testing, including the application and 
deposit, by May 1, 2016: 

(a) An application and deposit must be submitted requesting approval of new group 12 
amusement games and the applicant will provide all requested information; 

(b) All amusement game equipment, programs, and games must be submitted for our review 
to verify compliance with chapter 9.46 RCW and Title 230 WAC. 

(i) The equipment, programs, and/or games submitted must be fully functional/operational 
and capable of being tested once our review begins. 

(ii) If the equipment is not fully functional/operational and ready for testing and review, we 
may require additional equipment or information before we start our review process. 

(c) Amusement game equipment, programs, and games submitted for review must be 
identical to what will be marketed, distributed, and deployed in Washington; 

(d) Group 12 amusement games must allow for a means of identifying and validating 
approved software that will demonstrate the authenticity of any software or game by a third-party 
verification program or tool; 

(e) We will have sixty days to finish our review once your application is complete; 
(f) We will notify you if we require additional information or if your equipment, program, or 

game malfunctions or is otherwise inoperable. 
(i) You will have fourteen days to provide any additional information or correct any 

equipment, program, or game malfunction and the sixty day review period stops when this 
occurs. The review period will restart when we receive the requested additional information or 
when the problem is corrected. You will be responsible for any additional cost needed to review 
the additional information provided or review of any equipment, program, or game malfunction; 

(ii) Review of your application may be terminated if you do not respond within fourteen 
days. You will be required to reapply under this rule if your application is terminated. 

(g) You can only begin selling, leasing, distributing, or operating these amusement games 
once all entities or individuals are licensed under chapter 230-03 WAC and the amusement game 
equipment, program, and/or game(s) are approved by the director or director's designee; 

(h) All licensed amusement games must operate as approved by the director or director's 
designee; and 

(i) We may keep equipment, software, and/or games submitted for review to allow for 
continued testing and training as long as the equipment remains in play in Washington. We are 
not liable for any damage to equipment while in our possession.)) 

(((3))) If the director or director's designee notifies the operator that the proposed game does 
not meet the standards or otherwise violates the gambling laws or rules, the operator: 

(a) May not introduce the game; and  
(b) If already introduced, must remove it from play until the operator brings it into 

compliance with the authorized group ((; and 
(((c) If you do not agree with the director or director's designee's decision, you may file a 

petition for declaratory order with the commission according to RCW 34.05.240 and chapter 
230-17 WAC)). 

 

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46
http://app.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=230-03
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=34.05.240
http://app.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=230-17


 
Amended Section 
WAC 230-06-110 Buying, selling, or transferring gambling equipment. 

(1) All licensees and persons authorized to possess gambling equipment must closely control 
the gambling equipment in their possession. 

(2) Before selling gambling equipment, licensees must ensure that the buyer possesses a valid 
gambling license or can legally possess the equipment without a license. 

(3) Before purchasing gambling equipment, licensees must ensure that the seller possesses a 
valid gambling license. 

(4) Applicants for Class F or house-banked card room licenses may purchase and possess 
gambling equipment during the prelicensing process, but only after receiving written approval 
from us. 

(5) Charitable and nonprofit organizations conducting unlicensed bingo games, as allowed by 
RCW 9.46.0321, may possess bingo equipment without a license. 

(6) ((Group 12 amusement games can only be sold or leased by a licensed manufacturer or 
distributor to a licensee. Lease agreements entered into prior to the effective date of this rule may 
continue until the manufacturer is licensed or December 31, 2016, whichever occurs first. 

(7))) Licensees may transfer gambling equipment as a part of a sale of a business as long as a 
condition of the sale is that the buyer receives a gambling license before the sale is complete. 
Licensees must make a complete record of all gambling equipment transferred in this manner, 
including I.D. stamps. Licensees must report these transfers, including a copy of the inventory 
record, to us. 

 
  

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.0321


Amended Section 
WAC 230-05-030 Fees for other businesses. 

All other business license applicants must pay the following fees to us when applying for 
gambling licenses, miscellaneous changes, or inspection services: 
1. Commercial amusement games 

   

License 

Annual 
Gross 

Gambling 
Receipts Fee 

Class A Premises 
only 

$347/$159 

Class B Up to 
$50,000 

$488 

Class C Up to 
$100,000 

$1,256 

Class D Up to 
$250,000 

$2,804 

Class E Up to 
$500,000 

$4,918 

Class F Up to 
$1,000,000 

$8,446 

Class G Over 
$1,000,000 

$10,568 

  

*  We reduce the license fee by $177 
when you apply for additional 
licenses at the same business 
premises, apply for multiple licenses 
at the same business premises, or a 
licensee is renewing an annual 
license. 

2. Distributor 
   

License 
Annual Gross 

Sales Fee 
Class A Nonpunch 

board/pull-tab 
only 

$699 

Class B Up to $250,000 $1,398 
Class C Up to $500,000 $2,100 
Class D Up to 

$1,000,000 
$2,804 

Class E Up to 
$2,500,000 

$3,654 

Class F Over $2,500,000 $4,498 



3. Fund-raising event equipment distributor 
   

License Description Fee 
Class A Rents or leases 

equipment for 
fund-raising event 
or recreational 
gaming activity up 
to 10 times per 
year. 

$276 

Class B Rents or leases 
equipment for 
fund-raising event 
or recreational 
gaming activity 
more than 10 times 
per year. 

$699 

4. Gambling service supplier 
  

License Fee 
Annual $728 
Financing, consulting, and 
management contract review 

$152 

5. Linked bingo prize provider 
  

License Fee 
Annual $4,680 

6. Call centers for enhanced raffles 
  

License Fee 
Annual $4,770 

7. Manufacturer 
   

License 
Annual Gross 

Sales Fee 
Class A Pull-tab 

dispensing 
devices only 

$699 

Class B Up to $250,000 $1,398 
Class C Up to $500,000 $2,100 
Class D Up to 

$1,000,000 
$2,804 

Class E Up to 
$2,500,000 

$3,654 

Class F Over $2,500,000 $4,498 



8. Permits 
   

Type Description Fee 
Agricultural 
fair 

One location 
and event 
only 

$29 

Agricultural 
fair annual 
permit 

Annual 
permit for 
specified 
different 
events and 
locations 

$200 

Recreational gaming activity $63 
Manufacturer's special sales 
permit 

$224 

Punch board 
and pull-tab 
service 
business 
permit 

Initial 
application 
fee 

$250 

Punch board 
and pull-tab 
service 
business 
permit 

Renewal $59 

9. Changes 
   

Application Description Fee 
Name   $29 
Location   $29 
Business 
classification 

Same owners $63 

Exceeding 
license class 

New class 
fee, less 
previous fee 
paid, plus 

$29 

Duplicate 
license 

  $29 

Corporate 
stock/limited 
liability 
company 
shares/units 

  $63 

License 
transfers 

  $63 

 



10. Other fees 
  

Type Fee 
Defective 
punch 
board/pull-tab 
cost recovery 
fees 

Up to $106 

Failing to 
apply for 
license class 
upgrade 

Up to fifty percent 
of the difference 
between our fees for 
the licensee's 
present license class 
and the new license 
class or one 
thousand dollars, 
whichever is less, 
plus $29 

Review of 
gambling 
equipment, 
supplies, 
services ((,)) 
or games ((, 
or group 12 
amusement 
games)) 

Cost reimbursement 

11. Identification stamps 
   

Type Fee 
(a) Punch boards and pull-tabs 
(i) Standard Wagers 

fifty cents 
and below 

$.30 

  Wagers 
over fifty 
cents 

$1.18 

(ii) 
Progressive 
jackpot pull-
tab series 

Per series $11.86 

(iii) Pull-tab 
series with 
carry-over 
jackpots and 
cumulative 
prize pool 

Per series $1.18 



   

Type Fee 
pull-tab 
series 
(b) Pull-tab dispensing devices 
(i) 
Mechanical 
and electro-
mechanical 

  $.30 

(ii) 
Electronic 

Dispensing 
devices that 
require 
initial and 
ongoing 
evaluation 
of 
electronic 
components 
or 
functions, 
such as 
reading 
encoded 
data on 
pull-tabs, 
accounting 
for income 
or prizes 

$118.76 
annually 

Replacement 
of 
identification 
stamps 

  $28 

(c) Disposable bingo cards 
(i) Single 
game sets of 
individual 
cards or 
sheets of 
cards 

  $.30 

(ii) 
Multigame 
card packets 

  $1.29 

(iii) Cards 
used to play 
for linked 
bingo prizes 

Fee per 250 
cards 

$.47 

(iv) Cards 
used to play 

Fee per 
5,000 cards 

$9.50 



   

Type Fee 
for linked 
bingo prizes 
(d) Coin or token-activated amusement 
games 
Annually – Operated at any 
Class A amusement game 
license location ((; group 1 
through 11 games)) 

$29.68 

((Annually for group 12 
games)) 

(($250.00)) 

(e) Electronic bingo card daubers 
Annual $11.86 
(f) Electronic card facsimile table 
Annual $404.39 

12. Two-part payment plan participation 
  

Annual participation $29 
 
 
  



Amended Section 
WAC 230-03-190 Applying for a distributor license. 

You must apply for a distributor license if you: 
(1) Buy or otherwise obtain a finished piece of gambling equipment for use in authorized 

gambling activities ((or a group 12 amusement game)) from another person and sell or provide 
that gambling equipment to a third person for resale, display, or use; or 

(2) Are a manufacturer who sells or provides gambling equipment you do not make to any 
other person for resale, display, or use; or 

(3) Service and repair authorized gambling equipment. However, distributors must not add, 
modify, or alter the gambling equipment; or 

(4) Modify gambling equipment using materials provided by manufacturers to upgrade 
equipment to current technology. 

 
  



Amended Section 
WAC 230-03-185 Applying for a manufacturer license. 

(1) You must apply for a manufacturer license if you: 
(a) Make or assemble a completed piece or pieces of gambling equipment for use in 

authorized gambling activities; or 
(b) Convert, modify, combine, add to, or remove parts or components of any gambling 

equipment for use in authorized gambling activities ((; or 
(c) Manufacture group 12 amusement games approved or modified after May 1, 2016. 

Manufacturers of group 12 amusement games that were approved before the effective date of this 
rule must apply by May 1, 2016, and be licensed by December 31, 2016.)) 

(2) You must demonstrate your ability to comply with all manufacturing, quality control, and 
operations restrictions imposed on authorized gambling equipment that you want to manufacture 
or market for use in Washington state. 

(3) The licensing process may include an on-site review of your manufacturing equipment 
and process for each separate type of authorized gambling equipment to ensure compliance 
capability. 

 
  



Amended Section 
WAC 230-13-080 Operating coin or token activated amusement games. 

(1) Coin or token activated amusement games must have nonresetting coin-in meters, 
certified as accurate to within plus or minus one coin or token in one thousand plays, which stop 
play of the machine if the meter is removed or disconnected when operating at: 

(a) Amusement parks; or 
(b) Regional shopping malls; or 
(c) Movie theaters; or 
(d) Bowling alleys; or 
(e) Miniature golf course facilities; or 
(f) Skating facilities; or 
(g) Family sports complexes. 
(i) A "family sports complex" is a facility, at a permanent location, to which people go to 

play sports. A family sports complex must offer multiple sports activities, such as indoor soccer, 
outdoor soccer, lacrosse, baseball, Frisbee, and lawn bowling and the gross receipts must be 
primarily from these sports activities. 

(ii) A family sports complex does not include a facility owned or operated by a school or 
school district; or 

(h) Amusement centers; or 
(i) Restaurants; or 
(j) Grocery or department stores. A "department or grocery store" means a business that 

offers the retail sale of a full line of clothing, accessories, and household goods, or a full line of 
dry grocery, canned goods, or nonfood items plus some perishable items, or a combination of 
these. A department or grocery store must have more than ten thousand square feet of retail and 
support space, not including the parking areas. 

(2) All coin or token activated amusement games must have a coin acceptor capable of taking 
money for one play and may have an additional acceptor to include paper money. 

(3) Operators using amusement games that do not return change must have a change-making 
bill acceptor or the ability to get change in the immediate vicinity of such games. All amusement 
games using paper money acceptors must either: 

(a) Return change; or 
(b) Clearly disclose to players before play that change is not returned and disclose to them 

where at the location they may get change. 
(((4) The maximum number of group 12 amusement games a licensee may have in their 

licensed premises is limited to: 
(a) Twenty games for charitable and nonprofit licensees; and 
(b) Ten games for commercial licensees.)) 
 

 



 
Sent: Monday, May 16, 2016 7:53 AM 
 
Subject: Petitions to repeal 

 

Good morning Tina, 

Attached you will find 8 petitions to repeal recently amended WAC's.  

The amended sections in these WAC's are no longer needed as the WSGC just 

recently adopted multiple amendments in Section WAC 230-13-005Amusement 

games authorized that makes Group 12 games no different than Group 1 – 11 

games. There is no longer any reason to require Group 12 commercial amusement 

operators and manufactures to these restrictions and requirements. This is 

discriminatory towards Group 12 game commercial amusement operators and 

manufactures. 

 

Sincerely. 

 
Patrick Tompkins 



 

PETITION #1 

 

Petition to repeal the recently amended section in WAC 230-13-135 (2) 

Maximum wagers and prize limitations. 
 

(2) For Group 12 amusement games, the maximum wager is five dollars and 

the maximum cost for a prize is one thousand dollars. 

 

The Washington State Gambling Commission is responsible for 

administering this rule. 

 

The rational for adoption for the repeal of this existing rule is as follows: 

 

The amended section in WAC 230-13-080 (4) is no longer needed as the WSGC 

just recently adopted multiple amendments in Section WAC 230-13-005 

Amusement games authorized that makes Group 12 games no different than 

Group 1 – 11 games. There is no longer any reason to restrict wager or prize limit 

based upon these changes. This is discriminatory towards Group 12 game 

operators and locations. 
 



 

PETITION #2 

 

Petition to repeal the recently amended sections in WAC 230-13-010 

Approval of new amusement games.  
 

(1) Operators may introduce new games that meet the standards of an 

authorized group 1-11 amusement game without approval of the director as 

long as they provide the director or his or her designee with a description of 

the game, the rules of play, and the group number of the game with an 

explanation of why that group was chosen at least sixty (60) days before 

introducing the game. The game cannot be introduced during this sixty (60) 

day period unless approved sooner by us. The sixty day period stops when we 

request additional information. (2) The following procedures apply to all 

Group 12 amusement games.  

Games approved before the effective date of this rule must be submitted for 

testing, including the application and deposit, by May 1, 2016: (a) An 

application and deposit must be submitted requesting approval of a Group 12 

amusement games and the applicant will provide all requested 

information;(b)All amusement game equipment, programs, and games must 

be submitted for our review  

to verify compliance with chapter 9.46 RCW and Title 230 WAC.  

(i) The equipment, programs, and/or games submitted must be fully 

functional/operational and capable of being tested once our review begins. 

(ii) If the equipment is not fully functional/operational and ready for testing 

and review, we may require additional equipment or information before we 

start our review process;  

(c) Amusement game equipment, programs, and games submitted for review 

must be identical to what will be marketed, distributed, and deployed in 

Washington; (d) Group 12 amusement games must allow for a means of 

identifying and validating approved software that will demonstrate the 

authenticity of any software or game by a third-party  

verification program or tool device; (e) We will have sixty (60) days to finish 

our review once your application is complete;  

(f) We will notify you if we require additional information or if your 

equipment, program, or game malfunctions or is otherwise inoperable; 



(i) You will have fourteen (14) days to provide any additional information or 

correct any equipment, program, or game malfunction and the sixty (60) day 

review period stops when this  

occurs. The review period will restart when we receive the requested 

additional information or when the problem is corrected. You will be 

responsible for any additional cost needed to review  

the additional information provided or review of any equipment, program, or 

game malfunction;  

(ii) Review of your application may be terminated if you do not respond 

within fourteen (14) days. You will be required to re-apply under this rule if 

your application is terminated. 

(g) You can only begin selling, leasing, distributing, or operating these 

amusement games once all entities or individuals are licensed under  

chapter WAC 230-03 WAC and the amusement game equipment, program, 

and/or game(s) are approved by the director or director's  

designee; 

(h) All licensed amusement games must operate as approved by the director 

or director’s designee; and 

(i) We may keep equipment, software, and/or games submitted for review to 

allow for continued testing and training as along as the equipment remains in 

play in Washington. We are not liable for any damage to equipment while in 

our possession.  

( 23) If the director or director’s designee notifies the operator that the 

proposed game does not meet the standards or otherwise violates the 

gambling laws or rules, the operator: 

(a) May not introduce the game;  

(b) If already introduced, must remove it from play until the operator brings it 

into compliance with the authorized group;  

(c) If you do not agree with the director or director's designee's decision, you 

may file a petition for declaratory order with the commission according to 

RCW 34.05.240 and chapter 230-17WAC. 
[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070 

. WSR 07-15 

-064 (Order 612), § 230- 

13 

-010, filed 7/16/07, effective  

1/1/08.] 



Amended Section WAC 230-13-135 Maximum wagers and prize limitations 

at certain amusement game locations 

.  

(1) The maximum wager is three dollars and fifty cents and the maximum 

cost for a prize is five hundred dollars if school-aged minors are allowed to 

play amusement games at the following locations: 

(1a ) Regional shopping centers; and 

(2b) Movie theaters; and 

(3c ) Bowling alleys; and 

(4d) Miniature golf course facilities; and 

(5e ) Skating facilities; and 

(6f ) Family sports complexes. 

(ai) A "family sports complex" is a facility, at a permanent location, to which 

people go to play sports. A family sports complex must offer multiple sports 

activities, such as indoor soccer,  

outdoor soccer, lacrosse, baseball, Frisbee, and lawn bowling and the gross 

receipts must be primarily from these sports activities. 

(bii) A family sports complex does not include a facility owned or operated 

by a school or school district; and 

(7g) Amusement centers; and 

(8h) Grocery or department stores. A "department or grocery store" means a 

business that offers the retail sale of a full line of clothing, accessories, and 

household goods, or a full line of  

dry grocery, canned goods, or nonfood items plus some perishable items, or a 

combination of these. A department or grocery store must have more than ten 

thousand square feet of retail and support space, not including the parking 

areas; and  

(9i ) Any business whose primary activity is to provide food service for on 

premises consumption.  

(2) For Group 12 amusement games, the maximum wager is five dollars and 

the maximum cost for a prize is one thousand dollars. 
 

The Washington State Gambling Commission is responsible for 

administering this rule. 

 

The rational for adoption for the repeal of this existing rule is as follows: 

 



The amended sections in WAC 230-13-010 is no longer needed as the WSGC 

just recently adopted multiple amendments in Section WAC 230-13-005 

Amusement games authorized that makes Group 12 games no different than 

Group 1 – 11 games. There is no longer any reason to require Group 12 

commercial amusement operators to these restrictions and requirements. This is 

discriminatory towards Group 12 game commercial amusement operators. 

 



PETITION #3 

 

Petition to repeal the recently amended section in WAC 230- 

06-110 (6) Buying, selling, or transferring gambling equipment. 
 

(6) Group 12 amusement games can only be sold or leased by a licensed 

manufacturer or distributor to a licensee. Lease agreements entered into prior 

to the effective date of this rule may continue until the manufacturer is 

licensed or December 31, 2016, whichever occurs first. 

 

The Washington State Gambling Commission is responsible for 

administering this rule. 

 

The rational for adoption for the repeal of this existing rule is as follows: 

 

The amended section in WAC 230-06-110 (6) is no longer needed as the WSGC 

just recently adopted multiple amendments in Section WAC 230-13-005 

Amusement games authorized that makes Group 12 games no different than 

Group 1 – 11 games. There is no longer any reason to require Group 12 

manufactures to this restriction. This is discriminatory towards Group 12 game 

manufactures. 

 

 



PETITION #4 

 

Petition to repeal the recently amended section in WAC 230- 

05-030 (10) Fees for other businesses. 
 

(10) Review of gambling equipment, supplies, services, ((or)) games,  

or group 12 amusement games. 

 

The Washington State Gambling Commission is responsible for 

administering this rule. 

 

The rational for adoption for the repeal of this existing rule is as follows: 

 

The amended section in WAC 230-05-030 (10) is no longer needed as the 

WSGC just recently adopted multiple amendments in Section WAC 230-13-005 

Amusement games authorized that makes Group 12 games no different than 

Group 1 – 11 games. There is no longer any reason to require Group 12 

manufactures to pay this fee. This is discriminatory towards Group 12 game 

manufactures. 



 



PETITION #5 

 

Petition to repeal the recently amended section in WAC 230- 

05-030 (11) Identification stamps. (d) Coin or token-activated  

amusement games. 
 

(11) (d) Annually -operated at any Class A amusement game license location; 

Group 1 through 11 games $29.68 Annually for  

Group 12 games $250.00 

 

The Washington State Gambling Commission is responsible for 

administering this rule. 

 

The rational for adoption for the repeal of this existing rule is as follows: 

 

The amended section in WAC 230-05-030 (11) (d) is no longer needed as the 

WSGC just recently adopted multiple amendments in Section WAC 230-13-005 

Amusement games authorized that makes Group 12 games no different than 

Group 1 – 11 games. There is no longer any reason to require Group 12 

commercial amusement game operators to pay this increased fee. This is 

discriminatory towards Group 12 commercial amusement game operators. 

 
 

 



PETITION #6 

 

Petition to repeal the recently amended section in WAC 230- 

03-190 (1) Applying for a distributor license 
 

(1) Buy or otherwise obtain a finished piece of gambling equipment for use in 

authorized gambling activities or a group 12 amusement game from another 

person and sell or provide that gambling equipment to a third person for 

resale, display, or use; or 

 

The Washington State Gambling Commission is responsible for 

administering this rule. 

 

The rational for adoption for the repeal of this existing rule is as follows: 

 

The amended section in WAC 230-03-190 (1) is no longer needed as the WSGC 

just recently adopted multiple amendments in Section WAC 230-13-005 

Amusement games authorized that makes Group 12 games no different than 

Group 1 – 11 games. There is no longer any reason to require Group 12 

distributors to be licensed. This is discriminatory towards Group 12 game 

distributors. 

 

 
 



 

PETITION #7 

 

Petition to repeal the recently amended section in WAC 230-03-185 (1) (c) 

Applying for a manufacturer license. 
 
 

(c) Manufacture group 12 amusement games. Manufacturers of group 12 

amusement games that were approved before the effective date of this rule 

must apply by May 1, 2016, and be licensed by December 31, 2016.  

 

The Washington State Gambling Commission is responsible for 

administering this rule. 

 

The rational for adoption for the repeal of this existing rule is as follows: 

 

The amended section in WAC 230-03-185 (1) (c) is no longer needed as the 

WSGC just recently adopted multiple amendments in Section WAC 230-13-005 

Amusement games authorized that makes Group 12 games no different than 

Group 1 – 11 games. There is no longer any reason to require Group 12 

manufactures to be licensed. This is discriminatory towards Group 12 game 

manufactures. 
 

 



PETITION #8 

 

 
Petition to repeal the recently amended section in WAC 230-13-080 (4) 
 

(4) The maximum number of group 12 amusement games a licensee may 

have in their licensed premises is limited to: (a) Twenty (20) 

Games for charitable and nonprofit licensees; and (b) Ten (10) games for 

commercial licensees.  

 

The Washington State Gambling Commission is responsible for 

administering this rule. 

 

The rational for adoption for the repeal of this existing rule is as follows: 

 

The amended section in WAC 230-13-080 (4) is no longer needed as the WSGC 

just recently adopted multiple amendments in Section WAC 230-13-005 

Amusement games authorized that makes Group 12 games no different than 

Group 1 – 11 games. There is no longer any reason to restrict the number of games 

in a location based upon these changes. This is discriminatory towards Group 12 

game operators and locations. 



From: DONOTREPLY (GMB)
Cc: Hunter, Amy (GMB)
Subject: Washington State Gambling Commission - Petitions for Rule Changes
Date: Friday, June 17, 2016 9:10:36 AM

We have received eight petitions for rule changes to repeal certain requirements for group 12
 amusement games.  The petitions are posted on our website and can be viewed by clicking on this
 link. These petitions will be Up for Discussion and Possible Filing at the July 14, 2016, Commission
 meeting, which will be held at:
 
Red Lion Seattle Airport 
18220 International Blvd. 
Seattle, WA 98188 MAP
(206) 246-5535
 
The agenda for the meeting will be posted on our website approximately one week before the
 meeting.  If you would like to provide comments on these petitions prior to the Commission
 meeting, please email your comments to RulesCoordinator@wsgc.wa.gov by noon on Friday, July
 1, 2016.  Thank you.
 
 

mailto:/O=WA.GOV/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=DONOTREPLY50F
mailto:amy.hunter@wsgc.wa.gov
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/docs/petitions-to-repeal-group-12.pdf
http://maps.google.com/maps?q=18220+International+Blvd+Seattle+WA+98188
mailto:RulesCoordinator@wsgc.wa.gov


Budget Proviso 
SECOND ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL 2376 
 
FOR THE GAMBLING COMMISSION 
State Lottery Account: For transfer to gambling revolving account . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,000,000 
 
The transfer in this section is subject to the following conditions and limitations: 
(1) ((The commission shall maintain working capital reserves in the gambling revolving account 
of no more than five percent of projected expenses in the account)) This funding is provided 
solely for the costs of enforcement of gambling activities, including but not limited to evaluation, 
analysis, and dissemination of information on individuals and groups who are suspected of being 
involved in illegal gambling and other associated crimes. 
(2) The commission shall not approve any electronic raffle systems to conduct fifty-fifty raffles 
until the legislature has reviewed all impacts to the state lottery. 
(3) The commission is directed to review and reconsider, including repeal, rules adopted to 
authorize the amusement games classified as group 12 under WAC 230-13-067, recognizing the 
impact such games may have on state lottery revenues used to support public education 
programs. 



 
 
Tab 8: July 2016 Commission Meeting Agenda.         Statutory Authority 9.46.070, RCW 9.46.0201 
 

Who Proposed the Rule Change? 
Jesse Stiltner, Manager of Masters of Money LLC, an amusement game licensee, petitioner. 

Describe the Proposed Change / Background 
Mr. Stiltner is requesting three requirements related to amusement games be changed. 
   
Two of the proposed rule changes would remove the word “gambling” from the “gross receipts” licensees must 
report. (Tab 3 includes a change to WAC 230-13-170). According to the petitioner, “Amusement Games are 
not gambling, gross receipts from amusement games are not gambling receipts.” This change would “clearly 
define receipts from Amusement games as not gambling receipts.”   
 
The term “gross gambling receipts” is defined in WAC 230-06-150, which includes fees from amusement 
games and is why the term “gross gambling receipts” was used in WAC 230-07-170 and WAC 230-07-175. 
Removing “gambling” would make this an undefined term.  Therefore, a new rule defining “gross receipts” 
would be needed.   

The third proposed rule change would remove Amusement Games from the list of “Gambling Equipment” as 
defined in WAC 230-03-200.  According to the petitioner, the effect would be “thus not subjecting Amusment 
[amusement] Games to the same rules as gambling equipment.”   

Budget Proviso (the following language was included in the budget passed by the legislature): 
“The commission is directed to review and reconsider, including repeal, rules adopted to authorize the 
amusement games classified as group 12 under WAC 230-13-067, recognizing the impact such games may 
have on state lottery revenues used to support public education programs.” 
 
A Small Business Economic Impact Statement was not prepared.   
 
Attachments: 

• Three petitions submitted by Mr. Stiltner. 
• WAC 230-06-150 Defining "gross gambling receipts." 
• Notice of rule-making sent to amusement game licensees with email addresses on file. 
• Budget Proviso (the following language was included in the budget passed by the legislature): 

“The commission is directed to review and reconsider, including repeal, rules adopted to authorize 
the amusement games classified as group 12 under WAC 230-13-067, recognizing the impact such 
games may have on state lottery revenues used to support public education programs.” 
 

Licensees Impacted  
Group 12 operators, distributors and manufacturers. 

Statements supporting and opposing  
None to date. 

 
 

 
Amend: 

 
WAC 230-13-170 Recordkeeping for commercial amusement games.  

WAC 230-13-175 Recordkeeping for unlicensed charitable and nonprofit 
amusement games.  

WAC 230-06-200 Defining “gambling equipment.” 
 
July 2016 – Up for Discussion and Possible Filing 



Staff Recommendation 

Under the requirements of the Administrative Procedure Act, the Commission must take action on a 
petition within 60 days of receiving it.  Your options are:   

 
1) Initiate rule-making proceedings (file the rule for further discussion);  
2) Deny the petition in writing, stating the reasons for the denial and specifically address the 

concerns stated in the petition.  If appropriate, the Commission must indicate alternative 
means by which the agency will address the concerns raised in the petition; or you could 
also, 

3) Propose an alternative version of the rule. 
  

Proposed Effective Date for Rule Change 
Petitioner did not propose an effective date, presumably it would be 31 days from filing for final action. 

 



AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 07-15-064, filed 7/16/07, effective 1/1/08) 
 

WAC 230-13-170 Recordkeeping for commercial amusement games. 
(1) Amusement game licensees must prepare a detailed record for each location where 

they operate games. They must retain the records for at least three years. The records must 
include details necessary to determine: 

(a) Gross ((gambling)) receipts received from players; and 
(b) Value of prizes awarded to winners. 
(2) Records must include, at least: 
(a) The gross ((gambling)) receipts collected from amusement games at each location, 

with receipting records; and 
(b) An entry for each withdrawal of receipts from the games. Coin or token activated 

amusement games only require an entry of the ending meter reading, the number of plays, and 
gross ((gambling)) receipts at the end of each month; and 

(c) A summary of the operation of the activity. This includes, at least, coin-in meter 
readings and gross ((gambling)) receipts. Operators must provide these coin-in meter readings 
and gross ((gambling)) receipts to charitable or nonprofit organizations each time they service a 
game or disburse money. 

(3) Licensees must report at least monthly the number and actual cost of merchandise 
prizes awarded for each location. 

(4) For amusement games that issue tickets for the redemption of prizes, licensees must at 
least log the beginning and ending nonresettable ticket out meters or ticket numbers during each 
collection of funds from each game. 

(5) Licensees must provide the full details for all amusement game operating expenses.



AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 07-15-064, filed 7/16/07, effective 1/1/08) 
 
WAC 230-13-175   Recordkeeping for unlicensed charitable and nonprofit amusement 
games.    
 

(1) Unlicensed charitable or nonprofit organizations must keep records according to 
WAC 230-07-125 which will allow us to:  

       (a) Determine the amount of gross ((gambling)) receipts received from 
amusement games; and  

       (b) Identify individuals responsible for receiving and controlling them.  

      (2) Records must include, at least, the full names, addresses, and phone numbers of 
employees and members involved in the activity. 

http://app.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=230-07-125


 
AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 06-07-157, filed 3/22/06, effective 1/1/08) 
 
WAC 230-03-200   Defining "gambling equipment."   "Gambling equipment" means any 
device, gambling-related software, expendable supply, or any other paraphernalia used as a part 
of gambling or to make gambling possible. "Gambling equipment" includes, but is not limited to:  

     (((1) Amusement games; 

    (2))) (1) Punch boards and pull-tabs;  

    (((3))) (2) Devices for dispensing pull-tabs;  

((     (4))) (3) Electronic devices for conducting, facilitating, or accounting for the results of 
gambling activities, including, but not limited to:  

     (a) Components of a tribal lottery system;  

     (b) Electronic devices for reading and displaying outcomes of gambling activities; and  

     (c) Accounting systems that are a part of, or directly connected to, a gambling system 
including, but not limited to:  

     (i) Bet totalizers; or  

     (ii) Progressive jackpot meters; or  

     (iii) Keno systems;  

    (((5))) (4) Bingo equipment;  

   (((6))) (5) Devices and supplies used to conduct card games, fund-raising events, recreational 
gaming activities, or Class III gaming activities, as defined in the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act 
at U.S.C. 25 chapter 29 § 2703 and in tribal-state compacts including, but not limited to:  

     (a) Gambling chips;  

     (b) Cards;  

     (c) Dice;  

     (d) Card shuffling devices;  

     (e) Graphical game layouts for table games;  

     (f) Ace finders or no-peek devices;  

     (g) Roulette wheels;  

     (h) Keno equipment; and  

http://app.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=230-03-200


     (i) Tables manufactured exclusively for gambling purposes.  

  

























Budget Proviso 
SECOND ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL 2376 
 
FOR THE GAMBLING COMMISSION 
State Lottery Account: For transfer to gambling revolving account . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,000,000 
 
The transfer in this section is subject to the following conditions and limitations: 
(1) ((The commission shall maintain working capital reserves in the gambling revolving account 
of no more than five percent of projected expenses in the account)) This funding is provided 
solely for the costs of enforcement of gambling activities, including but not limited to evaluation, 
analysis, and dissemination of information on individuals and groups who are suspected of being 
involved in illegal gambling and other associated crimes. 
(2) The commission shall not approve any electronic raffle systems to conduct fifty-fifty raffles 
until the legislature has reviewed all impacts to the state lottery. 
(3) The commission is directed to review and reconsider, including repeal, rules adopted to 
authorize the amusement games classified as group 12 under WAC 230-13-067, recognizing the 
impact such games may have on state lottery revenues used to support public education 
programs. 



From: Griffin, Tina (GMB)
Subject: Notice to Rulemaking - New Petitions Received
Date: Sunday, June 26, 2016 12:01:11 PM

We have received three petitions for rule changes to change definitions related to amusement
 games.  The petitions are posted on our website and can be viewed by clicking on this link. These
 petitions will be Up for Discussion and Possible Filing at the July 14, 2016, Commission meeting,
 which will be held at:
 
Red Lion Seattle Airport 
18220 International Blvd. 
Seattle, WA 98188 MAP
(206) 246-5535
 
The agenda for the meeting will be posted on our website approximately one week before the
 meeting.  If you would like to provide comments on these petitions prior to the Commission
 meeting, please email your comments to RulesCoordinator@wsgc.wa.gov by noon on Friday, July
 1, 2016.  Thank you.
 
 
 

mailto:/O=WA.GOV/OU=GMB/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=TINAG
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/docs/petitions_to_change_definitions_related_to_amusement_games.pdf
http://maps.google.com/maps?q=18220+International+Blvd+Seattle+WA+98188
mailto:RulesCoordinator@wsgc.wa.gov


Budget Proviso 
SECOND ENGROSSED SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL 2376 
 
FOR THE GAMBLING COMMISSION 
State Lottery Account: For transfer to gambling revolving account . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,000,000 
 
The transfer in this section is subject to the following conditions and limitations: 
(1) ((The commission shall maintain working capital reserves in the gambling revolving account 
of no more than five percent of projected expenses in the account)) This funding is provided 
solely for the costs of enforcement of gambling activities, including but not limited to evaluation, 
analysis, and dissemination of information on individuals and groups who are suspected of being 
involved in illegal gambling and other associated crimes. 
(2) The commission shall not approve any electronic raffle systems to conduct fifty-fifty raffles 
until the legislature has reviewed all impacts to the state lottery. 
(3) The commission is directed to review and reconsider, including repeal, rules adopted to 
authorize the amusement games classified as group 12 under WAC 230-13-067, recognizing the 
impact such games may have on state lottery revenues used to support public education 
programs. 



























































































 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 
 
July 1, 2016 
 
TO:  COMMISSIONERS:  
  Bud Sizemore, Chair 
  Julia Patterson, Vice Chair 
  Kelsey Gray, Ph.D. 

Christopher Stearns  
Ed Troyer 

 
FROM: Brian J. Considine, Managing Attorney / Legislative Liaison  
  Legal and Records Division 

 
SUBJECT:  Chamroeun Chea, CR 2016-00280  
  Final Order – July 14, 2016 Commission Meeting 
 
Mr. Chea holds a Class III certification authorizing Class III employee activity at Muckleshoot 
Casino.  On July 26, 2015, Mr. Chea stole a $40.00 wager from a player while working as a poker 
dealer.  Muckleshoot Casino’s security contacted Mr. Chea after review surveillance video and 
found that he had stolen $240.00 in chips and cheques from patrons that day. 

Mr. Chea admitted to the theft and that he averaged stealing a minimum of $200 per night while 
he worked.  Mr. Chea worked five nights a week prior to his July 29, 2015 theft.  Mr. Chea admitted 
that he had a gambling problem and he used all of the stolen chips/money to play poker and Tribal 
Lottery System machines at the casino.  

The Muckleshoot Gaming Commission revoked Mr. Chea’s tribal gaming license on September 
3, 2015 due to his admitted thefts at the casino.  Mr. Chea did not inform the Commission of the 
Muckleshoot Gaming Commission’s revocation of his gaming license. 

Director Trujillo issued a Notice of Administrative Charges to Mr. Chea by certified and regular 
mail on April 18, 2016.  The mailing sent by certified mail was returned as undeliverable.  The 
administrative charges notified Mr. Chea that his failure to respond would result in the entry of a 
default order revoking his certification.   
 
Mr. Chea never responded or requested a hearing.  Mr. Chea has waived his right to a hearing, and 
you may enter a final order revoking Mr. Chea’s certification pursuant to RCW 9.46.075(1), (8), 
and (10), and WAC 230-03-085(1), (7) and (8), as well as Section V C(1) and (3) of the 
Muckleshoot Tribe-State Gaming Compact. 
 



Default Hearing – Chamroeun Chea 
July 1, 2016 
Page 2 
 
Based on his actions and conviction, Mr. Chea cannot show by clear and convincing evidence that 
he is qualified to keep his Class III certification.  Therefore, staff recommends that the Commission 
sign the proposed final order and revoke Chamroeun Chea’s Class III certification. 



 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 
 
July 1, 2016 
 
TO:  COMMISSIONERS:  
  Bud Sizemore, Chair 
  Julia Patterson, Vice Chair 
  Kelsey Gray, Ph.D. 

Christopher Stearns  
Ed Troyer 

 
FROM: Brian J. Considine, Managing Attorney / Legislative Liaison  
  Legal and Records Division 

 
SUBJECT:  15304 1st Ave. South LLC d/b/a Dragon Pearl, CR 2015-01727  
  Final Order – July 14, 2016 Commission Meeting 
 
15304 1st Ave. South LLC (Applicant) submitted an application for a class “A” Punch Board/Pull 
Tab license for The Dragon Pearl, located at 15304 1st Ave. South, Burien, Washington. 

The application was submitted after the business had offered unlicensed pull-tab gambling activity 
at the business from November 2014 until at least March 2015.  The Commission learned after-
the-fact that the business changed ownership in October 2014 when long-time owners Kam and 
Anglea Cheng sold their business to their son, Dr. John Cheng under his wholly owned LLC 15304 
1st Ave. South. 

On four separate occasions between November 14, 2014 and March 5, 2015 agents communicated 
with Dr. Cheng and Ms. Cheng, now serving as manager of the Dragon Pearl, both in writing as 
well as by phone, advising of them that the business’ previous gambling license was void and the 
business must immediately cease pull-tab sales until a new license was issued consistent with 
WAC 230-06-108(1).  However, the Applicant failed to comply with these directives and took in 
at least $10,000 in gross receipts for unlicensed pull-tab activity. 

The Applicant eventually submitted an application for a class “A” pull-tab license.  Director 
Trujillo issued an application denial by certified and regular mail on April 12, 2016.  The mailing 
sent by certified mail was returned as undeliverable.  The denial notified the Applicant that its 
failure to respond would result in the entry of a default order denying its application for a class 
“A” pull-tab license.   

The Applicant never responded or requested a hearing.  The Applicant has waived its right to a 
hearing, and you may enter a final order denying the Applicant’s application for a class “A” 



Default Hearing – 15304 1st Ave. South LLC d/b/a Dragon Pearl 
July 1, 2016 
Page 2 
 
punchboard/pull-tab license  pursuant to RCW 9.46.075(1), (8), and (10) and WAC 230-03-085(1), 
(3), (8).  Therefore, staff recommends that the Commission sign the proposed final order and deny 
15304 1st Ave. South LLC d/b/a Dragon Pearl its application for a Class “A” punchboard/pull-tab 
license. 



Gambling Commission Meeting  
March 11, 2016 
DRAFT Minutes 
Page 1 of 6 
 

Commission Meeting Minutes 
DRAFT 

 
 

Location of Meeting:     Date and Time of Meeting 
Great Wolf Lodge      Friday, March 11, 2016 
2050 Old Highway 99 SW       10:00 a.m. 
Grand Mound, WA  98531 
(360) 273-7718 
 
 Indicates Commissioners and Ex Officio Members Present. 
 
Commissioners      Ex Officio Members 
 Chris Stearns, Chair     Senator Steve Conway 
 Bud Sizemore, Vice-Chair     Senator Mike Hewitt 
 Kelsey Gray, PhD.      Representative Christopher Hurst 
 Julia Patterson      Representative Brandon Vick 
 Ed Troyer 
 
Staff 
David Trujillo, Director 
Amy Hunter, Deputy Director 
Tina Griffin, Assistant Director – Licensing Regulation and Enforcement 
Julie Lies, Tribal Liaison – Tribal & Technical Gambling 
Matthew Kernutt, Assistant Attorney General 
Michelle Rancour, Executive Assistant 
Susan Newer, Public Information Officer 

- PUBLIC MEETING - 

Welcome Chris Stearns, Commission Chair 
 
Chairman Chris Stearns called the Gambling Commission meeting to order at 10:30 a.m. at the 
Great Wolf Lodge in Grand Mound and introduced the members present. 
 
About 60 people were in the audience.  In addition a phone-in feature was offered. 

Responsible Gaming Training – Prevention & Awareness Program Presentation 
 Maureen Greeley, Executive Director, Evergreen Council on Problem Gambling 
Maureen Greeley, Executive Director of Evergreen Council on Problem Gambling, talked about 
problem gambling programs and responsible gambling training.   

She addressed three areas: 
• Treatment – residential  Training – employees  Awareness 



Gambling Commission Meeting  
March 11, 2016 
DRAFT Minutes 
Page 2 of 6 
 

Australia and Canada have strong problem gambling programs. 

No inpatient treatment programs in Washington State, there is a great need. 

In patient treatment in Minnesota is operated by a nonprofit with funding from tribes and federal 
grants. Problem gambling portion of facility has $8M yearly budget. 

Ann, former problem gambler, explained she has been in recovery for 4 years. She attended in-
patient treatment in Minnesota; treatment saved her life. Out of state treatment makes it difficult for 
family to attend family sessions for their own support. 

Senator Conway said he would help Maureen work with superior court judges for problem 
gambling programs. He also suggested looking at the LCB’s server training as a model for problem 
gambling training. 

Special Agent Lisa Saila, talked about training agency staff was in the process of developing for the 
industry. 

Assistant Director Tina Griffin said staff are incorporating problem gambling information and 
training into the “training we establish,” which is required within 30 days of employment. We will 
provide the training materials in the future, rather than the house-banked card rooms. 

Chair Chris Stearns said he attended an open GA meeting at a G2E conference last year; problem 
gambling has the same components as other addictions. It also has the three outcomes: jail, 
institution and death. 

Skokomish Indian Tribe Compact Amendment David Trujillo, Director 

Tom Strong, Skokomish Tribal Councilman covered some highlights from the Tribe: 55,000 
square acres of reservation.  741 members.  Lucky dog casino has 255 machines and no table games. 
Amendment allows for future planning and ability to upgrade their old building. 

Vice-Chair Sizemore moved to forward to the Governor 
Commissioner Gray seconded the motion. 
Motion passed 6:0 Commissioners and ex officio Senator Conway voted unanimously to 
forward to the Governor. 
 
Executive Session to Discuss Pending Investigations, Tribal Negotiations and Litigation 
Chair Stearns announced there would be an executive session. Chair Stearns called for 
executive session at 12:15 p.m. He excused the audience and announced the session would last 
approximately one and a half hours. Chair Stearns called for a 15 minute extension at 1:27 p.m. 
The meeting resumed at approximately 1:50 p.m. 
 



Gambling Commission Meeting  
March 11, 2016 
DRAFT Minutes 
Page 3 of 6 
 

- ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE ACT PROCEEDINGS – 

Rules Up for Final Action 

Assistant Director Tina Griffin reviewed the rules for the Commissioners. The Commissioners 
thanked Ms. Griffin for her comprehensive presentation: 280 amusement games in licensed 
locations. So far, 30 people have testified in support of the games, and three testified with concerns 
at previous Commission meetings.  
 
Eight stakeholders testified regarding Group 12 amusement games at the March meeting.   
Their testimony included: 

• Wants to give cash back, up to $40 on gift cards. 
• Wants replays. Has not heard what the public policy issue is for no replays. 
• Replay is needed to keep games viable. 
• $250 ID stamp good revenue generator for the state. 
• Wants to modernize gambling activities, i.e. modernized pull-tabs. 
• Changing symbols on machines would be expensive, i.e. testing and rolling out changes. 
• Three ways to replay: Load back on card as comingle; ticket-in ticket-out; play directly off 

the machine. 
 
Group 12 Amusement Games. Package #1 Tina Griffin, Assistant Director 

Filed 10/29/2015 as a Pre-Proposal Statement of Inquiry (CR-101) under WSR #15-22-054. Proposed Rule 
Making (CR-102) under WSR #16-04-053 with a published date of 2/17/2016. 

o Amended Section:  WAC 230-03-185 Applying for a manufacturer license. 
o Alternative #1 and #2 

o Amended Section:  WAC 230-03-190 Applying for a distributor license. 
o Amended Section:  WAC 230-05-030 Fees for other businesses. 
o Amended Section:  WAC 230-06-110 Buying, selling, or transferring gambling 

equipment.  
o Alternative #1 and #2 

o Amended Section:  WAC 230-13-010 Approval of new amusement games. 
o Alternative #1 and #2 

o Amended Section:  WAC 230-13-135 Maximum wagers and prize limitations at 
certain amusement game locations. 

o Amended Section:  WAC 230-13-160 Basing rent on a percentage of gross 
receipts.   

Assistant Director Tina Griffin explained the rules package is up for final action, and includes 
rules for licensing and equipment testing.  Ms. Griffin explained the differences between 
Alternatives 1 and 2 in the packet.  Staff recommends adoption of Alternative 2 effective 31 days 
from filing. 
 
Commissioner Gray moved to adopt the rules with Alternative #2 language. 
Vice-Chair Sizemore seconded the motion. 
Motion Approved 5:0. 



Gambling Commission Meeting  
March 11, 2016 
DRAFT Minutes 
Page 4 of 6 
 

Group 12 Amusement Games. Package #2 Tina Griffin, Assistant Director 
Filed 10/29/2015 as a Pre-Proposal Statement of Inquiry (CR-101) under WSR #15-22-054. Proposed Rule 
Making (CR-102) under WSR #16-04-053 with a published date of 2/17/2016. 

o Amended Section:  WAC 230-13-080 Operating coin or token activated 
amusement games. 

Ms. Griffin explained rules package # 2 would limit the number of machines per location. 
Staff recommends final action, effective 31 days from filing. 
 
Commissioner Patterson moved to file for further discussion at the April meeting. 
Vice-Chair Sizemore seconded the motion. 
Motion approved 5:0. 
Group 12 Amusement Games. Package #3 Tina Griffin, Assistant Director 

Filed 10/29/2015 as a Pre-Proposal Statement of Inquiry (CR-101) under WSR #15-22-054. Proposed Rule 
Making (CR-102) under WSR #16-04-053 with a published date of 2/17/2016. 

o Amended Section:  WAC 230-13-005 Amusement games authorized. 
o Amended Section:  WAC 230-13-130 Display and exchange of amusement game 

prizes. 
o Repealed Section:   WAC 230-13-140 Price to play amusement games must be 

paid in cash or check. 
Ms. Griffin explained rules package #3 is up for final action, which eliminates gift cards and gift 
certificates, and other gambling activities that do not constitute merchandise prizes. 
 
Vice-Chair Sizemore moved to file for further discussion at the April meeting. 
Commissioner Patterson seconded. 
Motion approved 5:0. 

Rule Up for Discussion 

Group 12 Amusement Games. Tina Griffin, Assistant Director 
Filed 1/28/2016 as a Pre-Proposal Statement of Inquiry (CR-101) under WSR #16-04-052 

o Repealed Section:  WAC 230-13-067 Electronic puzzle and pattern solving game 
standards. 

Up for discussion only. Stakeholders commented they would lose 9 million dollars if Group 12 
amusement games were repealed.  Commissioners had no comment. 

Rules Up for Discussion and Possible Filing 

Rules regulating the appearance and recordkeeping for Group 12 Amusement Games.  
o Amended Section:  WAC 230-13-067 Group 12 Electronic puzzle and pattern 

solving game standards. 
Assistant Director Tina Griffin explained this rule package #5 was up for discussion and possible 
filing.  The rules dealt with appearance and signage.  
Staff presented two options for filing:   
Option 1:  Limits symbols so they do not look like a slot machine and; 
Option 2:  Requires signage on each game. 



Gambling Commission Meeting  
March 11, 2016 
DRAFT Minutes 
Page 5 of 6 
 

Commissioner Gray moved to file for further discussion option 2. 
Commissioner Troyer seconded. 
Motion approved 5:0. 
 
Group 12 Amusement Games. 

o Amended Section:  WAC 230-13-075 Assigning and reporting group numbers of 
authorized amusement games. 

o Amended Section:  WAC 230-13-170 Recordkeeping for commercial amusement 
games. 

o Amended Section:  WAC 230-07-125 Recordkeeping requirements for lower 
volume charitable or nonprofit organizations. 

o Amended Section:  WAC 230-13-005 Amusement games authorized. 
Assistant Director Tina Griffin explained Rules Package #6 dealt with recordkeeping and non-
transferability of tokens. 
Ms. Griffin stated staff recommended filing for further discussion. 
 
Vice-Chair Sizemore moved to file. 
Commissioner Gray seconded. 
Motion approved 5:0. 
 
Chair Stearns, called for a break at 4:20p.m.  At 4:42pm the meeting was called back to order. 

New Licenses and Class III Employees Tina Griffin, Assistant Director 

Assistant Director Tina Griffin explained there are currently 49 licensed and operating house-
banked card rooms.  Staff recommends approval of the new licenses and Class III gaming 
employees listed on pages 1 through 14.  Staff also recommends approval of the Snoqualmie 
Class III certifications held over from February. 
Commissioner Patterson moved to approve new licenses and Class III Certifications. 
Commissioner Gray seconded the motion. 
Motion approved 5:0. 
 
Snoqualmie Class III Certifications 
Commissioner Patterson moved to approve the Class III Certifications from Snoqualmie. 
Commissioner Gray seconded the motion. 
Motion approved 4:0. 

- PUBLIC MEETING - 

Director’s Report David Trujillo, Director 
Director Trujillo stated he had nothing to report. 

Legislative Update Brian Considine, Managing Attorney & Legislative Liaison 
Legislative Liaison Brian Considine explained the bills listed in the memo passed and are making 
their way to the Governor’s desk. 



Gambling Commission Meeting  
March 11, 2016 
DRAFT Minutes 
Page 6 of 6 
 

Approval of Minutes – January & February 2016 Commission Meetings 
 
Commissioner Gray moved to approve the January 2016 minutes. 
Vice Chair Sizemore seconded. 
Motion approved 5:0. 
February minutes held over to April meeting. 

Other Business/General Discussion/Comments from the Public 

There were no further comments. 

Adjourn - Chair Stearns adjourned the meeting at 5:15pm 

 



Gambling Commission Meeting  
April 14, 2016 
DRAFT Minutes 
Page 1 of 5 

Commission Meeting Minutes 
DRAFT 

 
 

Location of Meeting:     Date and Time of Meeting 
DoubleTree by Hilton Olympia    Thursday, April 14, 2016 
451 Capitol Way      11:00 a.m. 
Olympia, WA  98504 
(360) 570-0557 
 
 Indicates Commissioners and Ex Officio Members Present. 
 
Commissioners      Ex Officio Members 
 Chris Stearns, Chair     Senator Steve Conway 
 Bud Sizemore, Vice-Chair     Senator Mike Hewitt 
 Kelsey Gray, PhD.       Representative Christopher Hurst 
 Julia Patterson      Representative Brandon Vick 
 Ed Troyer 
 
Staff 
David Trujillo, Director 
Amy Hunter, Deputy Director 
Tina Griffin, Assistant Director – Licensing Regulation and Enforcement 
Julie Lies, Tribal Liaison – Tribal & Technical Gambling 
Matthew Kernutt, Assistant Attorney General 
Michelle Rancour, Executive Assistant 
Susan Newer, Public Information Officer 
 

- PUBLIC MEETING - 

Welcome Chris Stearns, Commission Chair 
 
Chairman Chris Stearns called the Gambling Commission meeting to order at 11:07 a.m. at the 
DoubleTree Hotel in Olympia, WA, and introduced the members present. 
 
Chair Stearns announced there would be an executive session to discuss pending investigations, 
tribal negotiations and litigation. Chair Stearns called for executive session at 11:10 a.m. He 
announced the session would last approximately one and a half hours and excused the audience. 
 
The meeting resumed at approximately 1:00 p.m. 
 
About 50 people were in the audience, and one person participated by phone. 
 
KING5 and TVW were present at the meeting. 



Gambling Commission Meeting  
April 14, 2016 
DRAFT Minutes 
Page 2 of 5 

- ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE ACT PROCEEDINGS – 

Rules Up for Final Action 

Assistant Director Tina Griffin shared the numbers of amusement games in the state.  A formal 
letter requesting information was sent out with a 30 days to comply.  Ms. Griffin gave a brief 
summary of the comments, reminding everyone all the public comments were posted on the 
website, along with a Small Business Economic Impact Statements also posted on our website 
for the public.  
 
3. Group 12 Amusement Games. Tina Griffin, Assistant Director 
Filed 10/29/2015 as a Pre-Proposal Statement of Inquiry (CR-101) under WSR #15-22-054. Proposed Rule Making 
(CR-102) under WSR #16-04-053 with a published date of 2/17/2016. 

o Amended Section:  WAC 23-13-080 Operating coin or token activated 
amusement games. 

Assistant Director Tina Griffin explained this rule would limit the number of games to a 
maximum of ten (10) for commercial operators and twenty (20) for charitable/nonprofits.  This 
would address the concerns about the number of games that could come into the state. Attached 
to all the Group 12 rules is the Budget Proviso language from the Second and Gross Substitute 
Budget House Bill 2376 that directs the Commission to review and reconsider, including repeal, 
rules adopted to authorize the amusement games classified as Group 12 under WAC 230-13-067.  
Staff recommends final action with an effective date 31 days from filing. 
 
Commissioner Patterson made a motion to limit the number of games. 
Commissioner Gray seconded the motion. 
Motion passed 3:2. 
Vice-Chair Sizemore voted nay. 
Commissioner Gray voted nay. 
 
4. Group 12 Amusement Games. Tina Griffin, Assistant Director 
Filed 10/29/2015 as a Pre-Proposal Statement of Inquiry (CR-101) under WSR #15-22-054. Proposed Rule Making 
(CR-102) under WSR #16-04-053 with a published date of 2/17/2016. 

o Amended Section:  WAC 230-13-005 Amusement games authorized. 
o Amended Section:  WAC 230-13-130 Display and exchange of amusement game 

prizes. 
o Repealed Section:   WAC 230-13-140 Price to play amusement games must be 

paid in cash or check. 
Assistant Director Tina Griffin explained this rule package both in Option A and Option A.1 
does three things: 

• Codifies current practice of the use of the electronic token card, which staff have now 
defined, 

• Does not allow Group 12 amusement games to be operated without a license by a 
charitable non-profit organization,  

• Repeals 230-13-140, which is contradictory to WAC 230-13-005 (sub-section 4) 
The amendments to the rules address the questions staff have been faced with regarding the 
definition of merchandise, the use of gift cards and gift certificates, and the ability to allow for 



Gambling Commission Meeting  
April 14, 2016 
DRAFT Minutes 
Page 3 of 5 

the participation of gambling activities with tokens, coupons or tickets won from the Group 12 
amusement games. It also addresses redemption of tokens won for food and or beverage. 
Ms. Griffin also explained why staff was recommending the deadline date of August 15, 2016 
for compliance with testing. 
 
Vice-Chair Sizemore moved to adopt Option A with an effective date of July 15, 2016. 
Commissioner Patterson seconded the motion. 
Motion Approved 5:0 
 
Representative Christopher Hurst thanked the Commissioners for working with staff to 
provide rules that were good for the benefit of the people of Washington state. 

Rules Up for Discussion 

5. Group 12 Amusement Games. Tina Griffin, Assistant Director 
Filed 1/28/2016 as a Pre-Proposal Statement of Inquiry (CR-101) under WSR #16-04-052 

o Repealed Section:  WAC 230-13-067 Electronic puzzle and pattern solving game 
standards. 

Assistant Director Tina Griffin explained this rule was not up for final action today due to the 
Code Reviser’s Office filing dates. It is only up for discussion today and will be up for final 
action at the May meeting.  This would repeal the rule that authorized Group 12 amusement 
games.  Licensees indicated they would lose about $9 million dollars if the Group 12 amusement 
games were repealed.  A Small Business Economic Impact Statement was filed and is available 
on our website. 

6. Group 12 Amusement Games. Tina Griffin, Assistant Director 
Filed 3/02/2016 as a Pre-Proposal Statement of Inquiry (CR-101) under WSR #16-06-130 

o Amended Section:  WAC 230-13-067 Group 12 Electronic puzzle and pattern 
solving game standards.  Requiring notice to players. 

Assistant Director Tina Griffin explained this rule was at the request of Commissioner Troyer 
and would require a sticker to be placed on all group 12 amusement games or a message 
displayed on the machine stating “This is not a slot machine. No cash prizes allowed. You can 
preview the prize available before each play of the game without insertion of money or anything 
of value.”  Licensees will be responsible for printing their own stickers or ensuring the message 
is on the screen.  Chair Stearns requested some changes to the language, and that will be up for 
consideration at the May Commission meeting. 

7. Group 12 Amusement Games.  Tina Griffin, Assistant Director 
Filed 3/02/2016 as a Pre-Proposal Statement of Inquiry (CR-101) under WSR #16-06-130 

o Amended Section:  WAC 230-13-075 Assigning and reporting group numbers of 
authorized amusement games. 

o Amended Section:  WAC 230-13-170 Recordkeeping for commercial amusement 
games. 

o Amended Section:  WAC 230-07-125 Recordkeeping requirements for lower 
volume charitable or nonprofit organizations. 

o Amended Section:  WAC 230-13-005 Amusement games authorized. 



Gambling Commission Meeting  
April 14, 2016 
DRAFT Minutes 
Page 4 of 5 

 
Assistant Director Tina Griffin explained the above four rules mostly dealt with three things: 

1. It would require notification to the Commission by amusement game licensees within 
thirty (30) days of placing a group 12 amusement game into play, or removing a group 
12 amusement game out of play. 

2. It would also require amusement game licensees to keep records and report to us 
separately their group 12 receipts. 

3. It would not allow for coupons, tickets, tokens, or tokens on an electronic token card to 
be transferrable to such things as a player tracking system or customer rewards system. 

Ms. Griffin noted staff had received one statement in opposition to the rule proposal, related to 
the non-transferability of tokens.   

Rules Up for Discussion and Possible Filing 

8. Group 12 Amusement Games. Tina Griffin, Assistant Director 
o Amended Section:  WAC 230-03-185 Applying for a manufacturer license. 
o Amended Section:  WAC 230-03-190 Applying for a distributor license. 
o Amended Section:  WAC 230-06-110 Buying, selling, or transferring gambling 

equipment. 
o New Section:  WAC 230-06-112 Buying, selling, renting and leasing amusement 

games. 
Assistant Director Tina Griffin explained, the rules package was a staff request based on the 
rules passed last month. Staff recognized more language and clarification was needed to move 
forward. Filed for further discussion. No motion was made. 
 
Chair Stearns opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Public Comment: Eleven (11) people testified regarding Group 12 amusement games. 

• Two audience members representing the Muckleshoot Tribe opposed the games and 
requested the rule authorizing the game be repealed. 

• Some audience members requested that gift cards and replays be allowed. 
• Maureen Greeley, Evergreen Council on Problem Gambling, said she was neutral on the 

games and urged the Commissioners to be aware of gambling problems. 
• Representative Christopher Hurst thanked staff for their work on the rules, and suggested 

the rule authorizing the games be repealed or allow the games in a very limited way. 

New Licenses and Class III Employees Tina Griffin, Assistant Director 
Assistant Director Tina Griffin explained there are currently 48 licensed and operating house-
banked card rooms.  Staff recommends approval of the new licenses and Class III gaming 
employees listed on pages 1 through 17. 
 
Vice Chair Sizemore made the motion to approve. 
Commissioner Gray seconded. 
Motion Approved 5:0 
 
 



Gambling Commission Meeting  
April 14, 2016 
DRAFT Minutes 
Page 5 of 5 

Class III Certifications for Snoqualmie 
Commissioner Patterson moved to approve the one page of Snoqualmie Class III Certifications. 
Commissioner Gray seconded. 
Motion Approved 4:0 (Chair Stearns abstained from voting). 

- PUBLIC MEETING - 

Director’s Report David Trujillo, Director 
Director David Trujillo gave a brief update on the headquarters office move, and shared that 
the successful bidder was notified. We expect to be moved by the end of the year. We plan to 
hire a person to help us with the move, and that person would spearhead the project. 
 
Legislative Update Brian Considine, Managing Attorney & Legislative Liaison 
Legislative Liaison Brian Considine explained Senate Bill 6449 concerning enhanced raffles 
was signed by the Governor at the end of March.  This bill would extend the expiration date for 
enhanced raffles to June 30, 2022.  Mr. Considine also explained the Open Public Meetings Act 
was amended and the violation goes up from $100 to $500.   
 
Approval of Minutes – February 2016 Commission Meetings 
Vice Chair Sizemore moved to approve the February minutes. 
Commissioner Patterson seconded. 
Minutes approved 5.0 
 
Other Business/General Discussion/Comments from the Public 
Commissioner Patterson spoke about her experience on the ride along with Special Agent Tony 
Hughes.  She visited the Silver Dollar Casino in SeaTac and learned about surveillance and other 
aspects of the business.  It was really an informative 2 or 3 hours. 
She encouraged other commissioners to do the same. 
Chair Stearns, commented it was a great opportunity and gives a hands on perspective. 

Adjourn 
Chair Stearns adjourned the meeting at 3:45pm 
 

 



Gambling Commission Meeting  
May 12, 2016 
DRAFT Minutes 
Page 1 of 6 

 
 
 

Commission Meeting Minutes 
DRAFT 

 
 

Location of Meeting:     Date and Time of Meeting 
Red Lion Hotel      Thursday, May 12, 2016 
2525 20th Avenue NE       12:00 p.m. Commission Meeting 
Pasco, WA  99201 
(509) 547-0701 
 
 Indicates Commissioners and Ex Officio Members Present. 
 
Commissioners      Ex Officio Members 
 Chris Stearns, Chair     Senator Steve Conway 
 Bud Sizemore, Vice-Chair     Senator Mike Hewitt 
 Kelsey Gray, PhD.      Representative Christopher Hurst 
 Julia Patterson      Representative Brandon Vick 
 Ed Troyer 
 
Staff 
David Trujillo, Director 
Amy Hunter, Deputy Director 
Tina Griffin, Assistant Director – Licensing Regulation and Enforcement 
Julie Lies, Tribal Liaison – Tribal & Technical Gambling 
Matthew Kernutt, Assistant Attorney General 
Michelle Rancour, Acting Executive Assistant 
Julie Anderson, Executive Assistant 
Susan Newer, Public Information Officer 

- PUBLIC MEETING - 

Welcome Chris Stearns, Commission Chair 
 
Chairman Chris Stearns called the Gambling Commission meeting to order at 12:00 p.m. at the 
Red Lion Hotel in Pasco and introduced the members present. 
 
Chair Stearns announced there would be an executive session to discuss pending investigations, 
tribal negotiations and litigation. Chair Stearns called for executive session at 12:00 p.m.  
He announced the session would last approximately one and a half hours and excused the 
audience.   
The meeting was called back to order at approximately 1:30pm.  About 60 people were in the 
audience. In addition, a phone in feature was offered. 



Gambling Commission Meeting  
May 12, 2016 
DRAFT Minutes 
Page 2 of 6 

Recognition Chris Stearns, Chair 

Director Trujillo welcomed new executive assistant Julie Anderson.  He also recognized 
Michelle Rancour for her outstanding help over the last few years as acting executive assistant. 

Update from Problem Gambling Conference  Chair Stearns & Commissioner Patterson 
 
Commissioner Julia Patterson gave a report on the Focus on the Future Western Regional 
conference on problem gambling awareness, which she and Chair Stearns recently attended.  
This year’s keynote speaker was Mark Griffins from Nottington Trent University in England. 
 
Chair Stearns noted that one of the panels at the conference was about how e-sports is affecting 
more young people. 
 
Commissioner Patterson spoke in favor of attending the Four Directions Problem Gambling 
conference.  Last year, the conference was in Vancouver BC Canada; in 2016 it will be hosted by 
the Suquamish Tribe. 

Director’s Report:  Director Trujillo reported leadership was still working on our headquarters 
office move. 

- ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE ACT PROCEEDINGS – 

Rule Up for Final Action 

Assistant Director Tina Griffin gave Commissioners’ an update on Group 12 amusement games.  
Total of approximately 385 located in the state.  Agents visited the sites on May 4, 5, and 6 to verify 
compliance with the prize and wager limits, which went into effect April 30. ID Stamps will be 
phased in the middle of the year.  

Group 12 Amusement Games – Repealer 
o Repealed Section:  WAC 230-13-067 Electronic puzzle and pattern solving game 

standards. 
Commissioners voted not to repeal WAC 230-13-067 authorizing Group 12 Amusement Games; 
this was a unanimous vote. 
Vice-Chair Sizemore made a motion not to repeal the Group 12 Amusement Games. 
Commissioner Gray seconded the motion. 
Motion Approved 5:0. 

Rules Up for Discussion 

Assistant Director Griffin explained the next set of Group 12 rules were up for discussion only. 

Group 12 Amusement Games – Requiring Notice to Players 
o Amended Section:  WAC 230-13-067 Group 12 Electronic puzzle and pattern solving 

game standards. 
Assistant Director Tina Griffin explained the rule was for signage to display “This is not a slot 



Gambling Commission Meeting  
May 12, 2016 
DRAFT Minutes 
Page 3 of 6 

machine” and would be prominently displayed on the screen or near the machines. Licensees 
would develop the sticker themselves and post it to the amusement game or the information 
could be displayed on the screen. Rules to be brought back to the July meeting for final action. 

Group 12 Amusement Games – Reporting, Recordkeeping and Non-transferability of 
Tokens 

o Amended Section:  WAC 230-13-075 Assigning and reporting group numbers of 
authorized amusement games. 

o Amended Section:  WAC 230-13-170 Recordkeeping for commercial amusement 
games. 

o Amended Section:  WAC 230-07-125 Recordkeeping requirements for lower volume 
charitable or nonprofit organizations. 

o Amended Section:  WAC 230-13-005 Amusement games authorized. 
Assistant Director Griffin explained this set of rules would do three things; 1) reporting 
requirements for thirty (30) day notice of any installations and removal of equipment, 2) 
recordkeeping component where gross receipts for group 12 would be reported separately, and 3) 
not allow tokens that are dispensed from a group 12 amusement games to be transferred to such 
things as a player tracking card system or a customer rewards system.  

Group 12 Amusement Games – Licensing 
o Amended Section:  WAC 230-03-185 Applying for a manufacturer license. 
o Amended Section:  WAC 230-03-190 Applying for a distributor license. 
o Amended Section:  WAC 230-06-110 Buying, selling, or transferring gambling 

equipment. 
o New Section:  WAC 230-06-112 Buying, selling, renting and leasing amusement games. 

Assistant Director Tina Griffin explained these rules will clearly define what can be done as a 
manufacturer, as a distributor, and what activity class A and B licensed amusement games can 
do.  Rules to be brought back at the July meeting for discussion. 

Chair Stearns called for public comment on the three sets of group 12 rules up for discussion. 
Three people spoke in opposition of the rule changes for licensing group 12 amusement games; 
Jay Gerow, Amusement Distributors of Washington (ADOW), Pat Tompkins, Sound 
Amusements, and Joan Mell, Attorney for ADOW. 

Rules Up for Discussion and Possible Filing 

Other Rules up for Discussion and Possible Filing (taken out of order) 

Staff Demonstration – Poker Wagering demonstration presented by Bill McGregor, Special 
Agent.  
AD Griffin explained the Texas Hold’em Poker Pilot Program, which increased the single wager 
limit for Texas Hold’em only to $100. From 1974 to 2007 wagering limits for other card games went 
from $2 to $40 and that portion of the rule still stands today. 

Petition from Theresa Malphrus – Poker Wagering 
o WAC 230-15-080 Authorized fees and authorized methods of collection. 



Gambling Commission Meeting  
May 12, 2016 
DRAFT Minutes 
Page 4 of 6 

o WAC 230-15-135 Wagering Limits for nonhouse-banked card games. 
Requesting the following rule changes: 

• Increase the maximum amount of a single wager on any authorized poker game, not just 
Texas Hold ‘Em, from $40 to $100 at Class F and house-banked cardrooms; and  

• Allow Class F and house-banked cardrooms to assess players of nonhouse-banked card 
games a rake fee of up to 10% of the pot with no limit.  Currently, the rake cannot be 
more than $5 per hand or 10% of the total wagers for a hand, whichever is less. 

 
Theresa Malphrus explained the rake and player supported jackpot. One of the reasons for the 
request for rule changes was in anticipation of the minimum wage labor increases in November. 
Filed for further discussion. 
 
Vice-Chair Sizemore made a motion to file for further discussion. 
Commissioner Patterson seconded the motion. 
Motion Approved 5:0 
 
Petition from George Teeny – Poker Wagering 

o WAC 230-15-135 Wagering Limits for nonhouse-banked card games. 
Assistant Director Tina Griffin explained Mr. Teeny is requesting increased wagering limits 
for non-house-banked card games, such as poker.  Specifically, the proposed change would: 

• Increase the maximum amount of a single wager on any authorized poker game, not just 
Texas Hold ‘Em, from $40 to $100 at a Class F card rooms; and  

• Increase the maximum amount of a single wager on any authorized poker game, not just 
Texas Hold ‘Em, played at house-banked card room licensees to $300, the same limits as 
those for house-banked card games. 

George Teeny explained his petition had some cross-over with Ms. Malphrus petitions, but he 
was asking to consider an approval of increasing the wager limit to $300 in house-banked rooms 
only.  He said his rational was the similarities between the house-banked rooms and the poker 
rooms after speaking to his RGA partners.  He explained the play of the game and betting 
scenarios.  He wants to create the no limit atmosphere for these smaller games. 
 
Ian Riley, Black Pearl, Spokane, spoke in favor of the $300 poker wagering limit, and the ability 
to offer a more exciting game to those willing to play. Ms. Malphrus also spoke in favor of the 
increased poker wagering limit. 
 
Commissioner Troyer made the motion to file for further discussion. 
Commissioner Gray seconded the motion. 
Motion Approved 4:1. 
Commissioner Patterson voted nay. 
 
Vice-Chair Sizemore said he would feel better about making decisions if he could see the play in 
action with the wagering limits being proposed.  A discussion ensued about holding the second 
day of the July Commission meeting as a special poker demonstration day. Victor Mena offered 
his venue, Silver Dollar in SeaTac to hold the meeting. 
 



Gambling Commission Meeting  
May 12, 2016 
DRAFT Minutes 
Page 5 of 6 

Petition from Recreational Gaming Association 
o WAC 230-15-025 Hours of play. 
o WAC 230-06-030 Restrictions and conditions for gambling promotions. 
o WAC 230-06-031 Using wheels in promotional contests of chance, fund-raising events, or 

gambling activities – Promotional Contests of Chance (PCOC) 
Requesting the following rule changes: 

Hours of Play (WAC 230-15-025): The proposed change would allow house-banked card rooms 
to be open 24 hours a day, seven days a week. Currently, house-banked card rooms can be open 
24 hours a day, five days a week. On the remaining two days, they must be closed for a four hour 
period.  
 
Promotions (WAC 230-06-030): The proposed change would allow operators to offer gambling 
promotions that: 

• Allow entry based on disclosed criteria;  
• Offer lottery tickets as a prize;  
• Add additional merchandise or cash prizes to licensed gambling activities;  
• Allow licensed manufacturers, distributors, and service suppliers to give licensees cash 

or merchandise to offer as a prize;  
• Allow card rooms to use a physical drawing, spinning a wheel or selection from a group 

of concealed items to award a prize; 
• Are not reviewed or approved by us when offered as outlined in the rule.  

When offering gambling promotions, operators (1) must offer to all patrons of their 
establishments, (2) cannot use second elements of chance (spinning wheels, drawings, etc.) 
except for bingo operators and (3) cannot offer lottery tickets as prizes. 

Use of wheels in promotions (WAC 230-06-031): The proposed change would allow card room 
licensees to use spinning wheels in conjunction with promotions they offer to customers. 
Currently, card room licensees cannot use spinning wheels in conjunction with promotions.  
 
Assistant Director Tina Griffin explained the reasons for the rules petition request from 
Recreational Gaming Association. Dolores Chichi and Victor Mena both spoke in favor of the 
rule changes. 
 
Vice-Chair Sizemore made a motion to file for further discussion. 
Commissioner Gray seconded the motion. 
Motion Approved 5:0. 

New Licenses and Class III Employees presented by Tina Griffin, Assistant Director 
Assistant Director Tina Griffin noted there were currently 50 house-banked card rooms 
operating. Ms. Griffin presented the licensees for approval on page 1 through 16.  
Vice Chair Sizemore moved to approve the Class III gaming employees. 
Commissioner Gray seconded 
Approved 5:0. 
 
Snoqualmie Class III Certifications 



Gambling Commission Meeting  
May 12, 2016 
DRAFT Minutes 
Page 6 of 6 

Commissioner Patterson moved to approve. 
Commissioner Gray seconded 
Approved 4:0. (Chair Stearns abstained from voting.) 

Defaults presented by Brian Considine, Managing Attorney 
This month we had four defaults. Managing Attorney Brian Considine explained each case. Staff 
recommended license revocation on all four defaults. Each default approved 5:0. 

- PUBLIC MEETING - 

Presentation – Fee Restructure Discussion presented by Deputy Director Amy Hunter 
DD Amy Hunter presented to the Commissioners.  The current fee structure was created in 1973.  
Vice-Chair Sizemore has led the efforts to have staff ask the same question with our fee structure as 
we asked with the agency restructure:  If the fee structure were created today, what would be the best 
structure? Two options were given to either simplify the current existing fee structure (Option A) or 
to create a new fee structure (Option B).  DD Hunter explained both systems would be a change, 
both would require outreach to stakeholders and both would require rule changes.  Staff recommends 
Option B with stakeholder outreach this summer and a report back at the October Commission 
meeting.  Three people testified: Cameron Baker, Victor Mena & Monty Harmon.   
Vice Chair Sizemore moved staff explore Option B and reach out to stakeholders. 
Commissioner Gray seconded.   
Approved: 5:0. 

Approval of Minutes – March 2016 Commission Meetings – Held to July. 

Nomination and Election of Chair & Vice-Chair - Effective July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 
Chair Stearns thanked the Commissioners and staff, and opened the floor for nominations for 
Chair. Commissioner Patterson nominated Vice Chair Sizemore as Commission Chair for the 
term expiring on June 30, 2017. Commissioner Gray seconded the nomination.  Approved. 
 
Chair Stearns asked if there was a motion to nominate a Commissioner for the vice-chair 
position. Commissioner Sizemore nominated Commissioner Patterson as Commission Vice- 
Chair for the term expiring on June 30, 2017. Commissioner Gray seconded the nomination.  
Approved. 

Other Business/General Discussion/Comments from the Public 
Four people testified:  Jesse Stiltner read part of a letter from Amusement Distributors of 
Washington (ADOW) regarding the recent amendments and enforcement activities imposed.  The 
letter was entered into the record. Pat Tompkins, Sound Amusements, stated he reluctantly supports 
the statement from ADOW. He was looking forward to working with the commission and staff, 
unfortunately with the recent amendments it has turned into something that is not economically 
viable for his company. Ralph Carlson, Digital Music Systems, said he was in agreement with Mr. 
Tompkins regarding the economic impact. Jay Gerow, ZDI Gaming, stated he was in support of the 
letter from ADOW. 

Chair Stearns adjourned the meeting at 5:42pm 



 The next meeting of the 
 

 Washington State 
 Gambling Commission 
 will be held 

 

Thursday, August 11, 2016 
Friday, August 12, 2016 

 
at the 

South Puget Sound Community College 
4220 6th Avenue SE 

Lacey, Washington  98503 
(360) 596-5333 

 

 

 

 

The Public is encouraged to attend.   
Please feel free to post this notice at your business. 


	Wednesday Agenda
	Study Session
	Thursday's Agenda
	Tab 1

	Tab 1
	Public Comment 5/4-6/16
	Tab 2
	Tab 3
	Tab 4
	Tab 5
	Tab 6
	Tab 7
	Tab 8
	Tab 9
	Tab 10
	Tab 11
	ADPD418.tmp
	January 14 & 15 Red Lion Hotel Olympia
	February 11 One-Day Only Best Western – Hawks Prairie
	March 11 One-Day Only Great Wolf Lodge – Grand Mound
	April 14 One-Day Only DoubleTree by Hilton Olympia
	May 12 One-Day Only Red Lion Pasco
	June NO MEETING
	July 13 & 14 Red Lion Seattle Airport
	August 11 & 12 South Puget Sound Community College
	October 13 & 14  DoubleTree by Hilton Spokane
	November 10 & 11 TBD




